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Introduction to the Annual Reports and Accounts

In implementation of Legislative Decree no. 38 of February 28, 2005, these Financial Reports and Accounts comprise the Consolidated Financial
Report and Accounts and the Financial Report and Accounts of FinecoBank Banca Fineco S.p.A. (hereinafter FinecoBank or Fineco or the Bank),
which have been prepared in accordance with the IAS/IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), including the SIC and
IFRIC interpretation documents, as endorsed by the European Commission until December 31, 2018, pursuant to EU Regulation 1606/2002 of July
19, 2002 and applicable to financial reports for the periods starting on January 1, 2018.

In its Circular 262 of December 22, 2005 as amended, the Bank of Italy laid down the formats for the financial statements and explanatory notes to
the accounts of banks and regulated financial companies that are parents of banking groups, which have been used by the Bank to prepare the
Consolidated Report and Accounts and the Separate Report and Accounts.

As it belongs to the UniCredit Banking Group, FinecoBank is required to present consolidated financial statements, as required by law, as it controls
Fineco Asset Management DAC and is an issuer of financial instruments traded on a public market.

The Consolidated Report and Accounts includes:

e the Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Income Statement, the Statement
of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, presented with a comparison to the corresponding financial statements of 2017;

o the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts;

and is accompanied by:

o the Consolidated Report on Operations, which includes the condensed accounts, the main results of the various business areas, and
comments on the results for the year;

o the Certification of the Consolidated Report and Accounts pursuant to Article 81-ter of Consob Regulation no. 11971 of May 14,
1999 and subsequent amendments.

Any lack of correspondence between the figures shown in the Consolidated Report on Operations and the Consolidated Financial Statements is
solely due to roundings.

The Financial Report and Accounts includes:

o the Financial Statements comprise the Balance Sheet, the Income Statement, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement
of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Cash Flow Statement, presented with a comparison to the corresponding financial statements of
2017,

o the Notes to the Accounts;

it is accompanied by the Certification of the Annual Financial Statements pursuant to Article 81-ter of Consob Regulation no. 11971 of May
14, 1999 and subsequent amendments.

For the Report on Operations pertaining to the separate financial statements of FinecoBank S.p.A., please refer to the Consolidated Report on
Operations in which, in a specific section, the reclassified financial statements are shown, the main results of the various business areas of the Bank
and the comments on the results of the financial year.

The annual report also includes:

e the Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors
e the Reports of the External Auditors.

The Bank applied the provision provided for in paragraph 7.2.15 of IFRS 9 and paragraphs E1 and E2 of IFRS 1 "First-Time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards", according to which - without prejudice to the retrospective application of the new measurement rules
and representation required by the standard - there is no obligation to restate the figures of previous years (comparative values) in the FTA financial
statements. Without prejudice to the disclosure regarding the reconciliation between data in the last approved financial statements and in the
opening balances of the first financial statements drawn up according to the new standard, based on the provisions provided for in the 5% update of
Circular 262 of December 22, 2005 “Banking financial statements: schedules and rules compilation", and the related methodology set forth in section
5. “Other matters - Transition to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments” of these notes to the consolidated accounts and in section 4 “Other matters -
Transition to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments” of these notes to the accounts, the above statements were therefore supplemented, where different, with
the accounting items of the 2017 financial statements in order to show the corresponding values determined according to IAS 39. The tables
included in the notes to the consolidated accounts and notes to the accounts have also been integrated with the tables as provided for in the 4th
update of Circular 262, presenting the relative values determined according to IAS 39, where it was not possible to report comparative data with
respect to the previous year due to the 5% update above mentioned.

In the Financial Statements shown in the Consolidated Report on operations, the balance-sheet data as at December 31, 2017 and the income
statement data for the year 2017 have been restated, with unchanged totals, according to the reclassified financial statement format adopted by the
Bank that incorporates the changes introduced by the 5th update of Circular 262. Please note that, for a better exposure, in the "Consolidated
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Introduction to the Annual reports and accounts

balance sheet - Quarterly data" scheme, the situation as at January 01, 2018 has been presented following the application of the First Time
Adoption of IFRS 9.

In particular, the main reclassifications, wherein amounts are provided analytically in the tables enclosed with this report, involve:
Balance Sheet

e the inclusion in “Loans to banks” of “Financial assets at amortised cost: a) Loans and receivables with banks” net of debt securities
reclassified in “Other financial assets”,

o the inclusion in “Loans to customers” of “Financial assets at amortised cost: b) Loans and receivables with customers” net of debt
securities reclassified in “Other financial assets”;

o the aggregation as “Other financial assets” of “Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: ¢) Other financial assets mandatorily
at fair value”, of “Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income” and of “Equity investments”, with inclusion of debt
securities from “Loans to banks and customers - ltem 40 a) and b)”;

e grouping under “Hedging instruments”, both assets and liabilities, of “Hedging derivatives” and “Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged
items”;

o the inclusion of “Provision for employee severance pay”, “Provisions for risks and charges” and “Other liabilities” under “Other liabilities”.

Income Statement

o theinclusion in “Net trading, hedging and fair value income” of the “Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading”, “Fair
value adjustments in hedge accounting’, “Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”, “Gains
(losses) on disposal or repurchase of a) financial assets at ammortised cost — debt securities (not impaired)” and “Gains (losses) on
disposal or repurchase of b) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income”;

o the inclusion in the “Net other operating expenses/income” of “Other operating income/expenses”, excluding “Recovery of expenses”
which is classified under its own item, and of the costs for “Write-downs on leasehold improvements” classified among “Other
administrative expenses”;
the inclusion of the Deposit Guarantee Schemes (DGS) in item “Other charges and provision”;
the inclusion in “Net income from investments” of “Write-downs and write-backs on: a) financial assets at amortised cost — with regard to
debt securities”, “Write-downs and write-backs on: b) financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income — with
regard to debt securities” and “Gains (losses) on disposal of investments”;

e theinclusion in “Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments” of the “Write-downs and write-backs on: a)
financial assets at amortised cost - net of debt securities” and “Write-downs and write-backs on: financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income - net of debt securities” and of “Net provisions for risks and charge a) commitments and financial
guarantees given”.

For additional information, reference is made to “Reconciliation of condensed consolidated accounts to mandatory reporting schedule” of the
Annexes.
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Summary data

FinecoBank is the direct, multi-channel bank of the UniCredit Group. It has one of the largest networks of personal financial advisors in Italy and is
the leader in Italy for equity trades. The Bank offers an integrated business model combining direct banking and financial advice. With a single
account including a full range of banking, credit, trading and investment services, which are also available through applications for smartphone and
tablet.

FinecoBank is listed on the Milan Stock Market and has been on Borsa ltaliana’s FTSE Mib index since April 1st, 2016. On March 20th, 2017, the
stock became part of the STOXX Europe 600 Index.

FinecoBank is on the Standard Ethics Italian Banks Index® and the Standard Ethics ltalian Index (comprising the largest 40 companies listed on the
Borsa Italiana FTSE-MIB), one of the leading performance indexes and a benchmark for environmental, social and governance concems. In June
2018, Standard Ethics confirmed the Bank's rating, EE, considered a full "investment grade" by who are increasingly attracted to sustainable
businesses and companies with a lower reputational risk profile and strong prospects for long-term growth.

In order to further increase the Bank's competitive capacity by expanding the range of services offered, an Irish Asset Management Company,
Fineco Asset Management DAC! (hereinafter, Fineco AM), fully owned by the Bank, was incorporated on October 26th, 2017, after the approval of
the project by the Board of Directors of UniCredit S.p.A. on August 2nd, 2017 and after the Board of Directors’ meeting of FinecoBank held on
September 19th, 2017, which also approved the amount of share capital to be allocated to the new company. The aim is to offer its customers a
range of UCITS with a strategy focused on the definition of strategic asset allocation and selection of the best international managers, and therefore,
diversify and improve the offer of asset management products and further increase the competitiveness of the Bank through a vertically integrated
business model.

On May 17th, 2018 Fineco AM obtained the authorization to perform asset management activities by the Central Bank of Ireland. On June 1st, 2018
Fineco AM has obtained the authorization by Luxembourg authority Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier to replace Amundi
Luxembourg S.A. in the management of the pre-existing mutual funds under Luxembourg law labelled “Core Series”. Starting from July 2nd, 2018,
Fineco AM is fully operational.

At the end of 2018, total financial assets (direct and indirect) from customers amounted to €69,333 million, up 3.2% on €67,185 million at the end of
2017.

Net sales at the end of the year came to €6,222 million increased compared to 2017 (+4.4% yly), despite the more complex market situation: assets
under management came to €2,263 million, assets under custody came to €1,830 million and direct deposits came to €2,128 million. Sales of
“Guided Products & Services” came to €2,766 million, their percentage on total AUM at the end of the year rose to 67%, compared to 63%? as at 31
December 2017.

Net sales through the network of Personal Financial Advisors totalled €5,453 million, up 0.9% compared to 2017. Total financial assets (direct and
indirect) as at December 31, 2018 amounted to €59.910 million (+3.5% yly).

The TFA related to Private Banking clients, i.e. with assets above €500,000, totalled €25,830 million, equals to 37% of total TFA of the Bank.

In 2018, €248 million in personal loans and €411 million in mortgages were granted, and €945 million in current account overdrafts was arranged,
with an increase in exposures in current account of €377 million; this has resulted an overall 46.4%2 aggregate increase in loans to customers
compared to December 31, 2017. Credit quality remains high, with a cost of risk at 24 bp, driven by the principle of offering credit exclusively to
existing customers, making use of specialist tools to analyse the bank’s vast information base. The cost of risk is structurally contained and fell
further thanks also to the effect of new loans, which are mainly secured and low-risk. The ratio between impaired loans and total loans to ordinary
customers was 0.11% (0.16% as at December 31, 2017).

The total number of customers as at 31st December 2018 was 1,277,787, up 6% compared to the previous year. Customers continue to reward
Fineco's transparent approach, high quality and comprehensive range of financial services as represented through the “one-stop solution” concept.

The net profit for the year amounted to €241.2 million, with an increase of 12.7% on the previous year. The cost/income ratio moved from 39.74% as
at December 31, 2017 to 39.3% as at December 31, 2018, confirming the operating efficiency of the Bank and the spread of the company culture on
controlling costs.The 2018 results reflect the Bank’s sustainability and the strength of its business model, capable of generating profits in all market
conditions. The net profit of the year net of the non-recurring items booked in 20184 should be equal to to €244.4 million, up 11.8% compared to the
2017 net profitd net of the non-recurring items.

10n 4 May 2018 the company changed its name from "Fineco Asset Management Limited" to "Fineco Asset Management DAC".

2 Starting from the financial year 2018, data on assets under administration and direct sales included in the Advice and Plus advisory services were reclassified as part of assets under management to better represent the
advisory nature of the Advice and Plus services. For comparative purposes the data for 2017 have been restated on a pro forma basis.

3 Loans receivable with ordinary customers include solely to loans granted to customers (current account overdrafts, credit cards, personal loans, mortgages and unsecured loans).

4 Change in fair value of the exposure in equity securities versus the Voluntary Scheme established by the Interbank Fund for the Protection of Deposits for an amount of -€3 million (-€2 million net of the tax effect),
severance paid in for an amount of -€1.6 million (-€1.1 million net of the tax effect) and integration costs for an amount of €0.1 million (-€0.1 million) net of the tax effect).

5 Losses from write-offs and value adjustments made to the exposure in equity securities against the Voluntary Scheme established by Interbank Fund for the Protection of Deposits, for an amount of -€12.9 million (-8.6
million net of tax effect); release of integration costs estimated in the previous year, for an amount of + €0.4 million (+€0.3 million net of the tax effect); positive change in current taxes referring to the application of the
participation exemption on the capital gain realized in 2016 from the sale of the investment in VISA Europe Ltd, for an amount of +€3.9 million.
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Consolidated Report on Operations

The Bank's offering is split into three integrated areas of activity: (i) banking, including current account and deposit services, payment services, and
issuing debit, credit and prepaid cards, mortgages and personal loans; (ii) brokerage, providing order execution services on behalf of customers,
with direct access to major global equity markets and the ability to trade CFDs (on currencies, indices, shares, bonds and commodities), futures,
options, bonds, ETFs and certificates; (iii) investing, including placement and distribution services of more than 6,000 products, including mutual
funds and SICAV sub-funds managed by 78 leading Italian and international investment firms, including the subsidiary Fineco AM, insurance and
pension products, as well as investment advisory services through a network of 2,578 personal financial advisors.
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Summary data (CONTINUED)

Key figures of the consolidated financial statements (Continuen)

Condensed Accounts

Consolidated balance sheet

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES
ASSETS 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNTS %
Cash and cash balances 6 613 (607) -99.0%
Financial assets held for trading 6,876 8,827 (1,951) -22.1%
Loans and receivables with banks 3,058,882 3,039,207 19,675 0.6%
Loans and receivables with customers 2,955,074 2,129,219 825,855 38.8%
Financial investments 18,231,182 16,715,041 1,516,141 9.1%
Hedging instruments 8,187 10,048 (1,861) -18.5%
Property, plant and equipment 16,632 15,205 1,427 9.4%
Goodwill 89,602 89,602 - -
Other intangible assets 8,705 7,909 796 10.1%
Tax assets 6,714 9,249 (2,535) -27.4%
Other assets 350,770 315,415 35,355 11.2%
Total assets 24,732,630 22,340,335 2,392,295 10.7%

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNTS %
Deposits from banks 1,009,774 926,001 83,773 9.0%
Deposits from customers 22,273,188 20,205,036 2,068,152 10.2%
Financial liabilities held for trading 2,221 11,936 (9,715) -81.4%
Hedging instruments 7,941 (397) 8,338 n.c.
Tax liabilities 12,390 10,234 2,156 21.1%
Other liabilities 451,435 455,699 (4,264) -0.9%
Shareholders' equity 975,681 731,826 243,855 33.3%
- capital and reserves 744,256 526,046 218,210 41.5%
- revaluation reserves (9,794) (8,340) (1,454) 17.4%
- net profit 241,219 214,120 27,099 12.7%
Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 24,732,630 22,340,335 2,392,295 10.7%
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Consolidated Report on Operations

Consolidated balance sheet - Quarterly data

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT

ASSETS 12.31.2018 09.30.2018 06.30.2018 03.31.2018 01.01.2018 12.31.2017
Cash and cash balances 6 532 1,733 745 613 613
Financial assets held for trading 6,876 12,253 10,871 10,368 8,827 8,827
Loans and receivables with banks 3,058,882 3,397,576 3,224 477 3,487,848 3,036,333 3,039,207
Loans and receivables with customers 2,955,074 2,735,885 2,632,749 2,318,096 2,128,528 2,129,219
Financial investments 18,231,182 17,665,380 17,188,339 17,095,494 16,724,188 16,715,041
Hedging instruments 8,187 313 2,667 356 119 10,048
Property, plant and equipment 16,632 14,545 15,036 14,839 15,205 15,205
Goodwill 89,602 89,602 89,602 89,602 89,602 89,602
Other intangible assets 8,705 7,898 7,827 7,584 7,909 7,909
Tax assets 6,714 17,758 10,914 6,428 8,639 9,249
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as
held for sale - - 91 - R R
Other assets 350,770 240,922 241,054 203,695 315,415 315,415
Total assets 24,732,630 24,182,664 23,425,360 23,235,055 22,335,378 22,340,335

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2018 09.30.2018 06.30.2018 03.31.2018 01.01.2018 12.31.2017
Deposits from banks 1,009,774 999,543 907,794 960,046 926,001 926,001
Deposits from customers 22,273,188 21,827,286 21,196,653 20,916,380 20,205,036 20,205,036
Financial liabilities held for trading 2,221 5,512 4,568 4,892 11,936 11,936
Hedging instruments 7,941 (285) 2,374 (460) (397) (397)
Tax liabilities 12,390 48,674 22,038 36,307 7,718 10,234
Other liabilities 451,435 397,621 417,933 325,843 456,150 455,699
Shareholders' equity 975,681 904,313 874,000 992,047 728,934 731,826
- capital and reserves 744,256 746,340 763,818 937,076 521,178 526,046
- revaluation reserves (9,794) (19,760) (14,997) (3,994) (6,364) (8,340)
- net profit 241,219 177,733 125,179 58,965 214,120 214,120
Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 24,732,630 24,182,664 23,425,360 23,235,055 22,335,378 22,340,335
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Summary data (CONTINUED)

Key figures of the consolidated financial statements (Continuen)

Consolidated Income Statement

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
2018 2017 AMOUNT %
Net interest 278,659 264,781 13,878 5.2%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 42 29 13 44.8%
Net fee and commission income 300,443 270,083 30,360 11.2%
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 44,239 48,219 (3,980) -8.3%
Net other expenses/income 1,913 3,760 (1,847) -49.1%
OPERATING INCOME 625,296 586,872 38,424 6.5%
Staff expenses (86,606) (79,294) (7,312) 9.2%
Other administrative expenses (245,501) (236,945) (8,556) 3.6%
Recovery of expenses 96,767 93,367 3,400 3.6%
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (10,424) (10,369) (55) 0.5%
Operating costs (245,764) (233,241) (12,523) 5.4%
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 379,532 353,631 25,901 7.3%
Net impairment losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments (4,384) (5,351) 967 -18.1%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 375,148 348,280 26,868 7.7%
Other charges and provisions (21,380) (19,025) (2,355) 12.4%
Integration costs (121) 408 (529) -129.7%
Net income from investments 1,105 (13,399) 14,504 n.c.
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 354,752 316,264 38,488 12.2%
Income tax for the year (113,533) (102,144) (11,389) 11.1%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 241,219 214,120 27,099 12.7%
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 241,219 214,120 27,099 12.7%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 241,219 214,120 27,099 12.7%
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Consolidated Report on Operations

Consolidated Income Statement - Quarterly data

(Amounts in € thousand)

4" QUARTER 3 QUARTI?ITS 2"° QUARTER 1°" QUARTER
Net interest 71,073 69,940 68,742 68,904
Dividends and other income from equity investments 12 10 13 7
Net fee and commission income 81,785 72,680 74,516 71,462
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 5,900 10,721 13,080 14,538
Net other expenses/income 1,680 (350) 96 487
OPERATING INCOME 160,450 153,001 156,447 155,398
Staff expenses (21,905) (23,202) (20,966) (20,533)
Other administrative expenses (59,323) (59,247) (61,464) (65,467)
Recovery of expenses 22,982 25,162 23,922 24,701
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (3,132) (2,456) (2,497) (2,339)
Operating costs (61,378) (59,743) (61,005) (63,638)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 99,072 93,258 95,442 91,760
Net impairment losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments (2,333) (895) 155 (1,311)
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 96,739 92,363 95,597 90,449
Other charges and provisions (1,782) (15,899) (1,925) (1,774)
Integration costs (115) (2) (2) (2)
Net income from investments (3,150) (903) 5,157 1
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 91,692 75,559 98,827 88,674
Income tax for the period (28,206) (23,005) (32,613) (29,709)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 63,486 52,554 66,214 58,965
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 63,486 52,554 66,214 58,965
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 63,486 52,554 66,214 58,965
(Amounts in € thousand)

2017
4™ QUARTER 3™ QUARTER 2"° QUARTER 1°" QUARTER
Net interest 70,069 67,415 64,334 62,963
Dividends and other income from equity investments 11 6 6 6
Net fee and commission income 70,696 69,680 65,026 64,681
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 11,100 11,127 12,282 13,710
Net other expenses/income 3,930 63 (764) 531
OPERATING INCOME 155,806 148,291 140,884 141,891
Staff expenses (20,601) (19,769) (19,708) (19,216)
Other administrative expenses (60,031) (53,021) (61,451) (62,442)
Recovery of expenses 24,987 21,888 23,215 23,277
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (2,908) (2,628) (2,503) (2,330)
Operating costs (58,553) (53,530) (60,447) (60,711)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 97,253 94,761 80,437 81,180
Net impairment losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments (2,124) (1,577) (1,053) (597)
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 95,129 93,184 79,384 80,583
Other charges and provisions 5,154 (21,029) (773) (2,377)
Integration costs 428 (7) 1 (14)
Net income from investments (11,598) (1,448) (361) 8
Goodwill impairment - - - -
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 89,113 70,700 78,251 78,200
Income tax for the period (26,031) (23,929) (25,678) (26,506)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 63,082 46,771 52,573 51,694
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 63,082 46,771 52,573 51,694
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 63,082 46,771 52,573 51,694
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Summary data (CONTINUED)

Key figures of the consolidated financial statements (Continuen)

Main balance sheet figures

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES
12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNTS %
Loans receivable with ordinary customers " 2,632,270 1,798,520 833,750 46.4%
Total assets 24,732,630 22,340,335 2,392,295 10.7%
Direct deposits 22,068,931 19,940,715 2,128,216 10.7%
Assets under administration 47,263,709 47,243,837 19,872 0.0%
Total customers sales (directa and indirect) 69,332,640 67,184,552 2,148,088 3.2%
Shareholders' equity 975,681 731,826 243,855 33.3%
(1) Loans receivables with ordinary customers refer solely to loans granted to customers (current account overdrafts, credit cards, personal loans, mortgages and unsecured loans).
(2) Direct deposits include overdrawn current accounts and the Cash Park deposit account (with regard to 2017 the item included Supersave repos as well).
(3) Assets under administration consist of products placed online or through FinecoBank personal financial advisors.
Operating Structure
DATA AS AT
12.31.2018 12.31.2017
No. Employees 1,170 1,119
No. Personal financial advisors 2,578 2,607
No. Financial shops ™ 390 375

(1) Number of operating financial shops: financial shops managed by the Bank and financial shops managed by personal financial advisors (Fineco Centers).

Profitability, productivity and efficiency ratios®

(Amounts in € thousand)

DATA AS AT

12.31.2018 12.31.2017
Net interest/Operating income 44.56% 45.12%
Income from brokerage and other income/Operating income 55.43% 54.88%
Income from brokerage and other income/Operating costs 141.03% 138.08%
Cost/income ratio 39.30% 39.74%
Operating costs/TFA 0.36% 0.37%
Cost of risk 24 bp 45 bp
CoR (incentive system) 24 bp 40 bp
ROE 35.61% 39.47%
Return on assets 0.98% 0.96%
EVA (calculated on economic capital) 194,309 193,269
EVA (calculated on accounting capital) 167,840 165,295
RARORAC (calculated on economic capital) 33.50% 54.58%
RARORAC (calculated on accounting capital) 18.52% 24.21%
ROAC (calculated on economic capital) 41.59% 60.52%
ROAC (calculated on accounting capital) 26.62% 31.39%
Total sales to customers/Average employees 60,579 60,938
Total customer sales/(Average employees average PFAs) 18,553 18,060

6 Please note that the ratios shown in the table and relating to the year 2017 have been recalculated considering the effect of the application of IFRS9.
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Key

Income from brokerage and other income: Net fee and commission income, Net trading, hedging and fair value income and Net other expenses/income.

Cost/income ratio: Operating Costs divided by Operating Income.

Operating costs/TFA: ratio of operating costs to Total Financial Assets. The TFA used for the ratio is the average for the year, calculated as the average between the period-end balance and the balance as at the previous
December 31.

Cost of risk: is the ratio of Net write-downs of loans with customers and provisions for guarantees and commitments with customers to loans to customers (average of single quarters’ averages). The scope only includes
loans to ordinary customers. The methods of calculation for this indicator have been changed as of FY2018 and the relevant indicators at December 31, 2017 have been restated for comparative purposes.

CoR (incentive system): is the ratio of Net write-downs of Loans and receivables with customers to Loans and receivables with customers (average of the balance at year end and the balance at December 31 of the previous
year). The scope of the exposures excludes positions deriving from bonds and advances to personal financial advisors.

ROE: ratio between the net profit and the average book shareholders’ equity (excluding dividends and any donations expected to be distributed and the revaluation reserves) for the period (average between the amount of
the end of period and the amount of the shareholders’ equity as at December 31 of previous year).

Return on assets: ratio of net profit after tax to total assets.

EVA (Economic Value Added): shows the firm's ability to create value; calculated as the difference between net operating profit and the figurative cost of the allocated capital; the latter was calculated using either the greater
of the regulatory capital and the economic capital absorbed either using the book value of shareholders' equity (average of single end quarters) .

RARORAC (Risk adjusted Return on Risk adjusted Capital): the ratio between EVA (using either the greater of the regulatory capital absorbed and the economic capital or using the book value of shareholders' equity) and
Allocated/Absorbed Capital and expresses, in percentage, the capacity to create value for unit of risk taken.

ROAC (Return on Allocated Capital): the ratio of net operating profit and allocated capital. Allocated capital means the greater of internally calculated capital based on shared UniCredit Group models (Economic Capital) and
regulatory capital or using the book value of shareholders' equity.

Balance Sheet indicators’

DATA AS AT
12.31.2018 12.31.2017
Loans receivable with ordinary customers/Total assets 10.64% 8.05%
Loans and receivables with banks/Total assets 12.37% 13.60%
Financial assets/Total assets 73.71% 74.82%
Direct sales/Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 89.23% 89.26%
Shareholders' equity (including profit)/Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 3.94% 3.28%
Ordinary customer loans/Direct deposits 11.93% 9.02%
DATA AS AT
CREDIT QUALITY 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
Non-performing loans/Loans receivable with ordinary customers 0.11% 0.16%
Bad loans/Loans receivable with ordinary customers 0.06% 0.10%
Coverage " - Bad loans 91.65% 91.70%
Coverage " - Unlikely to pay 76.80% 76.53%
Coverage " - Impaired past-due exposures 64.60% 53.69%
Coverage ' - Total Non-performing loans 88.23% 88.27%

(1) Calculated as the ratio between the amount of impairment losses and gross exposure.

Own funds and capital ratios

FinecoBank is not required to prepare the disclosure relating to own funds and regulatory ratios on consolidated basis as it is part of the UniCredit
banking group, so please refer to the section on the results of the parent FinecoBank and the associated information on individual own funds and
regulatory ratios as set out in this Consolidated Report on Operations.

7 Please note that the ratios shown in the table and relating to the year 2017 have been recalculated considering the effect of the application of IFRS9.
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Summary data (CONTINUED)

Key figures of the consolidated financial statements (Continuen)

Market share

Trading on Italian Stock Market (Assosim) 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
Third party volumes traded on MTA 24.75%) 19.65%
Classification of third party volumes traded on MTA 1° 1°
Personal financial advisors (Assoreti) 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
Stock volumes 11.66% 11.16%
Stock Classification 3° 3°
Personal financial advisors (Assoreti) 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
Net Sales volumes 18.18% 13.79%
Net Sales Classification 2° 3°
Total Deposits (Bank of Italy) 09.30.2018 12.31.2017
Market share - Total Financial Assets 1.64% 1.61%
Market share - Direct Deposits 1.31% 1.32%
Market share - Assets under Administration 1.89% 1.81%

Figures related to Total Deposits (Bank of Italy) refer to September 30, 2018 as they are the latest figures available.
With regard to the Bank of Italy market share, it should be specified that in 2018 the method for collecting direct deposits was modified, based on indications from the ECB, to include bank drafts, repos (liability side) and
other payables. Therefore, even the 2017 data have been recalculated
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Business performance

Performance of total financial assets

Direct deposits showed growth of 10.7% compared to the end of the previous year, to reach €22,069 million and confirming the high level of
appreciation of the quality of the services offered by the Bank among customers. Indeed, the majority of direct deposits were “transactional’,
supporting customers’ overall operations. The increase in this component of sales confirms the high and increasing degree of customer loyalty,
which in turn contributes to improving the stability of direct sales.

Assets under administration (Assets under Management-AUM plus Assets under Custody-AUC) came to €47,264 million, in line with data recorded
as at December 31, 2017.The negative market effect recorded in 2018, amounting to €4,073 million (of which -€2,341 million relating to AUM and -
€1,732 million relating to AUC), has substantially zeroed the positive effect of the sales generated during the year, equal to €2,263 million relating to
Assets under Management-AUM and €1,830 relating to Assets under Custody-AUC.

Total financial assets (direct and indirect) thus reached €69,333 million, up 3.2% compared to the end of December 2017, thanks to a total net sales
of €6,222 million recorded in 2018. The quality of sales was also confirmed, which shows a percentage impact of “Guided products & services® on
TFA of 32.3%, in line with the end of 2017, and on Assets under Management of 66.8%, an improvement compared to 63.2% recorded at the end of
2017, thanks to the continuous refinement of the offer, with an intense activity on the advisory services and insurance/social security products.

It is note worthing that starting from 2018, data on direct sales and Assets under Custody-AUC included in the Advice and Plus advisory services
were reclassified as part of assets under management to better represent the advisory nature of the Advice and Plus services. For comparative
purposes the data for 2017 have been restated on a pro forma basis.

2,128

69,333

2,263
67,185
______ 22069 | piocy
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" AUM
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TFA12.31.2017 Aum AUC Direct Deposits Market Effect TFA 12.31.2018

AUC = Assets under custody
AUM = Assets under management
TFA = Total Financial Assets

8 Respectively, the Bank’s products and/or services developed by investing in UCITs selected from among those distributed for each asset class taking into account customers' different risk profiles and offered to the Bank’s
customers under the guided open architecture model. At the date of this report, the guided products category included the “Core Series” umbrella fund of funds, “Core Funds”, the Individual Savings Plans (“Piani Individuali
di Risparmio” or “PIR”) and the “Core Unit", “Advice Unit", “Core Multiramo” and “Advice Top Valor" and “Old Mutual” unit-linked policies, while the “Fineco Advice”, “Fineco Stars” and “Fineco Plus” advanced advisory
services (for investment) fall under the guided service category.
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The table below shows the figures for the balance of direct and indirect deposits of the Bank’s customers, including both those linked to a personal
financial advisor and those operating exclusively through the online channel.

Total financial assets

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 COMP % 12.31.2017 COMP % ABSOLUTE %|
Current accounts and demand deposits 22,065,889 31.8% 19,931,182 29.7% 2,134,707 10.7%
Time deposits and reverse repos 3,042 0.0% 9,533 0.0% (6,491) -68.1%
DIRECT DEPOSITS 22,068,931 31.8% 19,940,715 29.7% 2,128,216 10.7%
Segregated accounts 1,095 0.0% 6,729 0.0% (5,634) -83.7%
UCITS and other investment funds 24,853,033 35.8% 26,998,628 40.2% (2,145,595) -7.9%
Insurance products 7,618,203 11.0% 6,074,833 9.0% 1,543,370 25.4%
Asset under custody and Direct deposits under advisory 1,012,355 1.5% 482,573 0.7% 529,782 109.8%
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT BALANCE 33,484,686 48.3% 33,562,763 50.0% (78,077) -0.2%
Government securities, bonds and stocks 13,779,023 19.9% 13,681,074 20.4% 97,949 0.7%
ASSETS UNDER CUSTODY 13,779,023 19.9% 13,681,074 20.4% 97,949 0.7%
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 69,332,640 100.0% 67,184,552 100.0% 2,148,088 3.2%
of which Guided products & services 22,369,583 32.3% 21,227,005 31.6% 1,142,578 5.4%

The table below shows the figures for direct and indirect deposits solely for the personal financial advisors network’ customers. Total financial
assets, amounting to €59,910 million, increased by 3.5% compared to December 31, 2017, thanks to net sales of €5,453 million, partially absorbed
from a negative market effect.

Total financial assets - Personal Financial Advisors Network

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 COMP % 12.31.2017 COMP % ABSOLUTE %
Current accounts and demand deposits 16,564,769 27.6% 14,674,039 25.3% 1,890,730 12.9%
Time deposits and reverse repos 2,793 0.0% 8,424 0.0% (5,631) -66.8%
DIRECT DEPOSITS 16,567,562 27.7% 14,682,463 25.4% 1,885,099 12.8%
Segregated accounts 1,095 0.0% 6,729 0.0% (5,634) -83.7%
UCITS and other investment funds 24,476,015 40.9% 26,565,970 45.9% (2,089,955) -7.9%
Insurance products 7,545,142 12.6% 5,992,040 10.4% 1,553,102 25.9%
Asset under custody and Direct deposits under advisory 1,012,329 1.7% 482,571 0.8% 529,758 109.8%
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT BALANCE 33,034,581 55.1% 33,047,310 57.1% (12,729) 0.0%
Government securities, bonds and stocks 10,307,435 17.2% 10,157,116 17.5% 150,319 1.5%
ASSETS UNDER CUSTODY 10,307,435 17.2% 10,157,116 17.5% 150,319 1.5%
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS - PERSONAL FINANCIAL
ADVISORS NETWORK 59,909,578 100.0% 57,886,889 100.0% 2,022,689 3.5%
of which Guided products & services 22,342,564 37.3% 21,197,073 36.6% 1,145,491 5.4%
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Business performance (coxmuen)

The table below shows the figures for direct and indirect deposits for 2018 compared with the same period of the previous year, for both customers
linked to a personal financial advisor and online-only customers.

Net sales came to € 6,222 million, increased by 4.4% compared to the amount relating to the year ended at December 31, 2017.

Net sales
(Amounts in € thousand)
YEAR 2018 COMP % YEAR 2017 COMP % — oﬁn:gc;&s =
Current accounts and demand deposits 2,134,707 34.3% 1,655,516 27.8% 479,191 28.9%
Time deposits and reverse repos (6,539) -0.1% (193,479) -3.2% 186,940 -96.6%
DIRECT SALES 2,128,168 34.2% 1,462,037 24.5% 666,131 45.6%
Segregated accounts (5,598) -0.1% (3,758) -0.1% (1,840) 49.0%
Investment funds and other funds (140,273) -2.3% 2,299,626 38.6% (2,439,899) n.c.
Insurance products 1,828,637 29.4% 1,646,832 27.6% 181,805 11.0%
Asset under custody and Direct deposits under advisory 580,170 9.3% 82,882 1.4% 497,288 600.0%
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT 2,262,936 36.4% 4,025,582 67.6% (1,762,646) -43.8%
Government securities, bonds and stocks 1,830,410 29.4% 470,508 7.9% 1,359,902 289.0%
ASSETS UNDER ADMINISTRATION 1,830,410 29.4% 470,508 7.9% 1,359,902 289.0%
NET SALES 6,221,514 100.0% 5,958,127 100.0% 263,387 4.4%
of which Guided products & services 2,765,823 44.5% 4,559,314 76.5% (1,793,491) -39.3%

The table below shows the figures for direct indirect deposits solely for the personal financial advisors network’ customers for 2018 compared to the

previous year.

Net sales - Personal Financial Advisors Network

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR 2018 COMP % YEAR 2017 COMP % ABSOﬁE:gGES m
Current accounts and demand deposits 1,890,730 34.7% 1,252,370 23.2% 638,360 51.0%
Time deposits and reverse repos (5,718) -0.1% (132,586) -2.5% 126,868 -95.7%
DIRECT SALES 1,885,012 34.6% 1,119,784 20.7% 765,228 68.3%
Segregated accounts (5,598) -0.1% (3,758) -0.1% (1,840) 49.0%
Investment funds and other funds (132,127) -2.4% 2,271,437 42.0% (2,403,564) n.c.
Insurance products 1,830,387 33.6% 1,651,876 30.6% 178,511 10.8%
Asset under custody and Direct deposits under advisory 580,298 10.6% 82,910 1.5% 497,388 599.9%
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT 2,272,960 41.7% 4,002,465 74.1% (1,729,505) -43.2%
Government securities, bonds and stocks 1,295,366 23.8% 282,136 5.2% 1,013,230 359.1%
ASSETS UNDER ADMINISTRATION 1,295,366 23.8% 282,136 5.2% 1,013,230 359.1%
NET SALES 5,453,338 100.0% 5,404,385 100.0% 48,953 0.9%
of which Guided products & services 2,771,228 50.8% 4,560,961 84.4% (1,789,733) -39.2%
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Performance of main income statement aggregates
Operating income came to €625.3 million, up 6.5% compared to €586.9 million for the year 2017.

Net interest and Net fee and commission income contributed to the increase in the operating income as they rose, respectively, by 5.2%, 11.2%,
while Net trading, hedging and fair value income decreased by 8.3%.

The increase in Net interest of €13.9 million compared to the previous year was due to the increase in transactional liquidity and the higher
penetration of lending activity. In this regard it should be noted that the structure of the investments carried out by the Bank contributed to
maintaining a significant level of interest income, with the average gross rate on interest-earning assets standing at 1.30% (1.35% as at December
31, 2017).

Net fee and commission income increased €30.4 million compared to the previous year, mainly thanks to higher net fee and commission income
for for securities trading and order collection (+€3 million), the placement and management of managed asset products (+€123.8 million), collection
and payment services (+€2.9 million), other services (+€2.2 million), mainly relating to the annual fee on credit cards.

Net trading, hedging and fair value income was mainly generated by gains realised from the internalisation of securities and CFD derivatives,
financial instruments used for operational hedging of CFDs and the exchange differences on assets and liabilities denominated in currency,
decreased by 3.6 million compared to the previous year. Trading profit also incorporates gains and losses from the financial instruments recognised
in “Other assets mandatorily at fair value”, including, as described above, the class “C” preferred shares of Visa INC and the exposure in equity
securities versus the Voluntary Scheme established by the Interbank Fund for the Protection of Deposits, whose fair-value measurement resulted in
a gain of €1.6 million and in a loss of €3 million, respectively, in 2018. The item also includes the profits recognised in relation to the sale of
government securities recorded in the “Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income” for an amount of €1.7 million.

Operating costs remain under control, highlighting an increased by €12.5 million compared to the previous year (+€7.3 million for staff expenses,
of which €2.2 million from Fineco AM, and +€5.2 million for “Other administrative expenses net of Recovery of expenses”, of which €1.5 million from
Fineco AM). The 5.4% increase in operating costs (+3.8% net of Fineco AM), in fact, is limited compared to the expansion of assets, customers and
structure, confirming the strong operational leverage of the Bank and the widespread corporate culture in cost governance theme, certified by a
cost/income ratio of 39.3% (39.74% at 31 December 2017).

Net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments amounted to -€4.4 million on. It should be noted that accounting
standard IFRS 9, with application as of January 1st, 2018, introduced a new impairment accounting model for credit exposures and resulted in an
extension of the Bank’s scope of recognition (for additional information see Section 5 - Other aspects of Part A of the Notes to the Consolidated
Accounts), so comparison with 2017 is not significant. As at December 31, 2018 the item included adjustments, mainly related to retail commercial
loans, higher compared to 2017 as consequence of the significant increase in performing exposures (non-performing loans, on the other hand,
remained essentially unchanged compared to the previous year), and on the other hand, benefitted from write backs on transaction mainly with the
Parent Company, following the reduction in the exposures and in the improvement in their risk profile.

Other charges and provisions amounted to €21.4 million, up 12.4% compared to 2017, mainly due to greater charges for the annual, ordinary and
additional contribution to Deposit Guarantee Schemes (DGS) and to the annual contribution to the Solidarity Fund, paid to the Interbank Deposit
Guarantee Fund ("IDGF") for a total amount of €14.3 million compared to €10.6 million paid in 2017, partially offset by lower provisions for risks and
charges for legal disputes and claims. Note that the annual contribution paid to Deposit Guarantee Schemes in 2017 moreover benefited from the
adjustments of the contributions paid for 2015 and 2016 for a total amount of €1.3 million.

The Net income from investments stood at €1.1 million. The accounting standard IFRS 9 introduced significant changes in the classification and
measurement of financial instruments, so comparison with the previous year is not significant (for additional information see Section 5 - Other
aspects of Part A of the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts). The item includes write offs on new sovereign States, Supranational and government
bonds purchased during 2018 and, on the other hand, the write backs on exposures to debt securities issued by the Parent Company Unicredit
S.p.A. in relation to the reduction in the exposures and in the improvement in their risk profile.

Profit before tax from continuing operations amounted to €354.8 million, up 12.2% compared to previous year. Excluding the non-recurring
items 20189 mentioned before, the Profit before tax from continuing operations should be €359.5 million, up 9.4% compared to 201710 net of non-
recurring items.

The Net profit for the year amounted to €241.2million, showing an increase of 12.7% compared to €214.1 million of the previous year. Excluding
the non-recurring items 2018 mentioned before, the Net profit for the year should be €244.4 million, up 11.8% compared to 2017 net of non-
recurring items.

9 Change in fair value of the exposure in equity securities versus the Voluntary Scheme established by the Interbank Fund for the Protection of Deposits for an amount of -€3 million (€2 million net of the tax effect),
severance paid in for an amount of -€1.6 million (-€1.1 million net of the tax effect) and integration costs for an amount of €0.1 million (-€0.1 million) net of the tax effect).

10 Losses from write-offs and value adjustments made to the exposure in equity securities against the Voluntary Scheme established by Interbank Fund for the Protection of Deposits, for an amount of -€12.9 million (-8.6
million net of tax effect); release of integration costs estimated in the previous year, for an amount of + €0.4 million (+€0.3 million net of the tax effect); positive change in current taxes referring to the application of the
participation exemption on the capital gain realized in 2016 from the sale of the investment in VISA Europe Ltd, for an amount of +€3.9 million.
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Business performance (coxmuen)

Performance of main balance sheet aggregates

Loans and receivables with banks came to €3,058.9 million, substantially in line with the amount as at December 31, 2017 (+0.6%). The
exposures mainly consisted of the cash on deposit in reciprocal current accounts and time deposits with the Parent Company UniCredit S.p.A..

Loans and receivables with customers came to €2,955.1 million, up 38.8% compared to December 31, 2017, thanks to the increase in lending.
During the year, €248 million in personal loans and €411 million in mortgages were granted and €945 million in current account overdrafts was
arranged, with an increase in exposures in current account of €377 million; this has resulted an overall 46.4% (€2,632.3 million) aggregate increase
in loans to customers compared to December 31, 2017 (€1,798.5 million). Impaired loans net of impairment losses totalled €2.8 million (€2.9 million
as at December 31, 2017), with a coverage ratio of 88.23%; the ratio between impaired loans and loans to customers was 0.11% (0.16% as at
December 31, 2017).

Financial investments came to €18,231.2 million, up 9.1% compared to December 31, 2017. The carrying amount of the debt securities issued by
the Parent Company amount to €9,115.8 million, down compared to €10,838.9 million as at December 31, 2017. It is noted that during 2018 the
Parent Company repaid bonds at maturity with a nominal value of €1,680 million and $ 50 million; the Bank purchased government, Supranational
and government agency bonds.

Deposits from banks totaled €1,009.8 million, showing a slight increase in debts recorded at 31 December 2017 (+9%). Debts mainly include the
amount of repos traded with UniCredit S.p.A. and securities lending transactions guaranteed by sums of money made with other banks.

Deposits from customers came to €22,273.2 million, up 10.2% compared to December 31, 2017, due to the growth in direct deposits.

Shareholders' equity amounted to €975.7 million, up 33.3% compared to December 31, 2017. The increase is mainly due to the issue on January
31, 2018 of an Additional Tier 1 Perp bond (5.5 years) for an amount of €200 million, fully subscribed by the Parent Company, to the part of net
profit 2017 allocated to reserves, as resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on 11 April 2018, for an amount of €40.9 million, to the increase in
net profit 2018 compared to December 31, 2017 (+€27.1 million), partially offset by the purchases, made during 2018, of treasury shares in relation
to the "2017 PFA incentive system" for Financial Advisors identified as "Key personnel" and in relation to the "2015-2017 PFA PLAN" in favour of
selected Financial Advisors .

Communications and external relations

In 2018 the “Human Capital” campaign was confirmed and supported through the communications network; since 2017, the campaign has put
people at the heart of the Bank’s strategic communications project and their ability to manage the technology and innovation that FinecoBank offers
to its customers and to the network of personal financial advisors. Within the Bank's offering, the increasingly central role of the advisor and financial
advisory services are an integral part of communications, summed up in the claim: “Always Investing In The Most Advanced Technology We Know:
People.”

“The bank that simplifies banking” was confirmed at the heart of the unique positioning that Fineco continues to communicate and develops also in
2018.

The first half of 2018 represented for the Bank the period of maximum media exposure thanks to the planning of an important advertising flight in
February using all means of communication (TV, radio, financial press, digital media and posters), plus two additional flights, in April and May, using
TV only designed to support brand awareness over time.

Four TV flights dedicated to the trading segment were also planned during the year, which also involved the digital medium with acquisition
objectives.

The national press coverage to support the Private Banking segment with the campaign "You write private banking, you read Fineco” continued this
year too, alongside another press initiative at the local level. This extension to the local press reflects the need to increase visibility and protect our
local positioning thereby giving greater support to our managerial structures.

Numerous activities and events were organised for private and other customers across Italy, thanks also to partnerships with prestigious brands, as
well as experience exclusive events.

The 2018 edition of the Fineco Golf Club, took place between May and October, is becoming an increasingly strategic activity and a tool for the
retention and acquisition of new high-end customers and is an important event that has gained wide recognition in the golf arena.

Activities regarding Fineco UK have been strengthened since the beginning of the year. A multichannel communication campaign was launched and
courses and education webinars were planned to introduce the Bank’s offers and trading platforms to prospects and customers. In February 2018
FinecoBank took part in the London Forex Show where, among others, it was awarded the Best Forex Provider of the Year award. In November
2018 the new multi-subject communication campaign "The multicurrency Bank” was launched using TV, financial press and digital media.
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Incentive plans

The Board of Directors’ meeting of FinecoBank held on January 10, 2018 - in consideration of the favourable opinion of the Remuneration
Committee which met on January 9, 2018 - approved the following incentive systems subsequently approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of April

11, 2018:

2018 Incentive System for Employees categorised as “Key Personnel”;

Long-Term Incentive Plan 2018-2020 for employees;

2018 Incentive System for Personal Financial Advisors identified as “Key Personnel”;

Long-Term Incentive Plan 2018-2020 for Personal Financial Advisors identified as “Key Personnel”;
Long-Term Incentive Plan 2018-2020 for selected Personal Financial Advisors non identified Staff.

On February 6, 2018, in view of the positive outcome of the verification of the minimum entry conditions (at Bank level and Group level, where
applicable) and the individual conditions (compliance of conduct and continued employment) and the favourable opinion provided by the
Remuneration Committee in its meeting of February 5, 2018, the Board of Directors approved:

for the 2014 and 2015 Incentive Systems (Bonus Pool)™:

o the execution of the plans;

o the allocation of the second share tranche of the 2014 plan, awarded in 2015, corresponding to 112,440 free ordinary shares, in line
with the maximum amount approved by the Board of Directors on May 15, 2014;

o the allocation of the first share tranche of the 2015 plan, awarded in 2016, corresponding to 84.117 free ordinary shares, in line with
the maximum amount approved by the Board of Directors on January 22, 2015.

o a free capital increase, for a total amount of €64,863.81 corresponding to a total of 196,557 FinecoBank ordinary shares with a
nominal value of €0.33 each (with the same characteristics as those in circulation and with regular dividend entitiement), impartial
exercise of the authority granted to the Board of Directors by the Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting of June 5, 2014 and of April
23 2015, in accordance with Article 2443 of the Italian Civil Code. The dilution effect resulting from the above free capital increase
has been quantified as 0.03% of the fully diluted capital.

for the “2014-2017 Top Management Multi-Year Plan”:

o the execution of the plan;

o the allocation of n. 494,493 free ordinary shares to the beneficiaries of the second share tranche of the plan, awarded in 2015, in
line with the maximum amount approved by the Board of Directors on February 9 , 2015;

o a free capital increase, for a total amount of €163,182.69 corresponding to a total of 494,493 FinecoBank ordinary shares with a
nominal value of €0.33 each (with the same characteristics as those in circulation and with regular dividend entitlement), in partial
exercise of the authority granted to the Board of Directors by the Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting of June 5, 2014, in
accordance with Article 2443 of the Italian Civil Code. The dilution effect resulting from the above free capital increase has been
quantified as 0.08% of the fully diluted capital;

o  changes to the rules as regards entry conditions.

for the stock granting “2015-2017 Plan PFA™:

o the allocation to selected personal financial advisors of a number of ordinary shares to be given free, corresponding to a total
amount of € 19,968,999.99;

o the allocation of the first tranche in shares, equal to a third of the total amount;

o the purchase of treasury shares in consideration of the authorization obtained by the Supervisory Authority, pursuant to art. 77-78
EU Reg. No. 575/2013 of 26 June 2013 (CRR), consistently with the Shareholders' resolution.

for the “2017 PFA Incentive System” plan:

o the proposal for determination of the 2017 Bonus Pool for the Personal Financial Advisors;

o the proposals for the determination of the 2017 and deferments previous years’ bonus for personal financial advisors categorised as
“|dentified Staff”;

o the allocation of n. 27,644 FinecoBank shares, to be granted free of charge to the above-mentioned personal financial advisors in
accordance with the provisions of the Rules;

o the purchase of Treasury shares, in view of having obtained the authorisation from the Supervisory Authority, pursuant to Articles
77-78 EU 575/2013 of June 26, 2013 (CRR), in accordance with the shareholder meeting resolutions.

for the “2017 Incentive System (Bonus Pool)” plan:

o the FinecoBank “2017 Bonus Pool”;

o the proposals for the determination of the 2017 bonus for the Chief Executive Officer and General Manager and other Managers
with Strategic Responsibilities and other Identified Staff;

o the allocation of n. 142,290 FinecoBank ordinary shares, to be given free of charge to the above-mentioned Personnel in
accordance with the provisions of the Rules.

with reference to the “2016 Incentive System”:

o  the execution of the plan;

o the allocation of the second tranche in cash of the plan awarded in 2017.

for the “2016 PFA Incentive System” plan:
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o the execution of the plan;
o the allocation of the second tranche in cash of the plan, to be granted to the above-mentioned personal financial advisors ‘identified
Staff’, in accordance with the provisions of the Rules.
o with reference to the “2015 PFA Incentive System”:
o the execution of the plan;
o the allocation of the first tranche of the plan, equal to n. 27,103 FinecoBank phantom shares, to be granted to the above-mentioned
personal financial advisors “identified Staff”, in accordance with the provisions of the Rules.

The Board of Directors’ meeting of FinecoBank held on May 8, 2018 - in consideration of the favourable opinion of the Remuneration Committee
which met on May 4, 2018 - approved the promise of assigning maximum n. 905.066 FinecoBank ordinary shares to the beneficiaries of the “Long-
Term Incentive Plan 2018-2020 for employees* identified by the Bank.
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FinecoBank shares

Share information

In an year characterized by financial markets turmoil following the increasing geopolitical tensions and the political uncertainties in Italy, FinecoBank
shares stood out from the Italian equities landscape recording a strong relative performance compared to FTSE MIB index and to Euro STOXX
Banks index: since the beginning of the year FTSE MIB index and 'Euro STOXX Banks index were down respectively by 16% and 33%, while

FinecoBank shares increased by 3%.

As at December 31st, 2018, the share price was €8.78, up from the closing price at year-end 2017 of €8.54, and with an average value in 2018 of
€9.82. In addition, during 2018 the share price reached its all-time high at €11.89.

The company's market capitalisation amounted to €5,341 million as at December 31st, 2018.

YEAR 2014 YEAR 2015 YEAR 2016 YEAR 2017 YEAR 2018
Official price of ordinary shares (€)
- maximum 4.750 7.805 7.400 8.735 11.890
- minimum 3.808 4.438 4.622 5.345 7.956
- average 4173 6.479 5.980 6.914 9.823
- period-end 4.668 7.625 5.330 8.535 8.778
Number of shares (million)
- outstanding at period end 606.3 606.5 606.8 607.7 608.4
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The following pages contain the main indicators and results of the main business segments: Banking, Brokerage and Investing. Further to these it
has to be added the asset management activities carried out by the subsidiary Fineco AM, fully operational starting from 2 July 2018.

Given the Bank’s specific business model that provides for a high level of integration among its different activities, these main business segments
are interdependent. Indeed, the Bank offers its services (banking and investment services) through a network of personal financial advisors and
online and mobile channels that operate in a coordinated and integrated manner.

All the activities were carried out with the aim of obtaining economic results from the "industrial" management of the businesses, to minimise their
financial risk. The Bank's financial management approach is to manage risks with a view to protecting the industrial returns on the various
businesses while not assuming risk positions on its own account.

Banking

Banking and Payment cards

With regard to Banking and Payment cards, the Bank is constantly committed to offering its customers new services or improving existing services,
with a strong focus on digitization and innovation. In this context, during the 2018,the following main updates have been registered

e  The SCT Instant service (SEPA Instant Credit Transfer) has been launched so to allow the cash transfer between accounts in the SEPA
Area within 10 seconds. The service is running 24/7 and it is aimed at encouraging the usage of cash transfer making the service faster
and more reliable;

o the Vocal Recognition Service has been activated over the whole customer base; this service allows clients to access customer care
services by pronouncing a simple sentence (Vocal Password). This new identification method is based on vocal biometric technologies
allowing to identify the peculiarity of a specific voice and use them to create a unique voice print that the client can use as a password
when calling customer care so to have a frictionless and secure customer experience;
the processes for management and update of MIFID questionaires have been improved;
the Multicurrency service contract has been modified so to allow clients to use additional currencies: JPY, CAD and TRY;

e the account opening processes has been improved by allowing to sign the “Adesione al servizio firma grafometrica” form through
biometric signature;

e launch of Apple Pay, the new digital payment service that is free of charge and allows to pay in store, in-app and online, both on
MasterCard and VISA schemes, without having the physical credit card in the wallet but just using an eligible Apple device. Together with
the launch of Apple Pay service, Fineco also started a promotion targeted to the clients that are currently not holding a credit card; the
initiative is aimed at promoting the subscription of Fineco credit cards and offers the chance to reset the first year annual fee by spending
on Apple Pay;

o the Visa Infinite product has been improved with the introduction of the Standard offer, added to the existing Premium offer, so to better
match the Private segment needs;

o the strengthen of the services targeted to the UK market aimed at offering to UK residents the access to Fineco banking and credit
services though multichannel platforms dedicated to the UK market and the usage of web advertising and member-gets-member
initiatives targeted to UK residents.

With regard to the Regulatory matters, we would like to highlight the following:

o the European Directive 2015/2366 (also known as Directive PSD2) has come into force, with purposes to create a common payment
system within the European Union that will promote and push integration, competitiveness and increasing in the meantime the security
level;

o the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) has come into force on the 25th of May 2018, with aims at guaranteeing equal standards
for individual's personal data treatment within the European Union. The adoption of this new regulation confirms the Fineco’s constant
commitment in providing its client the maximum level of protection and transparency when threating their personal data.

There was an increase in the number of current accounts opened with the Bank, the effect of which is mainly recorded in the balance of direct
deposits, which rose from 19,941 million euros at December 31, 2017 to 22,069 million euros at December 31, 2018.
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(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR 2018 YEAR 2017 CHANGES
CREDIT PRODUCTS CARRYING CARRYING SPENDING CARRYING AMOUNT
SPENDING AMOUNT SPENDING AMOUNT AMOUNT % AMOUNT %|
Revolving credit cards 51,194 43,201 50,989 41,890 205 0.4% 1,311 3.1%
Credit cards full payment of
balance 2,851,868 277,241 2,586,400 246,535 265,468 10.3% 30,706 12.5%
Total 2,903,062 320,442 2,637,389 288,425 265,673 10.1% 32,017 11.1%

Mortgages, credit facilities and personal loans

For what regards Lending, FinecoBank continued to improve its personal loans and digital lending offer, with the following initiatives:

e improvement of the consolidation loan offer allowing clients to consolidate its loans and get up to €30,000 to be repaid in 72 instalments;
this product can be requested online with a completely paper-less procedure and the digital signature;

e introduction of the possibility to request, also through the app, a personal loan with instant evaluation, the service that allowing to receive
a feedback and disbursement in real time, operating 24/7, thanks to an internal rating system that evaluates in advance credit reliability
and income capacity of the requestor.

Furthermore, the mortgage offer has been improved through the introduction:

e  InMarch 2018, of a new product “Mutuo Rifinanziamento” allowing to obtain up to €500.000, at a fixed or variable rate, to be repaid in up
to 20 years; this product allows the requestor to transfer its own mortgage in FinecoBank and obtain, at the same time, further money to
be used to finance new project or investments with no purpose obligation.

e In December 2018, of the new product “Mutuo Remix” that it's a market disruption and offers clients a double advantage:

o customize the mortgage interest rate, at the moment of the loan request, by balancing the weights to be attributed to the fixed and
variable spread components (customized interest rate);

o reduce, after the mortgage has been granted, the weight attributed when requesting the loan: the client can reduce the variable
component and increase, as a consequence, the fixed one up to the 100%. With this option, the customer actually has the ability to
turn his rate into fixed over time, going to stabilize his installment (Remix option).

o)

Lastly, FinecoBank continued to improve the operational of Credit Lombard, adding new instruments given as collateral coming from non-collateral
dossiers (new feature "Additional Credit Lombard") and trasfering all pledged securities versus another dossier without any impact on credit line
(new feature " Migrazione Credit Lombard").

The planning and management of marketing campaigns activity also continued in 2018. This activity combines creative, promotional, logistics and
monitoring activities aimed at improving the positioning of the brand and the Fineco offer, through web advertising and / or word of mouth initiatives
(member gets member) addressed to the already customers.

The table below highlights an increase in “Personal loans and unsecured loans” and “current account credit facilities” compared to the same period
of the previous year, partially offset by a reduction in mortgages.

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR 2018 YEAR 2017 CHANGES

CREDIT PRODUCTS CARRYING CARRYING DISBURSEMENTS CARRYING AMOUNT

DISBURSEMENTS AMOUNT DISBURSEMENTS AMOUNT AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Personal loans and unsecured
loans 247,995 433,647 230,195 350,320 17,800 7.7% 83,327 23.8%
Current account credit facilities* 945,053 1,018,700 831,351 641,554 113,702 13.7% 377,146 58.8%
Mortgages 411,064 856,870 521,475 516,251 (110,411) -21.2% 340,619 66.0%
Total 1,604,112 2,309,217 1,583,021 1,508,125 21,091 1.3% 801,092 53.1%

* With regard to Current account credit facilities the column Disbursements shows the amounts granted.

Furthermore note that the amount at year-end of loans with a security collateral totaled to €924 million (€899 million related to “Credit Lombard”,
€18 million related to credit facilities secured by pledged and €7 million related to credit facilities with mandate for sale), equals to 98% of total
amount of credit lines granted.

FinecoBank - Reports and Accounts 2018 31




Consolidated Report on Operations

Results achieved in the main areas of activity covmuen)

Brokerage

2018 shows positive results in the brokerage, thanks to an integrated platform and a complete offer of services and tools to operate on markets,
associated with a diversified business model and a strategy focused on the long-term sustainability of growth of the Bank. The results have been
achieved in a very complex market phase that Fineco has faced with a strengthening of its operating efficiency and in productivity, focusing on
quality, transparency and innovation.

The achievement of legal requirements of Mifid 2 and ESMA have featured significantly the online brokerage industry, especially in a context of low
volatility. The 2018 has been a year of turning point for online trading. However, the Bank has consolidated its leadership in the Italian brokerage
market, considering traded amount and number of operations, with market shares of 24.75% and 22.38% respectively, as confirmed by Assosim’s
year-end data.

During 2018, the offer has been further expanded with the introduction of new services and functionalities:

e new graphics design of the ETF Center, with intraday chart for the most quoted titles, list of titles most present in the ETF's portfolios
replays of customers and chart of the most traded titles and more viewed by customers for a complete view and the updated ways on
tools;

e expansion of the CFD offer range, in particular with:

o Super CFD, which is characterized by a higher size and a reduced spread compared to the respective CFDs already offered;

CFD operations with underlying commodities, also allowing overnight negotiation;

CFDs on the volatility of European shares, an absolute innovation in ltaly;

New CFD operations with underlying shares listed on German, French and Italian markets, available on the website, app and

Powerdesk;

e new tools on the PowerDesk platform, to improve its usability, such as, for example, best & worst dynamic, basket order multi panel,
duplication of the watch list of the instruments, possibility to select one of its current accounts on which to operate and, for the technical
analysis, the introduction of the Heiken Ashi candles and the Ichimoku indicator;

o Daily Options, with underlying assets such as CFDs on indices, on “Currency Pair”, or on commodity future, whose trading, in euros and
without commissions, allows to exploit the daily volatility of the underlying, with “Quotes” and “Profit & Loss” provided in push mode;

e Super intraday margination, available on website, app and PowerDesk, which allows to trade, on the actions of the main Italian and
foreign companies, with a leverage effect higher than that offered with intraday margination, without any additional commission;

e creation of an operation package dedicated to the Professional client. An online tool allows customers, who have the characteristics, to
request in a simple and direct classification to "Professional user on request". This type of customer can access all Fineco tools with
professional conditions (operation on a wide range of OTC bonds, with access to new emissions on the primary market, and trading on
the KID-free instruments) and manage more broadly the leverage (up to 100x on CfD Logos, reduced margins on CFD and CFD FX
compared to retail customers) and risk, all without additional costs on the operation;
options on the Chicago Board Options Exchange (CBOE);

e new Futures Commission range: up to 1 euro/lot on IDEM and Eurex and 2 USD on CME.

o O O

The following table shows the number of orders on financial instruments recorded during the 2018 of the same period of the previous year.

(Amounts in € thousand)

CHANGES

YEAR 2018 YEAR 2017 ABSOLUTE %
Orders - Equity Italia (including internalised orders) 7,232,629 7,348,739 (116,110) -1.6%
Orders - Equity USA (including internalised orders) 1,245,012 933,401 311,611 33.4%
Orders - Equity other markets (including internalised orders) 515,151 531,582 (16,431) -3.1%
Total Equity orders 8,992,792 8,813,722 179,070 2.0%
Orders - Bonds 488,314 498,338 (10,024) -2.0%
Orders - Derivatives 3,346,848 2,834,055 512,793 18.1%
Orders - Forex 712,753 875,734 (162,981) -18.6%
Orders - CFDs 2,719,951 3,641,412 (921,461) -25.3%
Orders - Funds 2,476,182 2,423,506 52,676 2.2%
Orders- Repo - 2,863 (2,863) -100.0%
TOTAL ORDERS 18,736,840 19,089,630 (352,790) -1.8%

It is worth nothing the increase of in orders on US equities, which increased by 33.4%, and the good performance reported by the orders on
derivatives, which increased by 18.1 %. The orders on CFDs decreased by 25.3% and the orders on Forex decreased by 18.6%.

The table below shows the volume of trades carried out as direct counterparty in orders placed by customers, resulting from the internalization of
orders received on shares, CFDs and Logos, recorded in the 2018 compared to the previous year.
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(Amounts in € thousand)

CHANGES
YEAR 2018 YEAR 2017 ABSOLUTE %|
Equity (internationalization) 67,620,264 52,665,758 14,954,506 28.4%
Forex 43,345,841 52,211,278 (8,865,437) -17.0%
CFD and Logos 74,818,404 48,093,537 26,724,867 55.6%
Total "internalized" volumes 185,784,509 152,970,573 32,813,936 21.45%

Investing

The Bank uses a guided open architecture business model to offer customers an extremely wide range of asset management products - comprising
collective asset management products, such as units of UCITS and SICAV shares - from carefully selected Italian and international investment firms,
pension and insurance products as well as investment advisory services.

With regard to asset management products, during 2018, the range of these products was further enhanced with the addition to the platform of over
410 new ISINs and 3 new Investment Firms available to customers.

It is worth noting the entry into the platform of Fineco Asset Management DAC’ funds, company wholly owned by FinecoBank. Initially, starting from
July 2018, the company obtained the necessary authorisations from Luxembourg’s Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier to replace
Amundi Luxembourg S.A. in the management of the “Core Series” investment funds. In a second moment, starting from September 2018, Fineco
AM launched the new range of funds under delegation, using partnerships with the best international managers. Fineco AM’s structure will take full
advantage of the opportunities offered by Fineco’s open architecture and will allow the Bank to more closely cater to its customers' needs, to more
efficiently select products and to achieve greater profits through its vertically integrated business model.

With regard to pension products, at the end of March 2018, the range was expanded with the launch of Core Pension, an open-end pension fund of
Amundi SGR for long-term investments exclusively accessible to the FinecoBank network. It is a container where clients’ savings needs for
retirement can be combined according to their work cycle and sustainable risk profile and which offers the opportunity to benefit from the tax
advantages typical of supplementary pension instruments. The product is characterized by high flexibility in the composition of the portfolio, by
offering four alternative investment segments with increasing equity and a guaranteed line in which to invest. During 2018 Core Pension inflows
around €60 milion, with over 5,000 acceptances.

About the insurance advisory services, in March the range of the products was extended through the new version of “Multi line” with 5 combinations
of the GEFIN Separate Account and Internal Insurance Funds (AIF) denominated Core Multiramo Extra (net inflows from the beginning of the year of
approximately €90 million). In April the new Core Multiramo Target was launched which uses the Aviva's GEFIN Separate Account as the main
initial investment and then gradually transfers assets to an Equity Internal Insurance Fund (AIF) according to the "Target" program defined upon
subscription (net inflows from the beginning of the year of approximately €740 million). Lastly, in December, with the aim to meet the increasing
customization needs of Fineco Private Bankers and the network of consultants with high standing customers, but also in order to accommodate
assets deriving from requests for transfers of private customers with positions on other placers, the Luxembourg Lombard Private Client Insurance
Unit-linked policy was launched, with a minimum investment of €500 thousand.

As part of the "Insurance Brokerage” business, a collaboration was launched with the broker First Advisory, through which we launched, in March,
the new temporary "High Protection” life insurance policy of Eurovita dedicated to Private customers.

As regards consulting services, 2018 was characterized by the launch of "Plus", the exclusive service dedicated to the FinecoBank network: a
consulting contract through which the Consultant can offer its customers highly diversified and freely customizable portfolios.

The main feature offered by "Plus" is the global consulting service offered that spans asset management (funds and SICAVs) as well as asset
administration products and ETPs (ETFs, ETCs, ETNs) and insurance investment products.

"Plus" offers analytical and professional reporting, including through an APP, to analyse performance, monitor the actual risk/ return ratio, the
diversification level, the quality of the instruments, with periodic portfolio checks. With just one “click”, you can send the contract, the diagnosis and,
where applicable, transfer the products in the ordinary securities account, in line with FinecoBank’s typical approach.

In 2018 the Bank also improved the reporting of the advisory service Fineco Advice, enriching it with the withholding taxes applied to Funds/Sicav
sales and dividends, in order to display also for performance gross of taxation. Furthermore, the indication of the income taxes on each instrument
has been added. Improvements have been made to the Advice platform available to the network, simplifying its use and use by personal financial
advisors.
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(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGE

12.31.2018 COMP % 12.31.2017 COMP % ABSOLUTE %
UCITS and other investment funds 24,853,033 74.2% 26,998,628 80.4% (2,145,595) -7.9%
Insurance products 7,618,203 22.8% 6,074,833 18.1% 1,543,370 25.4%
Segregated accounts 1,095 0.0% 6,729 0.0% (5,634) -83.7%
Asset under custody and Direct deposits under advisory 1,012,355 3.0% 482,573 1.4% 529,782 109.8%
Total assets under management 33,484,686 100.0% 33,562,763 100.0% (78,077) -0.2%
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The network of personal financial advisors

With regard to the network of personal financial advisors, 2018 was characterized by the entry into force of MiFID Il and by the return of volatility in
financial markets.

The introduction of MiFID Il legislation did not entail significant changes in FinecoBank's network business, which has always based its consultancy
model on transparency towards the customer and that was able to take advantage of a technological infrastructure that has allowed to support
personal financial advisors in the magement activity of formalities related to the introduction of new regulations. These distinctive elements allowed
personal financial advisors to dedicate themselves with a greater intensity to customer assistance activity, with the main aim of strengthening and
consolidating the relationship with the client, while at the same time increasing the concepts of transparency legislation itself.

Despite the complex market phase, characterized by ther return of volatility, the network of personal financial advisors has confirmed its ability to act
as a privileged interlocutor in the financial planning of customers. The total net sales recorded as at December 31, 2018 amounted to €5,453 million,
of which Assets under management of €2,273 million. The sales from Advisory services amounted to €2,771 million. 85,214 were the current
accounts opened through the network of personal financial advisors.

With regard to the Private segment, it is noted that the total net sales amounted to approximately €2,133 million and the overall assets as at
December 31, 2018 amounted to approximately €23,438 million, equal to 39% of the network’s total assets; the number of private customers is
26,555 as of 31 December 2018, equal to 2% of total customers.

The growth recorded, as also noted in the past, was mainly produced by the existing network, with no special contributions made by tactical
commercial and recruitment campaigns, thanks also to the continuous refinement of the offer continues, with an intense activity on advisory services
and insurance / social security products characterized by a planning approach to objectives and constant monitoring and risk control. The proximity
to our customers is also explained through events organized throughout the country, with the aim of providing information on the relevant financial
issues. Since the beginning of the year, capillary no 1,112 events that saw the participation of over 42,000 customers and prospects.

With regard to the quality of sales, it is note worthing that existing network has seen a growth in the average per capita portfolio of 4.7% yoy which
over the 12 months, with an increase in the managed assets of 3.5% yoy and of well 5.4% yoy on Guided Products, compared to the end of 2017.

Simultaneously, the input on recruitment selectivity has been strategically strengthened, with the main objective of increasing the average quality of
the network as well. The Bank more closely focused on the targets of interest, all of which should share:

e customer-centric view of the business;
e  operations focused on advice and transparency;
e tendency to operate in a dynamic and modern environment, characterized by high technological content.

During 2018, 70 new personal financial advisors were recruited from the network, the traditional banks and private banking sectors. As part of the
"youth programme" designed to introduce young graduates in the financial profession, 51 new advisors were recruited.

At December 31, 2018, the network consisted of 2,578 personal financial advisors distributed in the territory with 390 financial shops (Fineco
Center), managed directly by the Bank or by the personal financial advisors themselves. There is also continued investment in the commercial
structures used by personal financial advisors, which contribute to raising the image and giving more and more coverage to the presence of the
Bank in the Italian territory.

Net sales - Personal Financial Advisors Network

The table below shows the breakdown of sales attributable to the Personal Financial Advisors network as at December 31, 2018 compared to
previous year.

(Amounts in € thousand)

CHANGES

YEAR 2018 COMP % YEAR 2017 COMP % ABSOLUTE %
Current accounts and demand deposits 1,890,730 34.7% 1,252,370 23.2% 638,360 51.0%
Time deposits and reverse repos (5,718) -0.1% (132,586) -2.5% 126,868 -95.7%
DIRECT SALES 1,885,012 34.6% 1,119,784 20.7% 765,228 68.3%
Segregated accounts (5,598) -0.1% (3,758) -0.1% (1,840) 49.0%
Investment funds and other funds (132,127) -2.4% 2,271,437 42.0% (2,403,564) n.c.
Insurance products 1,830,387 33.6% 1,651,876 30.6% 178,511 10.8%
Asset under custody and Direct deposits under advisory 580,298 10.6% 82,910 1.5% 497,388 599.9%
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT 2,272,960 41.7% 4,002,465 74.1% (1,729,505) -43.2%
Government securities, bonds and stocks 1,295,366 23.8% 282,136 5.2% 1,013,230 359.1%
ASSETS UNDER ADMINISTRATION 1,295,366 23.8% 282,136 5.2% 1,013,230 359.1%
NET SALES 5,453,338 100.0% 5,404,385 100.0% 48,953 0.9%
of which Guided products & services 2,771,228 50.8% 4,560,961 84.4% (1,789,733) -39.2%
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Total financial assets - Personal Financial Advisors Network

The table below shows the breakdown of sales attributable to the PFA network as at December 31, 2018. Total financial assets, amounting to
€59,910 million, increased by 3.5% compared to December 31, 2017, thanks to the positive contribution of direct sales generated during the year,
equal to €5,453 million, despite the negative market effect recorded in 2018, which substantially reduced the growth in assets under management
and assets under custody.

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 COMP % 12.31.2017 COMP % ABSOLUTE %|
Current accounts and demand deposits 16,564,769 27.6% 14,674,039 25.3% 1,890,730 12.9%
Time deposits and reverse repos 2,793 0.0% 8,424 0.0% (5,631) -66.8%
DIRECT DEPOSITS 16,567,562 27.7% 14,682,463 25.4% 1,885,099 12.8%
Segregated accounts 1,095 0.0% 6,729 0.0% (5,634) -83.7%
UCITS and other investment funds 24,476,015 40.9% 26,565,970 45.9% (2,089,955) -7.9%
Insurance products 7,545,142 12.6% 5,992,040 10.4% 1,553,102 25.9%
Asset under custody and Direct deposits under advisory 1,012,329 1.7% 482,571 0.8% 529,758 109.8%
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT 33,034,581 55.1% 33,047,310 57.1% (12,729) 0.0%
Government securities, bonds and stocks 10,307,435 17.2% 10,157,116 17.5% 150,319 1.5%
ASSETS UNDER CUSTODY 10,307,435 17.2% 10,157,116 17.5% 150,319 1.5%
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS - PERSONAL FINANCIAL
ADVISORS NETWORK 59,909,578 100.0% 57,886,889 100.0% 2,022,689 3.5%
of which Guided products & services 22,342,564 37.3% 21,197,073 36.6% 1,145,491 5.4%
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Human resources

The parent: FinecoBank S.p.A.

As at December 2018, the Bank’s employees are 1,154 up compared to 1,120 as at December 31, 2017. The breakdown was as follows:

HUMAN RESOURCES 31 DECEMBER 2018 31 DECEMBER .2017
FinecoBank employees 1,157 1,119
Group employees seconded to FinecoBank (+) - 4
FinecoBank employees seconded to the Group (-) (3) (3)
Total human resources 1,154 1,120

During 2018, activities continued, with particular attention to the gender topics, to strengthen and optimise the areas dedicated to business
development, organisational support and risk control and management. This led to the hiring of 127 workers, of which:

e 7 from other Group Companies;
e 120 from the market.

Out of the 120 new recruits from the market, the majority were employed in the Customer Relationship Management area, confirming the strong and
ongoing focus on young graduates. Customer Relationship Management forms the starting point of a pathway of professional development that can
lead to different roles in the Company.

In continuity with the past years, we put our effort in attracting new talents, with particular focus on Millennials, also thanks to education initiatives
aimed at raising the middle management awareness on the correct understanding and management of the new generation behavioural matters.

2018 showed a significant use of internal job rotation that involved 29 resources enabling, on one hand, to cover the vacant positions within the
Company, and on the other hand, to guarantee the continuous staff professional development.

During the year, a total of 89 employees left the bank, including:

e  32resignations;
e 29 transfers to Group Companies;
e 28 for other reasons.

The Bank's employees can be broken down as follows:

MEN WOMEN TOTAL
CATEGORY 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
Executives 22 23 4 4 26 27
Managers 256 239 103 98 359 337
Professional Areas 380 368 392 387 772 755
Total 658 630 499 489 1,157 1.119

As at December 31, 2018, part-time staff in the Bank amounted to 89, accounting for 8% of employees, with women employees representing around
43% of the workforce. The average length of service was 9 years and the average age was around 40.

Employee training

In 2018, employees training was focused both on the acquisition and consolidation of specific skills required by the company needs, and on the
updating of individual knowledge, with specific focus on mandatory, technical and linguistic training.

A breakdown of training hours by training area is presented below:

TRAINING AREA HOURS OF TRAINING
Mandatory 8,414
Technical 14,183
Foreign Language 9,918
Conduct - Management 429
Total 32,944
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Human resources (CONTINUED)

Mandatory training

FinecoBank is committed to spreading and enhancing the Risk and Compliance Culture, allowing our business to be sustainable and profitable.

In particular, during 2018, the relevance of the Compliance Culture was further underlined, considering its importance in promoting fundamental
values such as transparency and respect, that represent the basis of FinecoBank business.

For this reason, FinecoBank paid significant attention to mandatory training. All employees had the opportunity to attend the courses both using the
Group e-learning platform (My Learning), and through training classrooms dedicated to specific subjects (e.g Anti Money Laundering, Financial
Sanctions, Volcker Rule). In addition to this, attendance percentages were periodically monitored in order to ensure mandatory subjects learning
within the Company, protecting it against operational, legal and reputational risks.

Technical training

During the last year, specific training sessions were organized (internally or involving external providers) in order to develop technical skills
necessary to improve not only the productivity, but also employees’ specialisation levels.

In 2018 all the employees had the chance to attend, on a voluntary basis, the “Risk Cross Functions” course, an online training concerning Bank
risks, accessible through the Group My Learning platform.

A Group e-learning catalogue (MyCampus) has been extended to all the employees, increasing the e-learning offer on different topics.

In order to ensure high standards of service quality and customer care, training courses were organised within the Customer Care unit for a total of
11,566 hours. Training was especially focused on technical skills and behavioural learning.

Considering the success of the “Leadership Training Program” experienced by the CRM Team Leaders in 2017, in 2018 other Bank’s functions were
involved in this training path dedicated to managers, consisting of classroom lessons, coaching and on-the-job training. The aim of this initiative was
to strengthen their managerial skills and manage their role in a coherent and effective manner.

The Business Continuity training plan was carried on with the support of ad hoc training tracked in specific registers.

Foreign language training

Considering the importance of linguistic training, the Bank provided employees with a free access platform for English learning by educational tools
such as video, role-playing and virtual classrooms. In 2018, around 450 employees subscribed and regularly used it.

Moreover, in the year, around 240 employees attended classroom or telephone English courses, according to their specific needs and their
managers considerations.

The subsidiary: Fineco Asset Management Designated Activity Company (Dac)
As at December 31, 2018, the Company’s employees are 13 of whom 4 women and 9 men and the average age is around 35.

The hirings from the market of the 2018 are due to the company’s staff constitution and the selected resources are dedicated to business, staff and
control functions.
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Technology infrastructure

There are essentially six elements to the Bank's information system:

e  Banking application software;

e  On-line Trading system (dedicated applications for the real-time sale/purchase of securities and financial instruments on the main
European and American markets);

e A management system for the operations room and for institutional investors, and access to the information/order sections of
Italian/foreign markets;

e A management system for investment services such as Funds, SICAVs and Bank Insurance;

e  Acredit and debit card management system, with the issue of cards for VISA and MasterCard circuits;

e Apersonal financial advisors network management system, enabling advisors to work with all the Bank’s products through a single portal.

As for Fineco AM, the company uses a third-party platform for the management of investment services.

In 2018, the ICT structure carried out its usual activities for technological renewal, consolidation and development of the Information System in order
to provide new and more versatile added value services to customers.

Specifically, from an architectural perspective, work continued on optimising infrastructure and applications, as well as the continuous improvement
and fine-tuning of application security architecture.

The main project activities completed include:

o  offer of the new financial advice service Plus and of the new product Private Insurance;

e  offer of new trading products: CFD with underlying Commodities, Daily Options, CBOE Options, Lending super Intraday and new CFD
with underlying shares listed on German, French and Italian markets;

availability of professional trading platform PowerDesk to customers on the English market;

introduction of Instant Payment;

enrichment of mortgages offers with new assumption “Refinancing” and the new product “Mutuo Fineco Remix”;

activation of the voice authentication system for retail customers;

offer of the new mobile payment platform Apple Pay;

enrichment of the mobile apps with new services: Plus, Logos Day, Extracash Instant Approval, Instant payment.

The regulatory activities include:

implementation required to be compliant with the new GDPR UE Regulation;

adherence to the dematerialized checks (CIT) management system;

implementations required to be compliant with the IDD directive for insurance product placement;

implementations of the information systems required to be compliant with the financial reporting and regulatory obligations deriving from
the entry into force of new accounting standards and/or new provisions from the Supervisory Authorities.
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Internal control system

The internal control system is a fundamental part of the overall governance system of banks; it ensures that operations are carried out in line with
the Bank strategies and policies and based on principles of sound and prudent management.

Circular no. 285 of December 17, 2013 as amended defines the principles and guidelines to which the internal control system of banks must
conform. The circular defines the general principles of organisation, identifies the role and responsibilities of governing bodies, and sets out
the characteristics and roles of corporate control functions.

The internal control system must provide protective measures that cover all types of business risk. The primary responsibility for these tasks
lies with the bank’s bodies, each in accordance with its specific duties. The structure of tasks and lines of responsibility of corporate functions
and bodies must be clearly specified.

Banks must apply the provisions according to the proportionality principle, i.e. taking into account the operating scale and organisational complexity,
the nature of the activities carried out, and the type of services provided.

As part of the supervisory review and evaluation process, the European Central bank or the Bank of Italy verify the internal control system in terms
of completeness, suitability, functionality (in terms of efficiency and effectiveness) and reliability of banks.

In accordance with the provisions laid down by the Supervisory Authority, the Bank's internal control system consists of a set of rules, functions,
organisational structures, resources, processes and procedures aimed at ensuring the achievement of the following objectives, in compliance
with the principles of sound and prudent management:

o verifying the implementation of the Bank’s strategies and policies;

e containing risk within the limits set out in the Bank Risk Appetite Framework - "RAF";

e preventing the Bank’s involvement, even if unintentional, in unlawful activities (with specific reference to money laundering,
usury and the financing of terrorism);

protecting the value of assets and preventing losses;

ensuring the effectiveness and efficiency of corporate processes;

ensuring the security and reliability of the Bank information and ICT procedures;

ensuring compliance of transactions with the law and supervisory regulations, as well as internal policies, procedures and regulations
issued by FinecoBank and the Parent Company as well.

In terms of the methods applied, the Bank's internal control system is based on four types of controls:

o level one controls ("line controls"): these are controls for individual activities and are carried out according to specific operational
procedures based on a specific internal regulation. Monitoring and continuously updating these processes is entrusted to "process
supervisors" who are charged with devising controls able to ensure the proper performance of daily activities by the staff concerned, as
well as the observance of any delegated powers. The processes subject to control relate to units that have contact with customers, as
well as completely internal Bank units;

e level two controls: these are controls related to daily operations connected with the process to measure quantifiable risks and are carried
out by units other than operating units, on an ongoing basis. The Risk Management function controls market, credit and operational risks,
as regards compliance with limits assigned to operating functions and the consistency of operations of individual production areas with
established risk/return objectives; the Compliance unit is responsible for controls on non-compliance risks; for regulatory areas which
already have types of control performed by the Bank's specialised structures, monitoring of compliance risk is assigned to these
structures based on the "Indirect Coverage" operating model, also adopted by the Parent Company;

o level three controls: these controls are typical of internal auditing, based on analysis of information obtained from databases or company
reports, as well as on-site controls. The purpose of these controls is to check the functioning of the overall internal control system and
information communication technology system (ICT audit) and identify any anomalous trends, or infringements of procedures or
regulations. These controls are assigned to the Internal Audit function, which operates at central level, at UniCredit S.p.A., based on a
specific service agreement;

e institutional supervisory controls: these refer to controls by the Bank’s bodies, including in particular the Board of Statutory Auditors and
the Supervisory Body pursuant to Legislative Decree no. 231 of 8 June 2001.

Considering the functions and units involved, the Internal Control System is based on:

e control bodies and functions including, according to their respective responsibilities, the Board of Directors, the Risk and Related Parties
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Appointments and and Sustainability Committee the Chief Executive Officer and General
Manager!?, the Board of Statutory Auditors, the Supervisory Body set up pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/01 and the corporate control
functions (Risk Management, Compliance?, Internal Audit) as well as other company functions with specific internal control duties'3;

11 Also appointed as "Director responsible for the internal control and risk management system" in accordance with principle 7.P.3 of the Corporate Governance Code of listed companies.

This function includes the Anti Money Laundering and Anti Terrorism Service, responsible for managing the correct application of regulations on anti-money laundering and combating the financing of terrorism. The
Compliance Officer is also appointed Head of the Anti-Money Laundering Function.

The legislative framework and the codes of conduct assign control tasks to specific functions - other than corporate control functions - whose work should be seen as being a functional part of the Internal Control System.
For the Bank in particular, these include the Local Control System for legislation concerning related-party transactions carried out with associated persons in a conflict of interest situation (under the responsibility of the
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Internal control system

e procedures for the coordination of entities involved in the internal control and risk management system, which provide for:
o  cooperation and coordination among control functions, through specific information flows that are formalised in internal regulations
and through managerial committees dedicated to control issues;
o  application of the Group coordination model defined as part of the management and coordination activity carried out by the Parent
Company;
o definition of information flows both between corporate bodies and control functions within the Bank, and with the Parent Company,
in order for the latter to be able to properly carry out its management and coordination activities.

Finally, it should be noted that, under Article 49, paragraph 1, of the Regulation (EU) No. 468/2014 of the European Central Bank (ECB/2014/17)
(the SSM - Single Supervisory Mechanism - Framework Regulation), the ECB publishes, as of September 4, 2014, a periodically updated list,
containing the names of supervised entities and groups that fall under the direct supervision of the ECB (“significant supervised entities” and
“significant supervised groups”, as defined in Article 2, points 16) and 22) of the SSM Framework Regulation), indicating the specific reason for
direct supervision for each of them, and, if classified as significant based on size, the total value of the assets of the entity or group supervised. The
Bank, as a "credit institution established in a participating Member State" belonging to the UniCredit group (classified as a "significant supervised
group"), is included in the list of "significant supervised entities".

As regards the subsidiary Fineco Asset Management DAC, which has formally set up at the end of 2017 but not and has started its business from
July 2018, the organizational structure establishes that the Compliance and Risk Management activities have performed by internal functions within
the company, while Internal Audit will be outsourced to a specific UniCredit S.p.A. structure.

Main risks and uncertainties

For more details of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Bank in the current market situation, see Part E — Information on risks and hedging
policies of the Notes to the consolidated accounts.

Corporate Secretariat Unit of the Legal & Corporate Affairs Department), the Nominated Official in charge of drawing up company accounts pursuant to Article 154-bis of the Consolidated Finance Act (identified as the
Bank's CFO), the Occupational Health and Safety Officer; the Human Resources function, the Head of Business Continuity & Crisis Management, and the Head of Outsourcing Management (Costs Manager Assistant). All
corporate functions, other than corporate control functions, also participate in the Internal Control System by carrying out the level-one controls included in the business processes within their responsibility.
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Organisational structure

The organisational structure of the Bank is consistent with the Group Organisation Guidelines issued by the Parent Company.
The Guidelines set out organisational principles and rules designed to ensure their uniform application across all Group Legal Entities, through:

e clear organisational principles and criteria;

o specific organisational documents;

e  suitable processes for organisational changes.
During the first half of 2018 several changes were made to the organisational structure. In particular, as part of the Global Business Department,
Legal & Corporate Affairs Department and of the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) Department some activities were redistributed and the affected units
reorganised accordingly, with the aim of improving their efficiency and, where possible, reducing the number of hierarchical reports to the
departments.

On 1 March 2018, the Bank's Board of Directors appointed the Data Protection Officer, in compliance with article 39 of Regulation (EU) 2016/679 on
the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of their personal data (GDPR).

During the second half of 2018, the responsibilities and activities of the Investment Services and Private Banking Department were redistributed
between the GBS (Global Banking Services) Department and Network PFA Department, which has been renamed Network PFA Department &
Private Banking. Consequently, the Investment Services and Private Banking Department has been canceled. Furthermore, with regard to the /ICT
Department, a reorganization of this Department was carried out, identifying a single point of governance and supervision for the ICT and IT security
processes.

Organisational Model

The Bank’s current organisational model is based on a functional model, which favours economies of scale and facilitates the development of
vertical skills and knowledge within each area. The model guarantees the necessary decision-making mechanisms, whilst maintaining the
"horizontal link" between the various functions. Although the current arrangement applies the concept of “functional specialisation”, a project-based
approach is maintained for every phase of definition and release of products and services.

The horizontal links are guaranteed by the work of specific committees that monitor business lines and the progress of the most important projects,
also to guarantee the necessary synergies of distribution channels.

In general, the model sets out structured organisational rankings on four levels (Department, Unit, Team and Technical Units) based on their size
and the organisational complexity of overseen operations.

The following organisational units report to the Chief Executive Officer and General Manager: Network PFA Department & Private Banking, Global
Business Department, CFO (Chief Financial Officer) Department, CRO (Chief Risk Officer) Department, Network Controls, Monitoring And Services
Department, Legal & Corporate Affairs Department, GBS (Global Banking Services) Department, Human Resources Unit, Compliance Unit, and the
Identity & Communication Team.

The organisational model identifies three main functional lines, which govern:

o the sales network (Network PFA & Private Banking Department);
e  Trading, Banking and Credit products and the investment services (Global Business Department);
e operational functioning (GBS Department).

In summary:

o  The PFA Network & private Banking Department is responsible for overseeing the management and development of the personal
financial advisors network;

o the Global Business Department is responsible for overseeing the development of Trading, Banking, Credit and Investing products and
the financial advisory services provided to the Bank’ customers;

e  The GBS (Global Banking Services) Department coordinates the organisational units in charge of monitoring the organisational/operating
processes and the ICT and logistics systems needed to ensure the effective and efficient operation of business support systems. The
following organisational units report to the GBS Department: ICT & Security Office Department (CIO), CRM — Customer Relationship
Management — Department, Organisation & Bank Operations Department, Financial Operations Department, Network Services Unit,
General Services Unit, and the PFA Operational Monitoring & Private Bankers team.

The synergies between the distribution channels and the monitoring of decision-making processes that cut across the Departments are ensured by a
Management Committee.

As regards audit activities, the Bank, in line with the instructions of the Parent Company, has adopted an outsourcing model based on a specific
service agreement signed with UniCredit S.p.A.. Under the model, the Risk and Related Parties Committee (a committee established within the
Board of Directors) is responsible for liaising with the Bank and the outsourcer, in addition to supporting the Board of Directors — with information,
advisory, recommendation and investigation functions — using a risk-oriented approach to identify the guidelines for the entire internal control system
and the assessment of its effectiveness and efficiency.
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Ol’ganisational structure (CoNTINUED)
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Business Continuity Plan (BCP)

As required by the applicable regulations, the Bank has adopted a model that comprises organisational units dedicated to managing Business
Continuity and Crises, both in normal operating conditions and in emergency situations.

The Bank’s Business Continuity and Crisis Management framework includes the management plan for emergency events and the business
continuity plan. These plans are an integral part of the disaster recovery plan (which establishes the measures for the restoration of applications and
information technology systems affected by disasters) and of the cyber attack plan (which sets out the strategies — for systemic processes — for
handling large scale computer attacks).

These Plans describe the crisis management procedures and are updated and checked regularly to ensure their effectiveness and adequacy.

44 Reports and Accounts 2018 - FinecoBank



Main balance sheet aggregates

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES
ASSETS 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Cash and cash balances 6 613 (607) -99.0%
Financial assets held for trading 6,876 8,827 (1,951) -22.1%
Loans and receivables with banks 3,058,882 3,039,207 19,675 0.6%
Loans and receivables with customers 2,955,074 2,129,219 825,855 38.8%
Financial investments 18,231,182 16,715,041 1,516,141 9.1%
Hedging instruments 8,187 10,048 (1,861) -18.5%
Property, plant and equipment 16,632 15,205 1,427 9.4%
Goodwill 89,602 89,602 - -
Other intangible assets 8,705 7,909 796 10.1%
Tax assets 6,714 9,249 (2,535) -27.4%
Other assets 350,770 315,415 35,355 11.2%
Total assets 24,732,630 22,340,335 2,392,295 10.7%

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Deposits from banks 1,009,774 926,001 83,773 9.0%
Deposits from customers 22,273,188 20,205,036 2,068,152 10.2%
Financial liabilities held for trading 2,221 11,936 (9,715) -81.4%
Hedging instruments 7,941 (397) 8,338 n.c.
Tax liabilities 12,390 10,234 2,156 21.1%
Other liabilities 451,435 455,699 (4,264) -0.9%
Shareholders' equity 975,681 731,826 243,855 33.3%
- capital and reserves 744,256 526,046 218,210 41.5%
- revaluation reserves (9,794) (8,340) (1,454) 17.4%
- net profit 241,219 214,120 27,099 12.7%
Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 24,732,630 22,340,335 2,392,295 10.7%
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Main balance sheet aggregates (conmnuen)

Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets held for trading totaled €6.9 million and include financial instruments that meets the definition of held for trading, in particular:

e  bonds, equities and UCIT units, amounting to €2.1 million, held in the Bank's portfolio as a result of trading activity or used for the

operational hedging of CFD positions on shares open with customers and intended to be traded in the short term;

o the positive valuation of spot contracts for securities in the held for trading portfolio and currencies to be settled in time frames
established by market practices ("regular way") for €1.3 million, which correspond to negative valuations booked under "Financial

liabilities held for trading";

o the positive valuation of CFDs (indices, shares, interest rates, commodities and forex), traded in counterpart of the customers, and
futures, used for the related management coverage, for €3.5 million.

CFDs are "Over the counter" derivative contracts that require the payment of a spread generated by the difference between the opening and closing
price of the financial instrument. The bank in operational terms hedges the imbalance of customer positions by underwriting futures or the
purchase/sale of equity securities on the same underlyings or through forex transactions with institutional.

Loans and receivables with banks

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %

Current accounts and demand deposits 1,922,041 1,993,139 (71,098) -3.6%
Time deposits 1,127,298 1,028,152 99,146 9.6%
Other loans: 9,543 17,916 (8,373) -46.7%
1 Reverse repos 416 54 362 n.c.

2 Others 9,127 17,862 (8,735) -48.9%
Total 3,058,882 3,039,207 19,675 0.6%

Loans and receivables with banks for “Current accounts and demand deposits” mainly consist of accounts held with UniCredit S.p.A., with a book
value of €1,887.3 million (€1,958.6 million as at December 31, 2017), and to a lesser extent, of current accounts held with other banks not belonging
to the UniCredit group, among these the current accounts opened for securities transactions, for the management of the liquidity of the UK
customers and for the management of the liquidity of Fineco AM.

“Time deposits” consist of the deposit held by the Bank with UniCredit S.p.A., include deposit for compulsory reserves, which stood at €1,119.3
million (€1,028.2 million as at December 31, 2017) and the time deposit held by Fineco AM with UniCredit Bank Ireland Plc of €8.0 million.

The item “Other loans: Others” consists of €5.3 million for the amount of the initial and variance margins and collateral deposits placed with credit
institutions for derivative transactions and repos (€14.6 million as at December 31, 2017) and €3.8 million for current receivables associated with the
provision of financial services (€3.2 million as at December 31, 2017).

Loans and receivables with customers

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Current accounts 1,018,700 641,554 377,146 58.8%
Reverse repos 148,797 202,701 (53,904) -26.6%
Mortgages 856,870 516,251 340,619 66.0%
Credit cards and personal loans 750,141 633,048 117,093 18.5%
Other loans 180,566 135,665 44,901 33.1%
Total 2,955,074 2,129,219 825,855 38.8%

Loans and receivables with customers, amounting to €2,955.1 million, up 38.8% compared to the amount as at December 31, 2018 and can be

broken down as follows:

o credit facilities in current accounts of €1,018.7 million, up 58.8%, of which loans with a security collateral (in particular “Credit Lombard”)

totaled to €970 million;
o €148.8 million in reverse repos, made by:
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o ‘“Multiday leverage” with retail customers and stock lending transactions with transactions institutional customers, securities
lending transactions guaranteed by sums of money readily available to the lender and which are basically the equivalent of

repos on securities;

o  repos on securities executed on MTS market subject to accounting offsetting, as set out in I1AS 32.

e  €856.9 million in mortgages, upr 66%;

e €750.1 million in credit cards and personal loans, up 18.5%
e €180.6 million in other loans, mainly made by collateral deposits and initial and variation margins with clearing houses for derivative
contract transactions, for an amount of €85 million, and current receivables associated with the provision of financial services, for an

amount of €88.9 million.

The portfolio of loan receivables with ordinary customers amounts to €2,632.3 million and mainly consists of receivables for personal loans,
mortgages, current accounts and credit card revolving and use; overall, loans receivable with ordinary customers increased of 46.4% thanks to the
disbursement in 2018 of a further €248 million in personal loan and €411 million in mortgages plus new credit facilities in current accounts for an

amount of €945 million, with an increase in exposures in current accounts of €377.2 million.

(Amounts in € thousand)

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH CUSTOMERS AMOUNTSIASTAT] CHANGES
(MANAGEMENT RECLASSIFICATION) 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Current accounts 1,016,930 639,726 377,204 59.0%
Credit card use 320,379 288,382 31,997 11.1%
Mortgages 856,856 516,237 340,619 66.0%
Personal loans 428,979 343,867 85,112 24.8%
Other loans 6,460 7,641 (1,181) -15.5%
Performing loans 2,629,604 1,795,853 833,751 46.4%
Current accounts 1,770 1,828 (58) -3.2%
Mortgages 14 14 - 0.0%
Credit card use 63 43 20 46.5%
Personal loans 720 756 (36) -4.8%
Other loans 99 26 73 280.8%
Impaired loans 2,666 2,667 (1) 0.0%
Loans receivable with ordinary customers 2,632,270 1,798,520 833,750 46.4%
Reverse repos 148,768 202,620 (53,852) -26.6%
Reverse repos - impaired 29 81 (52) n.c.
Collateral deposits and initial and variation margins 84,963 42,609 42,354 99.4%
Current receivables not related provision of financial services 88,922 85,284 3,638 4.3%
Current receivables associated with the provision of financial
services - impaired 122 105 17 16.2%
Current receivables and other receivables 322,804 330,699 (7,895) -2.4%
Loans and receivables with customers 2,955,074 2,129,219 825,855 38.8%
Impaired assets

(Amounts in € thousand)

GROSS AMOUNT IMPAIRMENT PROVISION NET AMOUNT COVERAGE RATIO
AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT DATA AS AT

CATEGORY 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
Bad exposures 19,714 20,848 (18,067) (19,118) 1,647 1,730 91.65% 91.70%
Unlikely to pay 2,659 2,109 (2,042) (1,614) 617 495 76.80% 76.53%
Past-due loans 1,562 1,356 (1,009) (728) 553 628 64.60% 53.69%
Total 23,935 24,313 (21,118) (21,460) 2,817 2,853 88.23% 88.27%

The amount of non-performing loans net of impairment losses was €2.8 million, €1.6 million of which in bad exposure, €0.6 million in unlikely to pay
exposures and €0.6 million in past-due loans. The impaired assets are the 0.11% of loan receivables with ordinary customers and mostly relate to

current account overdrafts and personal loans.
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Financial investments

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss c) other financial assets
mandatorily at fair value 13,342 539,854 (526,512) -97.5%
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 961,773 1,042,471 (80,698) -1.7%
Financial assets at amortised cost 17,256,067 15,132,716 2,123,351 14.0%
- financial assets at amortised cost with banks - debt securities 9,382,112 10,406,251 (1,024,139) -9.8%
- financial assets at amortised cost with customers - debt securities 7,873,955 4,726,465 3,147,490 66.6%
Total 18,231,182 16,715,041 1,516,141 9.1%

“Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value” primarily consist of the Visa INC class “C”
preferred shares, for an amount of €6.1 million, which saw a positive change in fair value in 2018 of €1.6 million and the residual equity exposure to
the Voluntary Scheme set up by the Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund (IDGF), amounting to €7.2 million (of which €6.7 million related to the
Carige transaction and €0.5 million related to Carimi, Carismi and CariCesena transaction), with a negative impact booked in the 2018 income
statement of €3 million. For further details on the exposure to the Voluntary Scheme refer to Part A - Accounting Policies — Section 5 — Other
matters of the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts.

The item as at December 31, 2017 included two debt instruments issued by UniCredit S.p.A. with coupon in arrears, with a total nominal amount of
€532.6 million. Their contractual profiles did not pass the SPPI Test and they were thus included in the asset item IFRS 9 20. “Financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss: c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value”. Please note that the debt instrument issued by UniCredit S.p.A.
amounted to €150.1 million has been repaid on 2 January 2018, while the debt instrument amounted to €382.5 million, measured at fair value at the
transiction to IFRS 9, has been restructured on 2 January 2018, with consequent derecognition of the old financial instrument and recognition of the
new financial instrument in “financial assets at amortized cost” item (item 40. of the assets of the IFRS 9 Financial Statements). For further details
refer to Part A - Accounting Policies — Section 5 — Other matters of the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts.

"Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income" consist of securities issued by sovereign states and residually of
equity interests in companies in which the Bank does not exercise control or significant influence for €5 thousand for which, upon first application of
IFRS 9, the "FVTOCI" option was exercised.**. The following table shows the debt securities issued by sovereign states:

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES
COUNTERPARTY 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNTS %
Italy 816,900 725,220 91,680 12.6%
Spain - 242,451 (242,451) -100.0%
France 35,471 10,124 25,347 250.4%
USA 67,585 64,671 2,914 4.5%
Ireland 41,812 - 41,812 -
Total 961,768 1,042,466 (80,698) -1.7%

The debt securities recorded in "Financial assets at amortized cost" issued by banks refer to bonds issued by:

UniCredit S.p.A. for a total amount of €9,115.8 million (€10,306.3 million as at December 31, 2017);
Istituto de Credito Oficial (ICO) for an amount of €114.5 million (€99.9 million as at December 31, 2017);
EIB (European Investment Bank) for an amount of €101.3 million;

Kreditanstalt fir Wiederaufbau (KfW) for an amount of €50.5 million.

14 With regard to non-trading equity instruments, IFRS 9 provides for the possibility of measuring them at the fair value recognised through other comprehensive income (so-called FVTOCI - fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income).
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The debt securities recorded in "Financial assets at amortized cost" issued by customers exclusively refer to bonds consist of securities issued by
sovereign states and supranational agencies. The breakdown by counterparty of securities issued by customers is shown below:
(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES
COUNTERPARTY 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNTS %
Italy 3,150,186 2,557,575 592,611 23.2%
Spain 3,411,725 2,120,318 1,291,407 60.9%
Germany 127,432 - 127,432 -
Poland 79,660 48,572 31,088 64.0%
France 255,743 - 255,743 -
Austria 208,562 - 208,562 -
Ireland 171,703 - 171,703 -
Belgium 181,983 - 181,983 -
EFSF (European Financial Stability Facility) 160,493 - 160,493 -
ESM (European Stability Mechanism) 126,468 - 126,468 -
Total 7,873,955 4,726,465 3,147,490 66.6%

Hedging instruments

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES
12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Asset hedging derivatives - positive valuations - 400 (400) -100.0%
Liability hedging derivatives - positive valuations 3,314 58 3,256 n.c.
Adjustment to the value of assets under macro-hedge 4,873 9,590 (4,717) -49.2%
Total assets 8,187 10,048 (1,861) -18.5%
of which:
Positive valuations 2,575 499 2,076 416.0%
Accrued interest 739 (41) 780 n.c.
Adjustments to the value of hedged assets 4,873 9,590 (4,717) -49.2%
Total assets 8,187 10,048 (1,861) -18.5%
Asset hedging derivatives - negative valuations 5,341 249 5,092 2045.0%
Liability hedging derivatives - negative valuations - 3,126 (3,126) -100.0%
Adjustment to the value of assets under macro-hedge 2,600 (3,772) 6,372 n.c.
Total liabilities 7,941 (397) 8,338 -2100.3%
of which:
Negative valuations 4,703 3,959 744 18.8%
Accrued interest 638 (584) 1,222 n.c.
Adjustments to the value of hedged liabilities 2,600 (3,772) 6,372 n.c.
Total liabilities 7,941 (397) 8,338 -2100.3%
(Amounts in € thousand)
SUMMARY OF HEDGING DERIVATIVE VALUATIONS 31.12.2018 ASSETS LIABILITIES DIFFERENCE
Valuation of hedging derivatives for assets and liabilities 2,575 4,703 (2,128)
Change in fair value of hedged assets/liabilities 4,873 2,600 2,273
Total 7,448 7,303 145

As at December 31, 2018 the hedged assets consisted of mortgages with customers shown in “Financial assets at amortised cost’, while the
hedged liabilities consisted of direct deposits with customers shown in “Financial liabilities at amortised cost”.

Positive and negative valuations of hedging derivatives related solely to derivative contracts that the Bank has entered into to hedge against interest
rate risk inherent in the above-mentioned assets and liabilities, whose income statement effect, net of €0.1 million of accrued interest income
included in the net interest margin, was a positive amount of €0.1 million.
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Property, plant and equipment

Tangible assets are made by properties, electronic equipment, office furniture and fittings, plant and machinery. Investments in electronic
equipment were made to guarantee the ongoing update of the hardware used by all the Bank’s departments. Investments in office furniture and
fittings and in plant and machinery are intended for use in company offices and in financial stores.

(Amounts in € thousand)

OTHER CHANGES AND AMORTISATION AND

INVESTMENTS SALES IMPAIRMENT
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT BALANCE 12.31.2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2018 BALANCE 12.31.2018 |
Properties 2,304 2 (109) (109) 2,088
Electronic equipment 9,798 4,968 (145) (3,677) 10,944
Office furniture and fittings 1,480 1,472 (1) (1,115) 1,836
Plant and machinery 1,623 704 - (563) 1,764
Total 15,205 7,146 (255) (5,464) 16,632
Goodwill

The Goodwill recognised in the financial statements and amounting to of €89.6 million derives from transactions carried out in the years from 2001
to 2008, involving acquisitions and mergers by absorption of business units and businesses engaged in trading operations or the distribution of
financial, banking and insurance products through the personal financial advisors (Fineco On Line Sim S.p.A., Trading and Banking business unit of
Banca della Rete, personal financial advisors business unit of the former FinecoGroup S.p.A., and UniCredit Xelion Banca S.p.A.).

These activities have been fully integrated with the Bank’s ordinary operations. As a result, it is no longer possible to isolate the contribution of each
company/business division from the Bank's overall income; this means that to establish the reasonableness of the value of goodwill recognised in
the financial statements it is necessary to take account of the Bank's comprehensive income. The cash generating unit (CGU) is therefore the Bank
as a whole, including the contribution from the subsidiary Fineco Asset Management DAC, through a vertically integrated business model.

In fact, in view of the specific business model adopted by the Bank, which envisages a high level of integration between personal financial advisors
and the trading and banking platform, the allocation of costs/revenues to the macro areas of activity is not considered relevant or meaningful; the
personal financial advisors network is an integral part of the overall offer, along with banking, brokerage and investing services.

Impairment testing on goodwill, performed on December 31, 2018, did not identify any impairment. For all other information on the impairment test,
see Part B - Balance Sheet Information in the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets mainly include purchases and the implementation of information technology procedures with useful lives of several years,
required in order to manage the development and ongoing provision by the Bank of new and more versatile high-added-value services for
customers, as well as infrastructure and application optimisations, enhancements to architecture for application security, and the developments
needed to meet the new regulatory and financial reporting requirements.

(Amounts in € thousand)

OTHER CHANGES AND AMORTISATION AND

INVESTMENTS SALES IMPAIRMENT
INTANGIBLE ASSETS BALANCE 12.31.2017 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2018 YEAR 2018 BALANCE 12.31.2018
Software 7,081 5,588 - (4,650) 8,019
Other intangible assets 828 167 - (309) 686
Total 7,909 5,755 - (4,959) 8,705
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Tax Assets and Other Assets

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Tax assets
Current assets 467 1,765 (1,298) -73.5%
Deferred tax assets 28,977 32,927 (3,950) -12.0%
Deferred tax assets pursuant to Law 214/2011 4,033 3,828 205 5.4%
Total before IAS 12 offsetting 33,477 38,520 (5,043) -13.1%
Offsetting with deferred tax liabilities - IAS 12 (26,763) (29,271) 2,508 -8.6%
Total Tax assets 6,714 9,249 (2,535) -27.4%
Other assets
Items in processing 29 99 (70) -70.7%
Items awaiting settlement 4,597 4,498 99 2.2%
Definitive items not recognised under other items 30,356 20,632 9,724 47.1%
Current receivables not related with the provision of financial services 2,170 4,721 (2,551) -54.0%
Tax items other than those included in the item "Tax assets" 269,189 249,443 19,746 7.9%
Accrued income and prepaid expenses related to contracts with customers other
than capitalised in related financial assets or liabilities 4,303 2,153 2,150 99.9%
Trade receivables according to IFRS15 8,489 4,985 3,504 70.3%
Accrued income and prepaid expenses other than those related to contracts with
customers and other than capitalised in related financial assets or liabilities 24,588 21,972 2,616 11.9%
Improvement and incremental expenses incurred on leasehold assets 6,928 6,774 154 2.3%
Other items 121 138 (17) -12.3%
Total other assets 350,770 315,415 35,355 11.2%

It is also noted that “Deferred tax assets” are shown in the Balance Sheet net of the relevant “Deferred tax liabilities”, where the requirements set out
in IAS 12 are met.

The reduction in Tax assets, after IAS 12 offsetting, is mainly due to the reduction in “Deferred tax assets” at the moment of First Time Application
of the standard IFRS 9. For further details please refer to Section 5 - Other aspects of Part A — Accounting policies.

For the item Other assets, there was an increase of €19.7 million in the "Tax items other than those recorded under the Tax Assets”, due to higher
advance taxes paid for the substitute tax on other income and for stamp duties; there was an increase of €9.7 million in “Definitive items not
recognised under other items” mainly due to the regulation on credit card transaction circuits. The “Other assets” of Fineco AM amount to €0.2
million.

Deposits from banks

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %

Deposits from central banks - - - -
Deposits from banks

Current accounts and demand deposits 52,563 42,756 9,807 22.9%

Loans 933,352 868,651 64,701 7.4%

- Repos 933,352 868,651 64,701 7.4%

Other liabilities 23,859 14,594 9,265 63.5%

Total 1,009,774 926,001 83,773 9.0%

Deposits from banks mainly includes repos amounting to €1,009.8 million up to 9% compared to December 31, 2017.

The item “Current accounts and demand deposits” consisted of reciprocal current accounts and loans with UniCredit S.p.A., amounting to €18.3
million (€6.1 million as at December 31, 2017), of current accounts held with other banks not belonging to the UniCredit group opened for securities
transactions, amounting to €1 million, as well as current accounts opened by customer banks worth €33.3 million (€36.7 million as at December 31,
2017).

“Repos” are represented by repos and securities lending transactions with credit institutions, securities lending transactions guaranteed by sums of
money readily available to the lender and which are basically the equivalent of repos on securities. The item included €751.8 million in transactions
effected with UniCredit S.p.A. (€764.4 million as at December 31, 2017) and €35.7 million of securities lending transactions guaranteed by cash
carried out with UniCredit Bank AG Munich (€40.3 million as at December 31, 2017).

The item “Other liabilities” mainly includes margin variations received for trading in derivatives and reverse repos, of which €22.6 million received by
the Parent Company (€13.3 million as at December 31,2017).
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Deposits from customers

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %

Current accounts and demand deposits 22,046,700 19,935,285 2,111,415 10.6%
Time deposits 3,106 9,631 (6,525) -67.7%
Loans 116,299 146,410 (30,111) -20.6%
- Repos 116,299 146,410 (30,111) -20.6%
Other liabilities 107,083 113,710 (6,627) -5.8%
Deposits from customers 22,273,188 20,205,036 2,068,152 10.2%

Deposits from customers totalled €22,273.2 million, up 10.2% compared to December 31, 2017 and mainly consisting of current accounts wih

customers, increased by €2,111.4 million (+10.6%).

“‘Repos” consist of:

o  “Short selling” with retail customers and stock lending transactions with transactions institutional customers, securities lending
transactions guaranteed by sums of money readily available to the lender and which are basically the equivalent of repos on securities;

e repos on securities executed on MTS market subject to accounting offsetting as set out in IAS 32.

The item “Other liabilities” comprises current payables related to the provision of financial services, totalling €34 million (€39 million as at December
31, 2017), initial and variance margins for derivative and financial instrument transactions, which came to €38.9 million (€44.9 million as at
December 31, 2017) and other liabilities for rechargeable credit cards and bankers’ drafts, amounting to €34.2 million (€29.8 million at December

31,2017).

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities held for trading totaled €2.2 million and include financial instruments that meets the definition of held for trading, in particular:

e technical overdrafts, amounting to €0.3 million, used for the operational hedging of CFD positions on shares open with customers and

intended to be traded in the short term;

o the negative valuation of spot contracts for securities in the held for trading portfolio and currencies to be settled in time frames
established by market practices ("regular way") for €1.2 million, which correspond to negative valuations booked under "Financial

liabilities held for trading";

o the negative valuation of CFDs (indices, shares, interest rates, commodities and forex), traded in counterpart of the customers, and
futures, used for the related management coverage, for €0.7 million.

CFDs are "Over the counter" derivative contracts that require the payment of a spread generated by the difference between the opening and closing
price of the financial instrument. The bank in operational terms hedges the imbalance of customer positions by underwriting futures or the
purchase/sale of equity securities on the same underlyings or through forex transactions with institutional.
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Tax liabilities and Other liabilities

(Amounts in €thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Tax liabilities
Current liabilities 12,390 10,234 2,156 21.1%
Deferred tax liabilities 26,763 29,271 (2,508) -8.6%
Total before IAS 12 offsetting 39,153 39,505 (352) -0.9%
Offset against deferred tax liabilities - IAS 12 (26,763) (29,271) 2,508 -8.6%
Total Tax liabilities 12,390 10,234 2,156 21.1%
Other liabilities
Deferred income related to contracts with customers other than those
capitalised on the related financial assets or liabilities 2,800 1,717 1,083 63.1%
Items in processing 561 481 80 16.6%
Items awaiting settlement 94,642 91,869 2,773 3.0%
Definitive items not recognised under other items 31,589 42,724 (11,135) -26.1%
Payment authorisations 21,716 19,068 2,648 13.9%
Payables for share-based payments or shares of the Parent Company
UniCredit 338 938 (600) -64.0%
Payables to employees and other personnel 13,018 11,378 1,640 14.4%
Payables to Directors and Statutory auditors 163 148 15 10.1%
Current payables not related with the provision of financial services 24,181 23,690 491 2.1%
Tax items other than those included in the item "Tax liabilities” 116,031 116,515 (484) -0.4%
Social security contributions payable 6,415 6,845 (430) -6.3%
llliquid items for portfolio transactions 22,123 18,097 4,026 22.2%
Other items 3,492 4,817 (1,325) -27.5%
Provisions for employee severance pay 4,561 4,998 (437) -8.7%
Provisions for risks and charges 109,805 112,414 (2,609) -2.3%
Total Other liabilities 451,435 455,699 (4,264) -0.9%

It is also noted that, when the requirements of IAS 12 are met, the “Deferred tax liabilities” are offset against “Deferred tax assets” in the balance

sheet.

With regard to the Other liabilities there was a decrease of €11.1 million in “Definitive items not recognised under other items”, mainly due to the

decrease in transactions in securities and dividends to be settled.

The “Other liabilities” of Fineco AM, equal to €1.6 million, were mainly recognised in “Payables to employees and other personne
payables not related with the provision of financial services”.

The Provision for risks and charges consists of:

|n

and in “Current

e Provisions for credit risk relating to commitments and financial guarantees issued that fall within the scope of application of impairment
rules in accordance with IFRS 9, as described in the specific section “18 — Other information - Impairment” of the Accounting policies of
Notes to the Consolidated Accounts to which reference is made for additional details, for an amount of €49 thousand;

e Provisions for risks and charges - Other provisions which include allowances for a total of €109.8 million, for which, given a liability of
uncertain amount and expiry date, a current obligation was identified as a result of a past event and the amount arising from fulfilment of
said obligation could be estimated reliably. The disbursements, with estimated maturity exceeding 18 months, were discounted to present
value using a rate equal to the time value of money. The item includes, in addition, the Supplementary customer indemnity provision,
whose charge, connected to the outstanding obligations at the end of the period, was assessed in accordance with IAS 19 using the

support of an independent external actuary.
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(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12/31/2018 12/31/2017 AMOUNT %
Provision for risks and charges for commitments and financial
guarantees given 49 - 49 -
Legal and fiscal disputes 32,290 34,987 (2,697) -7.7%
- Pending cases 23,830 25,525 (1,695) -6.6%
- Complaints 4,575 5,531 (956) -17.3%
- Tax disputes 3,885 3,931 (46) -1.2%
Staff expenses 4,809 5,690 (881) -15.5%
Other 72,657 71,737 920 1.3%
- Supplementary customer indemnity provision 64,139 64,983 (844) -1.3%
- Provision for contractual payments and payments under non-competition
agreements 2,266 2,311 (45) -1.9%
- Other provision 6,252 4,443 1,809 40.7%
Provision for risks and charges - Other provision 109,756 112,414 (2,658) -2.4%
Total provision for risks and charges 109,805 112,414 (2,609) -2.3%

The item "Staff expenses" as at December 31, 2018, solely includes, the provisions made for the variable remuneration to be paid to employees in
subsequent years, which have an uncertain due date and/or amount.

Shareholders' equity

(Amounts in € thousand)
AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Share capital 200,773 200,545 228 0.1%
Share premium reserve 1,934 1,934 - -
Reserves 355,509 323,932 31,577 9.7%
- Legal reserve 40,155 40,109 46 0.1%
- Extraordinary reserve 272,454 251,367 21,087 8.4%
- Treasury shares reserve 13,960 365 13,595 n.c.
- Other reserves 28,940 32,091 (3,151) -9.8%
(Treasury shares) (13,960) (365) (13,595) n.c.
Revaluation reserves (9,794) (8,340) (1,454) 17.4%
Equity instruments 200,000 - 200,000 -
Net profit (Loss) for the year 241,219 214,120 27,099 12.7%
Total 975,681 731,826 243,855 33.3%

As at December 31, 2018, the Bank's share capital came to €200.8 million, divided into 608,404,395 ordinary shares with a par value of €0.33 each.
Share premium reserve amounts to €1.9 million.

The reserves consisted of the:

Legal reserve, amounting to €40.2 million;

Extraordinary reserve, amounting to €272.5 million;

Reserve for treasury shares held, amounting to €14 million;

Reserve related to equity-settied plans, amounting to €34 million;

Negative reserve recognized following the application of IFRS 9, of €-4.9 million.

The Shareholders' equity includes the loss carried forward, of €0.2 million, refers to the result at 31 December 2017 of Fineco AM which closed its
first financial year on 31 December 2018.

Shareholders’ equity also includes the Additional Tier 1 Perp Non Call June 2023 notes issue (5.5 years, Non-Cumulative Temporary Write-Down
Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable Notes) issued on 31 January 2018. The issue of the financial instrument was authorized by the Board of
Directors of FinecoBank on 23 January 2018. The financial instrument is a perpetual private placement!®, issued for a total of €200 million and
entirely subscribed by UniCredit S.p.A. The coupon for the first 5.5 years has been fixed at 4.82%. The decision to carry out an intra-group issuance
has many advantages: effective cost savings relating, for example, to the underwriting syndicate, and shorter issue times so as not to miss the right

15 Unrated and unlisted
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moment, maximising the benefits of the transaction. In view of the particularly favourable market conditions and spread levels, the Bank decided to
issue an Additional Tier 1 in order to improve the diversification of its investment portfolio.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of the financial instrument as well as the coupons paid (amounting to €5.9 million) were accounted
for as a reduction in reserves from profits (Extraordinary Reserve) for a total amount, net of related taxes, of €6 million.

On February 6, 2018, in view of the favourable opinion provided by the Remuneration Committee in its meeting of February 5, 2018, the Board of
Directors of FinecoBank approved execution of the following incentive/loyalty systems:

e 2014-2017 Top Management Multi-Year Plan for employees. In particular, we approved the allotment of 494,493 free ordinary shares to
the beneficiaries of the second tranche of the Plan, assigned in 2015, and consequently a bonus issue for a total amount of €163,182.69
with immediate effect;

e 2014 and 2015 incentive systems for employees. In particular, we approved the allotment of a total of 196,557 free ordinary shares to the
beneficiaries of the second equity tranche of the 2014 Incentive System and of the first tranche of the 2015 Incentive System, and
consequently a bonus issue for a total amount of €64,863.81 with effect from 30 March 2018.

In view of the above capital increases, the reserves from allocation of profit from previous years were reduced accordingly.

The Shareholders' Meeting of FinecoBank held on April 11, 2018 approved the allocation of profit for the year 2017, amounting to €214.3 million, as
follows:

e  €0.05 million to the Legal Reserve, corresponding to 0.02% of the profit for the year, having reached the limit of a fifth of the share
capital;
e €40.8 million to the Extraordinary Reserve;
e €173.4 million to shareholders, corresponding to a dividend of €0.285 for each of the 608,404,395 ordinary shares with a par value of
€0.33 euro.
The amount pertaining to the dividends not distributed to treasury shares held by the Bank at the record date was diverted to the Extraordinary
Reserve, equal to €0.03 million.

The “Reserve related to equity-settled plans” was increased by around €8.4 million, due to the recognition during the year of the income statement
and balance sheet effects of the payment plans based on FinecoBank ordinary shares during the vesting period for the instruments, and was used
of about €6.5million, following the allotment to personal financial advisors of the of the first tranche of the “2015-2017 PFA PLAN” corresponding to
658,624 of FinecoBank’ free ordinary shares.

As at December 31, 2018, the Bank held 1,401,288 treasury shares, corresponding to 0.23% of the share capital, for an amount of € 14 million.
During 2018 n. 27,644 shares were purchased in relation to the “2017 PFA Incentive System” for personal financial advisors identified as “Key
personnel” and n. 1,971,871 shares were purchased in relation to the “2015--2017 PFA PLAN” for selected personal financial advisors, in
accordance with what was authorised by the FinecoBank Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting on April 11, 2017. During the year, 658,624 FinecoBank
ordinary shares held in the portfolio were assigned to personal financial advisors in relation to the "2015-2017 PFA PLAN".

The Bank and its subsidiary do not hold shares of its Parent Company, Unicredit S.p.A., even through other companies or third parties.
The Revaluation reserves consisted of:

e €34 million from the net negative reserve for debt securities issued by central governments recognized in the "Financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income”, which recorded a decreased by €4.9 million in 2018, of which €4.4 million
relating to the negative change in fair value and -€2.4 million relating to the reclassification of gains through profit or loss and €1.9 million
relating to the adjustments made to the starting balances as effect of the transition to the IFRS 9. For further details please refer to Part A
— Accounting policies - Section 5 - Other aspects of the Notes to the consolidated accounts;

e  -€6.4 million from the IAS19 Negative reserve, which recorde a positive change of €3.4 million in 2018 as a result of the recognition of
actuarial gains mainly attributable to the Supplementary customer indemnity provision.
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Main balance sheet aggregates (conmuen)

Reconciliation between Shareholders’ equity and net profit/(loss) for the year of FinecoBank
and corresponding consolidated figures.

(Amounts in € thousand)

OF WHICH: NET PROFIT
DESCRIPTION SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (LOSS) AS AT 12.31.2018
FinecoBank balances as at December 31, 2018 962,548 227,922
Effect of consolidation of Fineco AM 21,831 21,297
Dividends from Fineco AM cashed in the period (8,000) (8,000)
Shareholders' equity and profit attributable to minorities - -
Balances attributable to the Group as at December 31, 2018 975,681 241,219

56 Reports and Accounts 2018 - FinecoBank



Shareholders

As at December 31, 2018, the fully subscribed and paid up share capital totalled €200,773,450.35, divided into 608,404,395 ordinary shares with a
nominal value of €0.33.

As at December 31, 2018, the major shareholders were:

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS % OWNED
UniCredit S.p.A. 35.385%
BlackRock Inc. 6.884%
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Income Statement Figures

Condensed Income Statement

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
2018 2017 AMOUNT %
Net interest 278,659 264,781 13,878 5.2%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 42 29 13 44.8%
Net fee and commission 300,443 270,083 30,360 11.2%
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 44,239 48,219 (3,980) -8.3%
Net other expenses/income 1,913 3,760 (1,847) -49.1%
OPERATING INCOME 625,296 586,872 38,424 6.5%
Staff expenses (86,606) (79,294) (7,312) 9.2%
Other administrative expenses (245,501) (236,945) (8,556) 3.6%
Recovery of expenses 96,767 93,367 3,400 3.6%
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (10,424) (10,369) (55) 0.5%
Operating costs (245,764) (233,241) (12,523) 5.4%
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 379,532 353,631 25,901 7.3%
Net impairment losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments (4,384) (5,351) 967 -18.1%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 375,148 348,280 26,868 7.7%
Other charges and provisions (21,380) (19,025) (2,355) 12.4%
Integration costs (121) 408 (529) -129.7%
Net income from investments 1,105 (13,399) 14,504 n.c.
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 354,752 316,264 38,488 12.2%
Income tax for the year (113,533) (102,144) (11,389) 11.1%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 241,219 214,120 27,099 12.7%
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 241,219 214,120 27,099 12.7%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 241,219 214,120 27,099 12.7%

Net interest

Net interest for 2018 amounted to €278.7 million, up by 5.2% on the same period of the previous year, due to the increase in “transactional”
deposits and the greater penetration of lending activity. In this regard it should be noted that the structure of the investments carried out by the Bank
contributed to maintaining a significant level of interest income, with the average lending rate for the investment of all deposits at 1.30% (1.35% as at
December 31, 2017).

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
INTEREST INCOME 2018 2017 AMOUNT %
Financial Assets held for trading - 1 (1) -100.0%
Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income 4,534 8,505 (3,971) -46.7%
Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value 2 1,233 (1,231) -99.8%
Financial assets at amortised cost - Debt securities issued by banks 158,908 184,796 (25,888) -14.0%
Financial assets at amortised cost - Debt securities issued by customers 59,980 23,066 36,914 160.0%
Financial assets at amortised cost - Loans and receivables with banks 11,669 4,236 7,433 175.5%
Financial assets at amortised cost - Loans and receivables with customers 55,772 41,541 14,231 34.3%
Hedging derivatives (1,947) 8,215 (10,162) -123.7%
Other assets 77 77 - 0.0%
Financial liabilities 4,133 3,997 136 3.4%
Total interest income 293,128 275,667 17,461 6.3%

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
INTEREST EXPENSES 2018 2017 AMOUNT %
Financial liabilities at amortised cost - Deposits from banks (396) (612) 216 -35.3%
Financial liabilities at amortised cost - Deposits from customers (10,919) (8,549) (2,370) 27.7%
Financial assets (3,154) (1,725) (1,429) 82.8%
Total interest expenses (14,469) (10,886) (3,583) 32.9%
Net interest 278,659 264,781 13,878 5.2%
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Interest income on Financial assets measured at amortized cost - Debt securities issued by banks mainly refer to interest accrued on bonds
issued by UniCredit S.p.A.. The decrease is mainly attributable to the reduction in volumes due to the repayment of securities that have reached

maturity.

Interest income on Financial assets measured at amortized cost - Debt securities issued by customers exclusively refer to interest accrued

on government and supranational institution securities. The increase is attributable to the growth in volumes due to purchases made in 2018.

The following table provides a breakdown of interest income associated with banks and customers recorded in “Financial assets at amortised cost”:

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
BREAKDOWN OF INTEREST INCOME 2018 2017 AMOUNT %
Interest income on loans and receivables with banks 11,669 4,236 7,433 175.5%
- current accounts 11,060 4,107 6,953 169.3%
- reverse repos 12 1 11 1100.0%
- time deposits 546 103 443 n.c.
- other loans 51 25 26 104.0%
Interest income on loans and receivables with customers 55,772 41,541 14,231 34.3%
- current accounts 10,738 7,704 3,034 39.4%
- reverse repos 11,602 9,624 1,978 20.6%
- mortgages 11,028 3,720 7,308 n.c.
- credit cards 4,838 4,695 143 3.0%
- personal loans 17,448 15,639 1,809 11.6%
- other loans 118 159 (41) -25.8%

Interest income on loans and receivables with banks amounted to €11.7 million, up €4.2 million compared to December 31, 2017. The increase

was mainly attributable to higher interest on current account in dollars due to the trend in market interest rates.

Interest income on loans and receivables with customers amounted to €55.8 million, showing an increase of 34.3% compared to the same
period of the previous year thanks to higher interest on mortgages, personal loans and usage of current account due to the continuous development
of the lending activity mentioned above. Also the interest income related to reverse repos up 20.6%, thanks to "Multiday leverage" transactions, due
to the increase in volumes and interest rate (change in spread, introduction of floor at 0% and increase in Libor USD rate of dollar transactions).

The following table provides a breakdown of interest expenses related to banks and customers recorded in “Financial liabilities at amortised cost™:

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
BREAKDOWN OF INTERST EXPENSES 2018 2017 AMOUNT %
Interest expenses on deposits from banks (396) (612) 216 -35.3%
- current accounts (366) (590) 224 -38.0%
- other loans (30) (22) (8) 36.4%
Interest expenses on deposits from customers (10,919) (8,549) (2,370) 27.7%
- current accounts (10,888) (8,343) (2,545) 30.5%
- time deposits (31) (137) 106 -77.4%
- reverse repos - (69) 69 -100.0%

Interest expenses on deposits from banks amouonted to €0.4 million, down 35.3% compared to the previous year, thanks to lower interest

expenses paid on current account.

Interest expenses on deposits from customers came to €10.9 million, up €2.4 million compared to the previous year, mainly due to higher
interest on current accounts in dollars attributable to the growth of the USD Libor rate used to remunerate this current accounts, partially offset by

lower interest expense paid to customers as a result of marketing campaigns.
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Income Statement Figures (covmue)

Income from brokerage and other income

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES

2018 2017 AMOUNTS %
Net interest 278,659 264,781 13,878 5.2%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 42 29 13 44.8%
Net fee and commission income 300,443 270,083 30,360 11.2%
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 44,239 48,219 (3,980) -8.3%
Net other expenses/income 1,913 3,760 (1,847) -49.1%
Operating income 625,296 586,872 38,424 6.5%

Net fee and commission income

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
MANAGEMENT RECLASSIFICATION 2018 2017 AMOUNT %
Management, brokerage and consulting services: 297,627 275,237 22,390 8.1%
1. securities trading and order collection 78,759 75,737 3,022 4.0%
2. custody and administration of securities (4,036) (3,613) (423) 11.7%
3. placement and management of managed asset products 168,197 155,339 12,858 8.3%
4. investment advisory services 55,443 48,190 7,253 15.1%
5. distribution of other products (736) (416) (320) 76.9%
Collection and payment services 10,013 7,087 2,926 41.3%
Holding and management of current/deposit accounts (572) (463) (109) 23.5%
Other fee expenses personal financial advisers (21,652) (25,340) 3,688 -14.6%
Securities lending 3,181 3,915 (734) -18.7%
Other services 11,846 9,647 2,199 22.8%
Total net fee and commission income 300,443 270,083 30,360 11.2%

Net fee and commission income amounted to €300.4 million, increasing by 11.2% compared to the previous year mainly due to:

higher commissions for securities trading and order collection, for an amount of €3 million;
e higher commissions for the placement and management of managed asset products, for a total amount of €20.1 million, thanks to
constant redevelopment of the assets, with consequent increasing in Guided products & services. It is worth noting that the contribution

of Fineco AM, gross of fees and commissions retroceded to FinecoBank, amounted to € 66.4 million;

e higher commissions for collection and payment services for an amount of €2.9 million, mainly related to transactions with debit cards and
Visa Debit and to the introduction of the fee on withdrawals of less than €100;
e higher commissions for other services for an amount of €2.2 million, relating in particular to the progressive introduction of the annual fee

on credit cards;

e lower fee and commission expenses paid to personal financial advisors for an amount of €3.7 million, due, in particular, to lower

commercial incentives.

The commissions for securities lending include the income component relating to the service provided (received) for the provision of the security
both for transactions with guarantee consisting of cash and for transactions with guarantee consisting of other securities. In order to assess the
transaction as a whole, the income component recognised within the net interest margin must also be taken into account.

Net trading, hedging and fair value income was mainly generated by gains realised from the internalisation of securities and CFDs, financial
instruments used for operational hedging of CFDs and the exchange differences on assets and liabilities denominated in currency, which show a
decrease by €3.6 million with that one recorded in 2017. Trading profit also incorporates gains and losses from the financial instruments recognised
in “Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value”, including, as described above, the class “C” preferred shares of Visa INC and the exposure in
equity securities versus the Voluntary Scheme established by the Interbank Fund for the Protection of Deposits, whose fair-value measurement
resulted in a gain of €1.6 million and in a loss of €3 million, respectively, in 2018. In the item the profits recognised in relation to the sale of
government securities recorded in the “Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income” for an amount of €1.7 million.

Net other expenses/income showed income of €1.9 million, down €1.8 million compared to the previous year. In this regard, it should be noted
that during the previous year, profits of €4 million were recorded deriving from the sale of UniCredit bonds.
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Operating costs

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
BREAKDOWN OF OPERATING COSTS 2018 2017 AMOUNT %
Staff expenses (86,606) (79,294) (7,312) 9.2%
Other administrative expenses (245,501) (236,945) (8,556) 3.6%
Recovery of expenses 96,767 93,367 3,400 3.6%
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (10,424) (10,369) (55) 0.5%
Total operating costs (245,764) (233,241) (12,523) 5.4%

Staff expenses amounted to €86.6 million, of which €2.2 million relating to staff expenses of Fineco AM, increasing by 9.2% compared to the
previous year thanks to continuous growth of the operating structure. In fact, the number of employees rose from 1,119 on December 31, 2017 to
1,170 units as of December 31, 2018. In addition, it should be noted that the increase included severance paid in 2018.

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
STAFF EXPENSES 2018 2017 AMOUNT %
1) Employees (85,461) (77,872) (7,589) 9.7%
- wages and salaries (56,636) (52,734) (3,902) 7.4%
- social security contributions (14,569) (13,927) (642) 4.6%
- provision for employee severance pay (2,182) (912) (1,270) 139.3%
- allocation to employee severance pay provision (114) (98) (16) 16.3%
- payment to supplementary external pension funds:
a) defined contribution (3,450) (3,082) (368) 11.9%
- costs related to share-based payments* (4,267) (2,739) (1,528) 55.8%
- other employee benefits (4,243) (4,380) 137 -3.1%
2) Directors and statutory auditors (1,321) (1,291) (30) 2.3%
3) Recovery of expenses for employees seconded to other
companies 245 232 13 5.6%
4) Recovery of expenses for employees seconded to the company (69) (363) 294 -81.0%
Total staff expenses (86,606) (79,294) (7,312) 9.2%

* Note that item "costs related to share-based payments" includes the costs incurred by the Bank for payments involving financial instruments issued by FinecoBank and financial instruments issued by UniCredit S.p.A..
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(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND RECOVERY OF EXPENSES 2018 2017 AMOUNT %
1) INDIRECT TAXES AND DUTIES (101,171) (98,543) (2,628) 2.7%
2) MISCELLANEOUS COSTS AND EXPENSES
A) Advertising expenses - Marketing and ication (16,746) (16,041) (705) 4.4%
Mass media communications (11,264) (11,420) 156 -1.4%
Marketing and promotions (5,130) (4,488) (642) 14.3%
Sponsorships (22) (95) 73 -76.8%
Conventions and internal communications (330) (38) (292) 768.4%
B) Expenses related to credit risk (1,399) (1,586) 187 -11.8%
Credit recovery expenses (377) (457) 80 -17.5%
Commercial information and company searches (1,022) (1,129) 107 -9.5%
C) Expenses related to personnel (28,291) (26,167) (2,124) 8.1%
Personnel training (473) (479) 6 -1.3%
Car rental and other staff expenses (80) (84) 4 -4.8%
Personal financial adviser expenses (26,885) (25,003) (1,882) 7.5%
Travel expenses (744) (534) (210) 39.3%
Premises rentals for personnel (109) (67) (42) 62.7%
D) ICT expenses (34,694) (32,079) (2,615) 8.2%
Lease of ICT equipment and software (2,360) (2,467) 107 -4.3%
Software expenses: lease and maintenance (8,848) (8,092) (756) 9.3%
ICT communication systems (6,658) (5,723) (935) 16.3%
ICT services: external personnel/outsourced services (6,812) (6,723) (89) 1.3%
Financial information providers (10,016) (9,074) (942) 10.4%
E) Consultancies and professional services (3,950) (4,247) 297 -7.0%
Consultancy on ordinary activities (3,114) (2,665) (449) 16.8%
Consultancy for one-off regulatory compliance projects (61) (86) 25 -29.1%
Consultancy for strategy, business development and
organisational optimisation (238) (385) 147 -38.2%
Legal expenses (198) (61) (137) 224.6%
Legal disputes (339) (1,050) 711 -67.7%
F) Real estate exp (19,093) (19,373) 280 -1.4%
Real estate services (705) (720) 15 -2.1%
Repair and maintenance of furniture, machinery, and equipment (213) (200) (13) 6.5%
Maintenance of premises (1,009) (1,379) 370 -26.8%
Premises rentals (14,594) (14,387) (207) 1.4%
Cleaning of premises (522) (509) (13) 2.6%
Utilities (2,050) (2,178) 128 -5.9%
G) Other functioning costs (37,856) (36,036) (1,820) 5.1%
Surveillance and security services (404) (347) (57) 16.4%
Postage and transport of documents (3,587) (3,396) (191) 5.6%
Administrative and logistic services (19,737) (18,772) (965) 5.1%
Insurance (3,940) (3,923) (17) 0.4%
Printing and stationery (594) (511) (83) 16.2%
Association dues and fees (9,118) (8,695) (423) 4.9%
Other administrative expenses (476) (392) (84) 21.4%
H) Adjustments of leasehold impro 1 (2,301) (2,873) 572 -19.9%
1) Recovery of costs 96,767 93,367 3,400 3.6%
Recovery of ancillary expenses 155 334 (179) -53.6%
Recovery of taxes 96,612 93,033 3,579 3.8%
Total other administrative expenses and recovery of expenses (148,734) (143,578) (5,156) 3.6%

Other administrative expenses net of Recovery of expenses came to €148.7 million, of which €1.6 million relating to Fineco AM, up €5.2 million
compared to the previous year, which is in any case contained compared with the growth of the Bank's activities, assets, customers and structure.

The increase recorded is mainly due to the following items:

“Advertising expenses - Marketing and communication”, for €0.7 million;

o “Expenses related to personnel”, mainly referred to “Personal financial advisors expenses” for €1.9 million which were mainly attributable
to higher costs for incentive plans and recruiting for personal financial advisors, partially offset by lower expenses for training events;

e “ICT expenses’, in particular referred to higher “Software expenses: lease and maintenance” for an amount of €0.8 million, “ICT
communication systems” for an amount of €0.9 million and “Financial information providers” for an amount of €0.9 million;

e  “Consultancies and professional services”, mainly referred to “Consultancy on ordinary activities” for an amount of €0.4 million, including
the recruiting costs recorded by Fineco AM for an amount of €0.25 million, offset by lower expenses for “Legal disputes” for an amount of
€0.7 million;
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e “Other functioning costs” mainly referred to “Administrative and logistic services” for an amount of €1 million and “Association dues and
fees” for an amount of €0.4 million.

With reference to "Indirect and income taxes" and the related "Tax recoveries" for an amount of €1 million, thanks to lower taxes paid by the Bank
relating to the Tobin Tax for transactions carried out on behalf of third parties, and referred to “Adjustments of leasehold improvements” for an
amount of €0.6 million.

Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets were substantially in line with the previous year.

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES

2018 2017 AMOUNT %
Operating profit (loss) 379,532 353,631 25,901 7.3%
Net impairment losses on loans and provision
for guarantees and commitments (4,384) (5,351) 967 -18.1%
Net operating pofit (loss) 375,148 348,280 26,868 7.7%
Other charges and provisions (21,380) (19,025) (2,355) 12.4%
Integration costs (121) 408 (529) -129.7%
Net income from investments 1,105 (13,399) 14,504 n.c.
Profit (loss) before tax from continuing operations 354,752 316,264 38,488 12.2%

Net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments amounted to -€4.4 million on. It should be noted that accounting
standard IFRS 9, with application as of January 1st, 2018, introduced a new impairment accounting model for credit exposures and resulted in an
extension of the Bank’s scope of recognition (for additional information see Section 5 - Other aspects of Part A of the Notes to the Consolidated
Accounts), so comparison with 2017 is not significant. As at December 31, 2018 the item included additional adjustments compared to 2017, mainly
related to retail commercial loans, driven by the significant increase in performing exposures (non-performing loans remained essentially unchanged
compared to the previous year), and on the other hand, benefitted from write backs on credit exposures mainly with the Parent Company, in relation
to the reduction in the exposures and in the improvement in their risk profile.

Other charges and provisions amounted to €21.4 million, up 12.4% compared to 2017, mainly due to greater charges for the annual, ordinary and
additional contribution to Deposit Guarantee Schemes (DGS) and to the annual contribution to the Solidarity Fund, paid to the Interbank Deposit
Guarantee Fund ("IDGF") for an amount of €14.3 million compared to €10.6 million of 2017, offset by lower provisions for risks and charges for legal
disputes. Note that the annual contribution paid to Deposit Guarantee Schemes in 2017 benefited from the adjustments of the contributions for 2015
and 2016 for a total amount of €1.3 million.

Integration costs mainly refer to the provisions made to the Fund departures pursuant to the trade union agreement of 1 February 2018 (so-called
“Piano Giovani”) for the adhesion to the Solidarity Fund of new employees.

The Net income from investments stood at €1.1 million. The accounting standard IFRS 9 introduced significant changes, so comparison with the
previous year is not significant (for additional information see Section 5 - Other aspects of Part A the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts). The item
mainly includes write offs on new sovereign States, Supranational and government agency bonds purchased during 2018 and, on the other hand,
the write backs on exposures to debt securities issued by the Parent Company Unicredit S.p.A. in relation to the reduction in the exposures and in
the improvement in their risk profile.

Profit before tax from continuing operations amounted to €354.8 million, up 12.2% compared to previous year. This result was achieved thanks
to the growth in Net interest (+€13.9 million), Net fee and commission income (+€30.4 million) and Net income from investments (+€14.5
million), partially offset by lower revenues from Net trading, hedging and fair value income (-€4 million), higher Operating costs (-€12.5 million)
and higher Other charges and provisions (-€2.4 million). Excluding the non-recurring items 2018 mentioned before, the Profit before tax from
continuing operations should be €359.5 million, up 9.4% compared to the profit of 2017 net of non-recurring items.
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Income tax for the year

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
BREAKDOWN OF INCOME TAX FOR THE YEAR 2018 2017 AMOUNT %
Current IRES income tax charges (89,684) (82,939) (6,745) 8.1%
Current IRAP corporate tax charges (19,637) (18,889) (748) 4.0%
Adjustment to current tax of prior years - 3,924 (3,924) -100.0%
Total current tax (109,321) (97,904) (11,417) 11.7%
Change in deferred tax assets (1,142) (3,098) 1,956 -63.1%
Change in deferred tax liabilities (2,624) (696) (1,928) 277.0%
Total deferred tax liabilities (3,766) (3,794) 28 0.7%
Gain from substitute tax exemption (446) (446) - -
Income tax for the year (113,533) (102,144) (11,389) 11.1%

Current income taxes were calculated according to the legal provisions introduced by Legislative Decree no. 38 of February 28, 2005, which
incorporated the IAS/IFRS Accounting Standards into Italian legislation, of Decree no. 48 of April 1, 2009 which introduced provisions for the
implementation and coordination of tax requirements for IAS Adopter parties and subsequent provisions. In particular, in 2018 the decrees, issued
by the ltalian Ministry of the Economy and Finance on 10 January 2018 and on 3 August 2018, of coordination between international accounting
standards and business income, and the subsequent amendment introduced by the law were implemented 145/2018 on the deductibility of
adjustments to customer loans, recognized at the time of application of IFRS9, to be carried out on a straight line basis over 10 tax periods.

Current taxes were determined applying an IRES income tax rate of 27.5% (24% ordinary rate and 3.5% additional rate for banks) and an IRAP tax
rate of 5.57% in Italy.

As regards Fineco AM, current income taxes were calculated at a rate of 12.5%, according to the currently applicable tax regime.

Law no. 2/2009 introduced the option, through the payment of a substitute tax, to recalculate the tax deductible amounts of goodwill. In sharing with
the Parent Company, in 2008 the Bank realigned the goodwill recognised following the merger of UniCredit Xelion Sim into UniCredit Xelion Banca
S.p.A.. The redeemed goodwill may be amortised off the books for an amount not exceeding one ninth for 2010 and one tenth from 2011 onwards.
In 2008, the tax benefit expected from the future deductibility of off-the-book amortisation, corresponding to €4 million, was recognised in the
accounts. A tenth of this amount will be recognised through profit or loss for each year of the tax deduction of tax-related amortisation of goodwill.

Net profit/(loss) for the year and Net profit/(loss) attributable to the group

The Net profit for the year — which is the same as the net profit attributable to the group as Fineco AM is 100% controlled by the Bank — amounted
to €241.2 million, an increase of 12.7% on the previous year. Excluding the non-recurring items 2018 mentioned before, the Net profit for the year
should be €244.4 million, up 11.8% compared to the net profit of 2017 net of non-recurring items.
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Results of the parent and the subsidiary

The parent: FinecoBank S.p.A.

The key figures, reclassified balance sheet and income statement are shown below in comparison with 2017 together with a statement on the results
achieved by FinecoBank S.p.A. on individual basis.

Key figures
Operating Structure
DATA AS AT
12.31.2018 12.31.2017
No. Employees 1,154 1,119
No. Personal financial advisors 2,578 2,607
No. Financial shops“’ 390 375

(1) Number of operating financial shops: financial shops managed by the Bank and financial shops managed by personal financial advisors (Fineco Centers).

Main balance sheet figures'®

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES

12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Loans receivable with ordinary customers M 2,632,287 1,798,520 833,767 46.4%
Total assets 24,713 574 22,340,391 2,373,183 10.6%
Direct deposits ? 22,068,931 19,940,715 2,128,216 10.7%
Assets under administration ® 47,263,709 47,243 837 19,872 0.0%
Total customer sales (direct and indirect) 69,332,640 67,184,552 2,148,088 3.2%
Shareholders' equity 962,548 731,990 230,558 31.5%

(1) Loans refer solely to loans granted to customers (current account overdrafts, credit cards, personal loans, mortgages and unsecured loans);
(2) Direct deposits include overdrawn current accounts and the Cash Park deposit account;
(3) Assets under administration consist of products placed online or through the sales networks of FinecoBank.

Balance Sheet indicators

DATA AS AT
12.31.2018 12.31.2017
Loans receivable with ordinary customers/Total assets 10.65% 8.05%
Loans and receivables with banks/Total assets 12.32% 13.60%
Financial assets/Total assets 73.78% 74.82%
Direct sales/Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 89.30% 89.26%
Shareholders' equity (including profit)/Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 3.89% 3.28%
Ordinary customer loans/Direct deposits 11.93% 9.02%
DATA AS AT
CREDIT QUALITY 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Impaired loans/Loans receivable with ordinary customers 0.11% 0.16%
Non-performing loans/Loans receivable with ordinary customers 0.06% 0.10%
Coverage (1) - Non-performing loans 91.65% 91.70%
Coverage (1) - Unlikely to pay 76.80% 76.53%
Coverage (1) - Impaired past-due exposures 64.60% 53.69%
Coverage (1) - Total impaired loans 88.23% 88.27%

Calculated as the ratio between the amount of impairment losses and gross exposure.

16 Please note that the ratios shown in the table and relating to the year 2017 have been recalculated considering the effect of the application of IFRS9.
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Own funds and capital ratios

DATA AS AT
31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Total own funds (€ thousand) 702,713 484,960
Total risk-weighted assets (€ thousand) 2,376,033 2,335,013
Ratio - Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 21.16% 20.77%
Ratio - Tier 1 Capital 29.58% 20.77%
Ratio - Total Own Funds 29.58% 20.77%
DATA AS AT
12.31.2018 12.31.2017
Tier 1 Capital (€ thousand) 702,713 484,960
Exposure for leverage (€ thousand) 12,655,188 8,555,862
Transitional leverage ratio 5.55% 5.67%

Own funds and capital ratios were determined applying the current Supervisory Regulations, in line with Basel Il standards, including transitional
adjustments. The figures shown include the portion of profit for 2018 that will not be distributed and which will be allocated to increase the value of
reserves, for an amount of €43.4 million, assuming the conditions set forth in art. 26, paragraph 2, of the EU Regulation 575/2013 (CRR) have been
satisfied.

The leverage ratio was calculated in accordance with EU Delegated Regulation 2015/62 of October 10, 2014. As required by Circular No. 285 of the
Bank of Italy, Part Two, Chapter 12, Section Il Exercise of national discretion, exposures to the UniCredit group companies based in Italy and
weighted at 0% pursuant to Article 113, par. 6 of the CRR have not been included in the calculation of total exposure, in accordance with Article 429
(7) of the CRR amended by the Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/62.

It is worth mentioning that, within the decision of the Governing Council of the European Central Bank (ECB) on Pillar 2 prudential requirement that
UniCredit S.p.A. and its subsidiaries have to meet, no Pillar 2 buffer has been required to FinecoBank. The decision is based on the SREP
(Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process) performed by the European Central Bank, in application of article 16(2) of SSM (Single Supervisory
Mechanism) Regulation. Consequently, the "Total SREP Capital Requirement” (TSCR) applicable for FinecoBank corresponds to the minimum
requirement of Pillar 1.

Please, find below a scheme of FinecoBank transitional capital requirements and buffers applicable for 2018.

REQUIREMENTS CET1 m™ TOTAL CAPITAL
A) Pillar 1 requirements 4.50% 6.00% 8.00%
B) Pillar 2 requirements 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
C) TSCR (A+B) 4.50% 6.00% 8.00%
D) Combined Buffer requirement, of which: 1.881% 1.881% 1.881%

1. Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) 1.875% 1.875% 1.875%

2. Institution-specific Countercyclical Capital Buffer (CCyB) 0.006% 0.006% 0.006%
E) Overall Capital Requirement (C+D) 6.381% 7.881% 9.881%

As at 31 December 2018, FinecoBank ratios are compliant with all the above requirements.
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The parent: FinecoBank S.p.A. (Continuen)

Condensed Accounts

Balance Sheet

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES
ASSETS 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Cash and cash balances 6 613 (607) -99.0%
Financial assets held for trading 6,876 8,827 (1,951) -22.1%
Loans and receivables with banks 3,044,974 3,038,741 6,233 0.2%
Loans and receivables with customers 2,947,390 2,129,219 818,171 38.4%
Financial investments 18,234,182 16,715,541 1,518,641 9.1%
Hedging instruments 8,187 10,048 (1,861) -18.5%
Property, plant and equipment 16,330 15,205 1,125 7.4%
Goodwill 89,602 89,602 - -
Other intangible assets 8,705 7,909 796 10.1%
Tax assets 6,714 9,226 (2,512) -27.2%
Other assets 350,608 315,460 35,148 11.1%
Total assets 24,713,574 22,340,391 2,373,183 10.6%

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGES
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2018 12.31.2017 AMOUNT %
Deposits from banks 1,009,774 926,001 83,773 9.0%
Deposits from customers 22,269,098 20,205,036 2,064,062 10.2%
Financial liabilities held for trading 2,221 11,936 (9,715) -81.4%
Hedging instruments 7,941 (397) 8,338 n.c.
Tax liabilities 12,184 10,234 1,950 19.1%
Other liabilities 449,808 455,591 (5,783) -1.3%
Shareholders' equity 962,548 731,990 230,558 31.5%
- capital and reserves 744,420 526,046 218,374 41.5%
- revaluation reserves (9,794) (8,340) (1,454) 17.4%
- net profit 227,922 214,284 13,638 6.4%
Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 24,713,574 22,340,391 2,373,183 10.6%

FinecoBank - Reports and Accounts 2018 67



Consolidated Report on Operations

Balance Sheet - Quarterly data

(Amounts in € thousand

AMOUNST AS AT

ASSETS 12.31.2018 09.30.2018 06.30.2018 03.31.2018 01.01.2018 12.31.2017
Cash and cash balances 6 532 1,733 745 613 613
Financial assets held for trading 6,876 12,253 10,871 10,368 8,827 8,827
Loans and receivables with banks 3,044,974 3,389,611 3,222,651 3,485,263 3,035,869 3,038,741
Loans and receivables with customers 2,947,390 2,731,630 2,634,016 2,318,096 2,128,528 2,129,219
Financial investments 18,234,182 17,668,380 17,191,339 17,098,494 16,724,688 16,715,541
Hedging instruments 8,187 313 2,667 356 119 10,048
Property, plant and equipment 16,330 14,226 14,772 14,839 15,205 15,205
Goodwill 89,602 89,602 89,602 89,602 89,602 89,602
Other intangible assets 8,705 7,898 7,827 7,584 7,909 7,909
Tax assets 6,714 17,097 9,742 6,304 8,615 9,226
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified
as held for sale - - 91 - - -
Other assets 350,608 240,813 240,994 203,763 315,459 315,460
Total assets 24,713,574 24,172,355 23,426,305 23,235,414 22,335,434 22,340,391

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNTS AS AT

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2018 09.30.2018 06.30.2018 03.31.2018 01.01.2018 12.31.2017
Deposits from banks 1,009,774 999,543 907,794 960,046 926,001 926,001
Deposits from customers 22,269,098 21,825,892 21,196,653 20,916,380 20,205,036 20,205,036
Financial liabilities held for trading 2,221 5512 4,568 4,892 11,936 11,936
Hedging instruments 7,941 (285) 2,374 (460) (397) (397)
Tax liabilities 12,184 48,674 22,038 36,307 7,718 10,234
Other liabilities 449,808 396,870 417,630 325,554 456,042 455,591
Shareholders' equity 962,548 896,149 875,248 992,695 729,098 731,990
- capital and reserves 744,420 746,502 763,981 937,240 521,178 526,046
- revaluation reserves (9,794) (19,760) (14,997) (3,994) (6,364) (8,340)
- net profit 227,922 169,407 126,264 59,449 214,284 214,284
Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 24,713,574 24,172,355 23,426,305 23,235,414 22,335,434 22,340,391

Loans and receivables with banks_came to €3,045 million, substantially unchanged compared to December 31, 2017 (+ 0.2%). The exposures
are mainly represented by the liquidity deposited on current accounts and time deposits with the Parent Company UniCredit S.p.A..

Loans and receivables with customers came to €2,947.4 million, up 38.4% compared to December 31, 2017, thanks to the increase in lending.
During the 2018, €248 million in personal loans and €411 million in mortgages were granted, and €945 million in current account overdrafts were
arranged, with an increase in exposures in current account of €377 million; this has resulted an overall 46.4% aggregate increase in loans to
customers compared to December 31, 2017.

Other financial assets amounted to €18,234.2 million, up 9.1% on 31 December 2017. The carrying amounts of the debt securities issued by
UniCredit S.p.A. amounted to €9,115.8 million, down compared to the €10,838.9 million asat December 31, 2017. It is noted that during 2018 the
Parent Company repaid bonds at maturity with a nominal value of €1,680 million and $ 50 million; the Bank purchased government, Supranational
and government agency bonds.

Deposits from banks totaled €1,009.8 million, showing a slight increase in debts recorded at 31 December 2017 (+9%). Debts mainly include the
amount of repos traded with UniCredit S.p.A. and securities lending transactions guaranteed by sums of money made with other banks.

Deposits from customers came to €22,269.1 million, up 10.2% compared to December 31, 2017, due to the growth in direct deposits.

Shareholders' equity amounted to €962.5 million, up 31.5% compared to December 31, 2017. The increase is mainly due to the issue on January
31, 2018 of an Additional Tier 1 Perp bond (5.5 years) for an amount of €200 million, fully subscribed by the Parent Company, to the part of net
profit 2017 allocated to reserves, as resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on 11 April 2018, for an amount of €40.8 million, to the increase in
net profit 2018 compared to December 31, 2017 (+€13.6 million), partially offset by the purchases, made during 2018, of treasury shares in relation
to the "2017 PFA incentive system" for Financial Advisors identified as "Key personnel" and in relation to the "2015-2017 PFA PLAN" in favour of
selected Financial Advisors.
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The parent: FinecoBank S.p.A. (Continuen)

Income statement

(Amounts in € thousand)

YEAR CHANGES
2018 2017 AMOUNT %
Net interest 278,702 264,781 13,921 5.3%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 8,042 29 8,013 n.c
Net fee and commission income 273,828 270,083 3,745 1.4%
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 44,239 48,219 (3,980) -8.3%
Net other expenses/income 300 3,806 (3,506) -92.1%
OPERATING INCOME 605,111 586,918 18,193 3.1%
Staff expenses (84,310) (79,260) (5,050) 6.4%
Other administrative expenses (244,009) (236,839) (7,170) 3.0%
Recovery of expenses 96,767 93,369 3,398 3.6%
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (10,370) (10,369) (1) 0.0%
Operating costs (241,922) (233,099) (8,823) 3.8%
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 363,189 353,819 9,370 2.6%
Net impairment losses on loans and
provisions for guarantees and commitments (4,392) (5,351) 959 -17.9%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 358,797 348,468 10,329 3.0%
Other charges and provisions (21,380) (19,025) (2,355) 12.4%
Integration costs (121) 408 (529) -129.7%
Net income from investments 1,105 (13,399) 14,504 n.c.
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 338,401 316,452 21,949 6.9%
Income tax for the year (110,479) (102,168) (8,311) 8.1%
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 227,922 214,284 13,638 6.4%
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 227,922 214,284 13,638 6.4%
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Income statement - Quarterly data

(Amounts in € thousand)

2018
4™ QUARTER 3%° QUARTER 2"° QUARTER 15T QUARTER
Net interest 71,095 69,950 68,753 68,904
Dividends and other income from equity investments 8,012 10 13 7
Net fee and commission income 67,059 60,790 74,517 71,462
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 5,900 10,721 13,080 14,538
Net other expenses/income (30) (345) 124 551
OPERATING INCOME 152,036 141,126 156,487 155,462
Staff expenses (21,063) (22,479) (20,509) (20,259)
Other administrative expenses (58,618) (58,851) (61,273) (65,267)
Recovery of expenses 22,982 25,162 23,922 24,701
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (3,114) (2,435) (2,482) (2,339)
Operating costs (59,813) (58,603) (60,342) (63,164)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 92,223 82,523 96,145 92,298
Net impairment losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments (2,322) (913) 154 (1,311)
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 89,901 81,610 96,299 90,987
Other charges and provisions (1,782) (15,899) (1,925) (1,774)
Integration costs (115) (2) (2) (2)
Net income from investments (3,151) (902) 5,157 1
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 84,853 64,807 99,529 89,212
Income tax for the period (26,338) (21,664) (32,714) (29,763)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 58,515 43,143 66,815 59,449
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 58,515 43,143 66,815 59,449
(Amounts in € thousand)
2017
4™ QUARTER 3% QUARTER 2"° QUARTER 15T QUARTER
Net interest 70,069 67,415 64,334 62,963
Dividends and other income from equity investments 11 6 6 6
Net fee and commission income 70,696 69,680 65,026 64,681
Net trading, hedging and fair value income 11,100 11,127 12,282 13,710
Net other expenses/income 3,976 63 (764) 531
OPERATING INCOME 155,852 148,291 140,884 141,891
Staff expenses (20,567) (19,769) (19,708) (19,216)
Other administrative expenses (59,925) (53,021) (61,451) (62,442)
Recovery of expenses 24,989 21,888 23,215 23,277
Impairment/write-backs on intangible and tangible assets (2,908) (2,628) (2,503) (2,330)
Operating costs (58,411) (53,530) (60,447) (60,711)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 97,441 94,761 80,437 81,180
Net impairment losses on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments (2,124) (1,577) (1,053) (597)
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 95,317 93,184 79,384 80,583
Other charges and provisions 5,154 (21,029) (773) (2,377)
Integration costs 428 (7) 1 (14)
Net income from investments (11,598) (1,448) (361) 8
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 89,301 70,700 78,251 78,200
Income tax for the period (26,055) (23,929) (25,678) (26,506)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 63,246 46,771 52,573 51,694
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 63,246 46,771 52,573 51,694
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The parent: FinecoBank S.p.A. (Continuen)

Operating income came to €605.1 million, with an increase of 3.1% compared to €586.9 million of the previous year.

Net interest and Net fee and commission income contributed to the increase in the operating income as they rose, respectively, by 5.3% and
1.4%, as well as the Dividends and other income from equity investments; while Net trading, hedging and fair value income decreased by
8.3%.

The increase in Net interest of €13.9 million compared to the previous year was due, first of all, to the increase in transactional liquidity and the
higher penetration of lending. In this regard it should be noted that the structure of the investments carried out by the Bank contributed to
maintaining a significant level of interest income, with the average gross rate on interest-earning assets standing at 1.30% (1.35% as at December
31, 2017).

Dividends and other income from equity investments include the dividend received from Fineco AM during the last quarter of 2018, amounting
to €8.0, as deliberated by the Board of Directors held on November 5, 2018.

Net fee and commission income increased €3.7 million compared to the the previous year, mainly thanks to higher net fee and commission
income for management, brokerage and consulting services (+€3 million), collection and payment services (+€2.9 million), other services (+€2.2
million) mainly relating to the annual fee on credit cards and by lower fee and commission expenses (+€3.7 million) paid to personal financial
advisors; on the other hand, the commissions for placement and management of asset management products and advisory fees for investments
were down (€-6.5 million).

Net trading, hedging and fair value income was mainly generated by gains realised from the internalisation activity of securities and CFD
derivatives, financial instruments used for operational hedging of CFDs and the exchange differences on assets and liabilities denominated in
currency, decreased by 3.6 million compared to the previous year. Trading profit also incorporates gains and losses from the financial instruments
recognised in “Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value”, including, as described above, the class “C” preferred shares of Visa INC and the
exposure in equity securities versus the Voluntary Scheme established by the Interbank Fund for the Protection of Deposits, whose fair-value
measurement resulted in a gain of €1.6 million and in a loss of €3 million, respectively, in 2018. The item also includes the profits recognised in
relation to the sale of government securities recorded in the “Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income” for an amount of €1.7
million.

Operating costs remain under control, highlighting an increased by €8.8 million compared to the previous year (+€5 million for staff expenses and
+€3.8 million for “Other administrative expenses net of Recovery of expenses”). The 3.8% increase in operating costs, in fact, is limited compared to
the expansion of assets, customers and structure, confirming the strong operational leverage of the Bank and the widespread corporate culture in
cost governance theme, certified by a cost/income ratio of 39.98% (39.72% at 31 December 2017).

Net write-downs of loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments amounted to -€4.4 million on. It should be noted that accounting
standard IFRS 9, with application as of January 1st, 2018, introduced a new impairment accounting model for credit exposures and resulted in an
extension of the Bank’s scope of recognition (for additional information see Section 5 - Other aspects of Part A of the Notes to the Consolidated
Accounts), so comparison with 2017 is not significant. As at December 31, 2018 the item included additional adjustments compared to 2017, mainly
related to retail commercial loans, driven by the significant increase in performing exposures (non-performing loans remained essentially unchanged
compared to the previous year), and on the other hand, benefitted from write backs on transaction mainly with the Parent Company Unicredit S.p.A.,
in relation to the reduction in the exposures and in the improvement in their risk profile.

Other charges and provisions amounted to €21.4 million, up 12.4% compared to 2017, mainly due to greater charges for the annual, ordinary and
additional contribution to Deposit Guarantee Schemes (DGS) and to the annual contribution to the Solidarity Fund, paid to the Interbank Deposit
Guarantee Fund ("IDGF") for an amount of €14.3 million compared to €10.6 million of the previous year, offset by lower provisions for risks and
charges for legal disputes and claims. Note that the annual contribution paid to Deposit Guarantee Schemes in 2017 benefited from the adjustments
of the contributions for 2015 and 2016 for a total amount of €1.3 million.

The Net income from investments stood at €1.1 million. The accounting standard IFRS 9 introduced significant changes in the classification and
measurement of financial instruments, so comparison with the previous year is not significant (for additional information see Section 5 - Other
aspects of Part A of the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts). The item includes write offs on new sovereign States, Supranational and government
agency bonds purchased during 2018 and, on the other hand, the write backs on exposures to debt securities issued by the Parent Company
Unicredit S.p.A. in relation to the reduction in the exposures and in the improvement in their risk profile.

Profit before tax from continuing operations amounted to €338.4 million, up 6.9% compared to previous year. Excluding the non-recurring items
2018"" mentioned before, the Profit before tax from continuing operations should be €343.2 million, up 4.3% compared to 20178 net of non-
recurring items.

17 Change in fair value of the exposure in equity securities versus the Voluntary Scheme established by the Interbank Fund for the Protection of Deposits for an amount of -€3 million (€2 million net of the tax effect),
severance paid in for an amount of -€1.6 million (-€1.1 million net of the tax effect) and integration costs for an amount of €0.1 million (-€0.1 million) net of the tax effect).

18 Losses from write-offs and value adjustments made to the exposure in equity securities against the Voluntary Scheme established by Interbank Fund for the Protection of Deposits, for an amount of -€12.9 million (-8.6
million net of tax effect); release of integration costs estimated in the previous year, for an amount of + €0.4 million (+€0.3 million net of the tax effect); positive change in current taxes referring to the application of the
participation exemption on the capital gain realized in 2016 from the sale of the investment in VISA Europe Ltd, for an amount of +€3.9 million.
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The Net profit for the year amounted to €227.9 million, showing an increase of 6.4% compared to €214.3 million of the previous year. Excluding
the non-recurring items 2018 mentioned before, the Net profit for the year should be €231.1 million, up 5.7% compared to 2017 net of non-recurring
items.
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The subsidiary: Fineco Asset Management (DAC)

Fineco AM®, fully owned by FinecoBank, was incorporated (set-up) on 26 October 2017 in the Republic of Ireland with the aim to offer its customers
a range of UCITS with a strategy focused on the definition of strategic asset allocation and selection of the best international managers, and
therefore, diversify and improve the offer of asset management products and further increase the competitiveness of the Bank through a vertically
integrated business model. For this purpose, in December 2017 Fineco AM required the authorization to the Central Bank of Ireland, in order to
become a UCITS Fund Manager, within the UCITS Service Providers, authorization received on 17 May 2018. In order to allow the positive
conclusion of that process FinecoBank, the only shareholder of Fineco AM, fully subscribed a capital increase, bringing the share capital from €0.5
million to €3 million in March 2018.

During the first half of 2018 Fineco AM has carried on the passporting process of the UCITS Management Company from Ireland to Luxembourg
with the aim to become the Manager of the “Fonds Commun de Placement (FCP) CORE SERIES Umbrella Fund”, managed by Amundi S.a.. The
passporting process was successfully concluded on 2 July 2018, subsequently to have obtained CSSF (Commission de Surveillance du Secteur
Financier) approval of the new CORE SERIES Prospectus and have signed the transfer contract with Amundi S.a. of CORE SERIES FCP,
therefore, from that date the company is fully operational and closed its first financial year on 31 December 2018.

As at December 31, 2018, Fineco AM managed volumes of €10.0 billion, of which €6.0 billion were retail classes and €4.0 billion institutional
classes. Note that, €6.0 billion refer to CoRe SERIES Umbrella Fund and €4.0 billion refer to FAM Series UCITS ICAV.

As at December 31, 2018, Fineco AM has a total asset of €27.9 million, mainly consists of Loans and receivables with banks, represented by a
restricted deposit opened at UniCredit Bank Ireland Plc, with a maturity in December 2019, for an amount of €8 million and by the sight deposits with
Bank AIB for €5.9 million, and by Loans and receivables with customers, exclusively represented operating receivables associated with the
provision of services.

Deposits from banks and Deposits from customers totaled €9.8 million, are represented exclusively by operating payables connected with the
provision of services, relating to the placement and management fees of UCITS to be paid back to the placers, including FinecoBank for €5.7
million, and to investment advisors.

Shareholders’ equity amounted to €16.1 million and consists of share capital for €3 million, net income of €21.3 million, net of the abovementione
dividends paid to FinecoBank in the last quarter of 2018 for €8 million.

At 31 December 2018 the company's resources were 13. Recruitment from the market, which took place in 2018, was aimed at establishing the
company's staff, with the profiles selected covering both business and support and control functions.

9 0n4 May 2018 the company was renamed as "Fineco Asset Management DAC " (formerly "Fineco Asset Management Limited").
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Related-party Transactions

The Board of Directors, in order to ensure continued compliance with applicable legal and regulatory provisions on corporate disclosure on
transactions with related parties and persons in conflict of interest, during the meeting on July 31, 2018 and with the prior favorable opinion of the
Risk and Related Parties Committee and the Board of Statutory Auditors, approved the last update “Procedures for managing transactions with
subjects in conflict of interest” (the “Procedures”).

The aforementioned Procedures include the provisions to be complied with when managing:

related parties transactions pursuant to the Consob Regulation adopted by resolution on March 12, 2010, no. 17221 as subsequently
amended;

transactions with associated persons pursuant to the regulations on "Risk activities and conflicts of interest with Associated Persons", laid
down by Bank of Italy Circular on December 27, 2006, no. 263, Title V, Chapter 5 ("New regulations for the prudential supervision of
banks", as amended);

obligations of bank officers pursuant to Article 136 of Legislative Decree 385 on September 1, 1993, showing the "Consolidated Law on
Banking".

Given that the Bank belongs to the UniCredit Group, the aforementioned Procedures are also based on the "UniCredit Global Policy for the
management of transactions with persons in conflict of interest" and the relevant "Global Process Regulation" issued by UniCredit to subsidiaries as
part of its management and coordination.

Considering the above, the following Significant Transactions resolved by the Board of Directors during 2018 are recorded:

on January 23, 2018, with the favorable opinion of the Risks and Related Parties Committee, the Board of Directors authorized the issue

of an Additional Tier 1 bond totaling € 200 million, fully subscribed by means of private placement by the Group Parent UniCredit S.p.A.;

the duration of the loan is perpetual, linked to the statutory duration of the Bank, and the coupon for the first 5.5 years was set at 4.82%.

The transaction is an “Ordinary Significant Transaction at market conditions”;

on February 6, 2018, with the favorable opinion of the Risks and Related Parties Committee, the Board of Directors approved the renewal

of the "Framework Resolution related to the entering into of hedging derivative contracts with the Parent Company or companies in the

UniCredit Group", an ordinary Significant Transaction at market conditions with validity up until February 6th, 2019, which enables the

Bank to enter into hedging derivatives with the Parent Company and with UniCredit Bank AG for commercial assets or liabilities that, for

ALM purposes, require interest rate hedging, with a plafond of €1,000 million with the Parent Company and €1,300 million with UniCredit

Bank AG;

on May 8, 2018, with the favorable opinion by the Risk and Related Parties Committee, the Board of Directors approved the renewal of

the:

o "Framework Resolution - Repurchase Agreements and Term Deposits with the Parent Company", an ordinary Significant
Transaction at market conditions (expiring May 8, 2019), concerning (i) Repurchase Agreements with the Parent Company for an
amount of €7.1 billion, calculated as the sum of the individual transactions in absolute value (either repos or reverse repos) and (i)
Term deposits with the Parent Company for an amount of €6.3 billion, calculated as the sum of the individual transactions in
absolute value;

o  "Framework Resolution for the transactions on current accounts held with UniCredit’, an ordinary Significant Transaction at market
conditions (expiring May 8, 2019), which enables the Bank to manage transaction through specific current accounts with UniCredit
S.p.A. for an maximum amount of € 1,000 million understood as a single transaction (single payment and single withdrawal);

on June 12, 2018, with the favorable opinion of the Risks and Related Parties Committee, , the Board of Directors approved the renewal

of the “Framework Resolution — Trading of financial instruments with institutional counterparties and with UniCredit, on their own account

and on behalf of third parties, respectively by the Treasury and Markets functions ", an ordinary Significant Transaction at market
conditions (expiring June 11, 2019), which enables the Bank to carry out trading in derivatives with related parties institutional
counterparties, up to a permitted limit of: (i) €2.7 billion with UniCredit Bank AG, (ii) €250 million with Mediobanca S.p.A. and (i) €1

billion with UniCredit S.p.A.;

on September 18, 2018, with the favourable opinion of the Risks and Related Parties Committee, the Board of Directors approved the

renewal of the “Framework resolution Stock Lending Activities with institutional customers”, ordinary Significant Transaction at market

conditions effective until September 17, 2019, related to share securities lending transactions, through which FinecoBank may
implement, until the above expiry date, those transactions with a plafond of €700 million for transactions with UniCredit Bank AG and

€200 million for transactions with Mediobanca S.p.A.;

on November 6, 2018, with the favourable opinion of the Risks and Related Parties Committee, the Board of Directors approved the

renewal of the “Framework resolution - Trading of financial instruments of the Parent Company”, ordinary Significant Transaction at

market conditions effective until November 6, 2019 related to the purchase or sale of financial instruments issued by UniCredit with limit
of € 1,530 million.
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Furthermore, the Risks and Related Parties Committee and the Board of Directors, respectively on 10 and 11 December 2018, issued positive
opinions, in compliance with the aforementioned Procedures, on the completion of an ordinary Significant Transaction at market conditions,
proposed by the subsidiary Fineco Asset Management DAC (Fineco AM or FAM DAC) and related to the "Framework Resolution - FAM DAC term
deposits with UniCredit Bank Ireland Plc," conceming the term deposit transactions with a credit plafond of € 55 million which FAM DAC will be able
to carry out with UniCredit Bank Ireland Plc until December 10, 2019.

As already mentioned in the disclosure provided in the 2017 Financial Statements, on December 5, 2017, the Board of Directors — with the
favourable opinion of the Risk and Related Parties Committee — approved the signing of a new life insurance brokerage contract between
FinecoBank S.p.A. and Aviva S.p.A. (related party), to replace the agreement originally signed in 2002 by UniCredit Xelion Banca S.p.A., which was
replaced by FinecoBank S.p.A. as a result of the merger. The projected figures as at December 31, 2017 (€13.4 million net to be paid to the Bank)
classified the transaction as “Significant typical Transaction carried out at arm’s length”. The contract was finalized on April 5, 2018. In the
meanwhile, as part of the same agreement, in March 2018 the placement of the Aviva "Multiramo Extra" product was included, which combines with
and supplements the range of other “Multi-line" products already in the catalogue.

In relation to the above transactions, the Bank provided a simplified disclosure to CONSOB pursuant to Art. 13, paragraph 3, letter c) of CONSOB
Regulation on March 12, 2010, no. 17221.

During the exercise closed on 31 December 2018, no other transactions were undertaken with related parties that could significantly affect the
Bank's asset situation and results, or atypical and/or unusual transactions, including intercompany and related party transactions.

Minor Transactions were also carried out with the Parent Company, other Group companies and/or with related parties in general, both Italian and
foreign, within the ordinary course of business and related financial activities of the Bank, at market or standard conditions.

Lastly, with regard to transactions of significant financial and economic relevance, during 2012, the Bank issued 5 bank guarantees in favour of the
Italian Revenue Agency upon (guaranteed) request by UniCredit S.p.A., with indefinite duration (specifically, valid until the Italian Revenue Agency
issues a declaration of receipt of the payment by UniCredit S.p.A. at the end of the collection process, in the event of an unfavourable outcome for
UniCredit S.p.A., or until a ruling is issued in favour of the Bank by means of final judgement), for a total amount of €256 million, plus interest
accrued and accruing until request for payment from the Italian Revenue Agency. The bank guarantees were issued to secure the obligations
assumed by UniCredit S.p.A. in relation to five VAT refund suspension orders issued by the Italian Revenue Agency, and entail the assumption by
the Bank of an irrevocable payment commitment on demand, within 30 days and without any exceptions. In 2013, following the settiement of an
overall assessment notice issued by the Regional Department of Liguria, for €4.5 million, replaced by another assessment notice issued by the
same Department up to the amount settled, a guarantee already issued by the Bank was replaced, with amounts unchanged; this transaction did not
change the commitments undertaken according to the forms, procedures and risks already assessed during 2012, which are still unchanged; in this
regard it is specified, however, following the consolidation of the definition of pending charges linked to the aforementioned bank guarantees, in
December 2018 UniCredit S.p.A. has required the almost total release (about €224.5 million) to the competent office of the Regional Department of
Liguria and the Bank is waiting for the corresponding reply.
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Transactions with Group companies

The Bank and Fineco AM are subject to the direction and coordination of UniCredit S.p.A. and, consequently, pursuant to Article 2497 bis paragraph
4 of the ltalian Civil Code, the key figures from the last approved financial statements of UniCredit S.p.A. are provided in Part C — Section 24 of the
Notes to the Consolidated Accounts.

The following table provides a summary of outstanding assets, liabilities, guarantees and commitments as at December 31, 2018 as well as the
costs (-) and revenues (+) recorded in 2018 in relation to Group companies.

(Amounts in € thousand)

GUARANTEES AND INCOME

ASSETS LIABILITIES COMMITMENTS STATEMENTS

Transactions with Parent Company UniCredit S.p.A. 12,126,481 996,690 256,070 164,561
Transactions with companies controlled by UniCredit S.p.A. 8,351 35,821 - (8,444)

For detailed information on transactions with group companies and other related parties see the comments in this regard in Part H of the Notes to
the Consolidated Accounts.

The following table provides a summary of outstanding assets, liabilities, guarantees and commitments as at December 31, 2018 as well as the
costs (-) and revenues (+) recorded in 2018 with Fineco AM, which is consolidated.

(Amounts in € thousand)

GUARANTEES AND INCOME
ASSETS LIABILITIES COMMITMENTS STATEMENTS
Transactions with the subsidiary Fineco Asset Management DAC 5,812 - - 35,753

Number of treasury shares of the parent company

As at December 31, 2018, the Bank held 1,401,288 treasury shares, corresponding to 0.23% of the share capital, for an amount of €14 million.
During the year 2018 n. 27,644 shares were purchased in relation to the “2017 PFA Incentive System” for personal financial advisors identified as
“Key personnel” and n. 1,971,871 shares were purchased in relation to the “2015--2017 PFA PLAN” for selected personal financial advisors, in
accordance with what was authorised by the FinecoBank Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting on April 11, 2017. During the year, 658,624 FinecoBank
ordinary shares held in the portfolio were assigned to personal financial advisors in relation to the "2015-2017 PFA PLAN".

The Bank and its subsidiary do not hold shares of its Parent Company, Unicredit S.p.A., even through other companies or third parties.
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1. Strategy

Our Bank is characterised by a unique business model that effectively combines powerful digital banking and brokerage platforms with the physical
touch of extensive network of financial advisors. The One Stop Solution is a distinctive feature of the Bank that allows us to gain a strong
competitive advantage: high-quality products and services are accessible from a single current account, making life easier for our customers.

Our business model is constantly focused on excellence and assures our customers a unique customer experience.

Fineco was founded on three main pillars: efficiency, innovation and transparency, which are the keys to our strategy and provide a clear guide
to our path of sustainable growth.

EFFICIENCY INNOVATION TRANSPARENCY
Strong focus on IT & Operations, Anticipate new needs to simplify Fairness and respect for all our
more flexibility, lower costs customers’ life Stakeholders

Having been built from scratch, our Bank has no legacy; this allows us to be more efficient. Efficiency is core in all Bank's activities: thanks to our
proprietary back-end, internal development and automated processes, we can benefit from a lean and efficient cost structure and fast time-to-market
in delivering new products and services.

Innovation is the way to achieve our mission: simplify the lives of customers with easy-to-use services and anticipate their needs, leveraging on
increasing digitalization.

Fairness and transparency towards our clients is part of our DNA. We strongly believe that these key drivers are the basis to creating sustainable
long-term value for all our stakeholders.

Our work is based on passion, innovation and efficiency and on the quality of our people and services. We strive every day to support people’s
wellbeing and progress in the local communities where we operate. Continuous engagement with our stakeholders at all levels of the organization is
essential to our decision-making processes, which aims to create long-term value.

Our sustainable growth strategy is inspired by the generally accepted international declarations and conventions, standards, principles, guidelines
and recommendations, including:

The Universal Declaration of Human Rights

International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights

International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights

International Labor Organization's (ILO) Fundamental Human Rights Conventions
(convention 29, 87, 98, 100, 105, 111, 138 and 182)

Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights: Implementing the United Nations
“Protect, Respect and Remedy” Framework

OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises (2011 edition)

UN Global Compact principles

UN Principles for Responsible Investment (UN PRI)

United Nations Environment Programme Finance Initiative (UNEP FI) Statement of
Commitment by Financial Institutions on Sustainable Development

Women's Empowerment Principles
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Our daily activities are at all times inspired by five Fundamental Principles, which we share with the UniCredit Group:

N M == B

Customers People Cooperation Risk Execution
First Development & Synergies Management & Discipline
High quality customer Our employees are one We use streamlined Thanks to a highly Efficient and well-
experience based on of our main competitive processes thanks to a diversified business integrated Governance
efficiency, innovation advantages. We very efficient internal model, we are able to enable us to simplify
and transparency. promote professional organization. Close deal with all different decision-making
Customer centricity is growth through internal collaboration and market phases, reducing processes
key to deliver excellence dedicated development internalization of processes risks but without missing
in all services plans and training are key to achieving service out on opportunities

programs designed excellence and robust

to improve work-life- operating leverage

balance

a. Materiality analysis

In 2018 we started a structured, phased approach that aimed at defining the materiality matrix for the Bank with the scientific support of ALTIS,
Universita Cattolica del Sacro Cuore of Milan.

The materiality matrix follows the Global Reporting Initiatives Guidelines (GRI) and summarizes the relevant topics (so-called material topics) for the
Bank and its stakeholders. These topics, as relevant, guide both the reporting and the path that leads to the creation of long-term value.

The materiality matrix of the Bank includes 20 aspects, aggregated in 8 macro-topics:

Efficiency and Solidity

Customer experience Innovation

Fairness

Transparency

Sustainable and Responsible Investments
Internal Control System and Risk Management
People Development

Environmental Sustainability

The identification of the material topics is the result of a direct engagement process of the Bank's management and an indirect analysis of the
relevance perceived by the stakeholders, using a number of internal and external sources (listening tools such as surveys on customers satisfaction,
corporate reputation and working atmosphere, press reviews, analysis of Regulatory sources and sustainability rating agencies).
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The resulting materiality matrix has been approved by the Sustainability Managerial Committee and by the Appointment and Sustainability
Committee of the Bank.

Materiality Matrix for FinecoBank

' I Transparency \'4

Responsible Customer Experience
Finance Innovation

A ¥

- FINECO L
Fairness People
: B A N K Development

5 x

< 5

Environmental Efficiency and Solidity
Impact .

Internal Control System
and Risk Management

Table of material topics and their impacts (GRI Standard2?)

The table of material topics describes, for each macro-topic, the material topic and for each material topic the internal and external topic.

IMPACT OF MATERIAL TOPICS

MACRO-TOPIC GRI STANDARD

INTERNAL EXTERNAL

FAIRNESS AND TRANSPARENCY
TRASPARENCY IN OFFERING PRODUCTS AND 417 FinecoBank Shareholders, Customers, Regulators
SERVICES

2 Global Reporting Initiative guidelines. Today they are the reference guidelines for socio-environmental reporting, widespread both at a national and international level.
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HUMAN RESOURCES _
MANAGEMENT 401 FinecoBank Shareholders, Employees, PFAs
MANAGEMENT OF INDUSTRIAL 402 ) S
RELATIONS FinecoBank hareholders, Employees, PFAs
PEOPLE DEVELOPMENT HEALTH AND SAFE WORK ]
CONDITIONS 403 FinecoBank Shareholders, Employees, PFAs
TRAINING AND EDUCATION 404 FinecoBank Shareholders, Employees, PFAs
DIVERSITY AND EQUAL 405 FinecoBank Shareholders. Emol PEA
OPPORTUNITY inecoBan areholders, Employees, PFAs
NON-DISCRIMINATION 406 FinecoBank Shareholders, Employees, PFAs
EFFICIENCY AND ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE 201 FinecoBank Shareholders, Financial community,
SOLIDITY Regulators
INTERNAL CONTROL N
SYSTEM AND RISK RISK MANAGEMENT GRI G4 D'\!SAZ FORMER FinecoBank Sharellc:rc:]ir]s;n(i)us;o:i::,t::;anmal
MANAGEMENT . Reg
REDUCE ENVIRONMENTAL Shareholders, Local communities
IMPACTS (RAW MATERIAL 301 FinecoBank Syu liers '
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSUMPTION) PP
IMPACT COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND Shareholders, Local communities
REGULATIONS IN 307 FinecoBank Ré Jlators ’
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 9
ANTI-CORRUPTION 205 FinecoBank Shareholders, Financial community,
Regulators
Shareholders, Customers, Financial
ANTI-COMPETITIVE BEHAVIOR 2 i ’ '
FAIRNESS €0 0 0 FinecoBank community, Regulators
SOCIOECONOMIC COMPLIANCE 419 FinecoBank Shareholders, Regulators
PROTECTION OF CUSTOMER )
PRIVACY 419 FinecoBank Shareholders, Customers, Regulators
FINANCIAL INCLUSION AND GRI G4 FS14 FinecoBank Shareholders. Customers. Requlators
EDUCATION G4 DMA FORMER FS16 | ' mecoran ’ 'R
RESPONSIBLE FINANCE
SPONS ¢ RESPONSIBLE PRODUCTS AND GRI G4 PRODUCT i Bank Shareholders, Customers, Financial
inecoBan

INVESTMENTS

PORTFOLIO - FS7, FS8

community

In addition to the GRI topics, the following topics have also been considered for the materiality analysis and have been assessed as materials:

INNOVATION FinecoBank Shareholders, Customers
CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE INNOVATION QUALITY AND VALUE FinecoBank Shareholders, Qustomers, Financial
community, Regulators
FAIRNESS CLEAR APPROACH TO MARKETS FinecoBank Shareholders, Regulators
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b. Stakeholder Engagement
Our key stakeholders have been identified by the managers of the Bank during the interviews for the materiality analysis.

The managers run an assessment concerning the interest of stakeholders towards the activities, the strategy and the financial results and their level
of influence towards the Bank, identifying as relevant stakeholders those that reported a higher than average rating with reference to both
dimensions: relevance for FinecoBank / interest in FinecoBank.

Stakeholders engagement

Over the years we have developed several tools to interact with our stakeholders and better manage our relationship with them. The Bank involves
stakeholders through several listening activities. Through a careful analysis of the needs and opinions of each stakeholder, we can develop more
targeted strategies, improving decision-making and our offer of products and services.

The table below shows the main categories of stakeholders (internal and external) relevant to the Bank and the main dialogue tools activated with
them:

Our main internal and external stakeholders and dialogue tools are:

e  Evaluation of customer satisfaction

e Instant feedback

e  Customer Care

e  Social Media

e  “People survey” on working life at Fineco and in the Group

e Annual Performance Management for employees / Talent Management Review for talent / Executive
Development Plan for Executives

e Intranet portal

e  Orientation session with heads of the banking business, Human Resources and trade union organisations

e  Ad-hoc research on specific topics (e.g. Smart Work, Onboarding)

e  Dedicated platform

e  Specific meetings at different levels (Area Manager, General Manager, Team, one-to-one)

e  (Calls and web conferences

e  Workshops and dedicated working groups

Committees

Training

General Shareholders' Meeting

Meetings with analysts, investors and proxy advisors

Investor Relations activities

Meetings

c. Our contribution to the Sustainable Development Goals

The 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, adopted by all United Nations Member States in 2015, provides a shared blueprint for peace and
prosperity for people and the planet, now and into the future. At its heart are the 17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)?".

Our most significant initiatives are consistent with the achievement of these goals, to contribute to global development, to promote the well-being of
individuals and to preserve natural resources.

2 The selection of the initiatives and of the SDGs is not exhaustive.
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ONGOING INITIATIVES SDGs REFERENCES

713 ion Chapter

Sustainability

Subchapter:

2. Customers

4. Personal Financial
Advisors (PFA)

8. Local communities and
environmental impacts

10. Internal Control System
and Risk Management

* OFFER OF ESG FUNDS
* MULTICHANNEL PLATFORM, WEBCOLLABORATION, IT
+ REDUCTION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS (DEMATERIALIZATION)

GENDER : Chapter
it i Sustainability
« DIVERSITY MANAGEMENT ; : Subchapter:
g : 3. Employees
NO QUALITY Chapt'er .
« CHARITY PROJECTS FOR DISADVANTAGED PEOPLE POVERTY /5 eucanon Sustainability
- Subchapter:

8. Local communities and
environmental impacts
5. Training

« FINANCIAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES M,*\ § I!ﬂ l
il 4

DECENT WORK AND GOOD HEALTH
ECONOMICGROWTH AND WELL-BEING Chapter

« EMPLOYEES AND COLLABORATORS gl
Subchapter:
" 4 3. Employees

* REDUCTION OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION Chapter
Sustainability
* RENEWABLE ENERGY Subchapter:
* HEADQUARTERS RESTRUCTURING 8. Local communities and
environmental impacts
« BIKEMI

2. Customers

The increasing digitalization in ltaly is changing consumer behavior and expectations, customers are becoming more and more digitally aware in
their everyday lives. This is a structural trend, where customers are changing their behaviors from the concept of proximity to the concept of quality
of services. This is the reason why we are so focused on continuously improving the customer experience.

In order to simplify our customers’ life, our offer is based on a complete “one stop solution” concept, including banking, brokerage and
investment services to retail clients from one single account. But offering a “one stop solution” is not enough: we want to deliver excellent services.
Thanks to our deep internal IT culture, we are able to fully extract the value coming from the knowledge of our customers, who use our platforms.
For this reason, we are continuously committed in developing easy-to-use and best-in-class products and services to fulfill all our clients’ financial
needs.

Our offer in managed products is characterized by an open architecture. We offer more than 6,000 funds offered by the main 78 global asset
managers, with a relevant component of SRI funds (Socially Responsible Investment): around 50% of funds offered has an ESG rating (total assets
equal to €7.8 billion), while 34% of funds offered has a Morningstar rating equal to “High”, “Above Average” or “Average” (total assets equal to €5.3
billion). For more details on our offer please refer to the “Investing” chapter in this Consolidated Annual Report.
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Communication with our customers is based on constant dialogue through the internal Customer Care service and the network of financial
advisors: for us, it is very important to listen to customers and ensure that they have suitable ways to submit feedback and complaints. We want to
be there for our customers whenever they need help. We handle over 300 thousands contacts every month, via telephone, e-mail, chat and SMS,
maintaining high service level. Around 93% of those contacts are resolved directly in conversation with the customer. Our customers’ complaints are

always analyzed, understood and recorded. We devote a lot of attention to them in order to improve the quality of our services. In 2018 we managed
3,446 complaints.

Fineco Customer Care

Customer satisfaction starts here

Q
TEXT WE

TOLL-FREE NUMBER

CONTACT 7 DAYS

FORM

MESSAGE WILL CALL A WEEK
SEND US A MESSAGE YOU BACK D —— 800.52.52.52
339.994.1888 O L e SEND US AN EMAIL 200 28

3/

ménaged in just
a few seconds

300,000

Contacts per month

89

Customers called back

WITHIN

96-

/6

Emails managed

WITHIN

i

Calls managed

WITHIN

SATISFIED
CUSTOMERS
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According to a research conducted by Kantar TNS Infratest in 2018, customer satisfaction reached 96%22. This is an extremely valuable result to
evaluate the overall relationship between customers and the Bank.

We also have an even more timely indicator that measures customer satisfaction in each interaction through the contact channels. In fact, for us
every contact with the customer is an opportunity to get feedback on our products and services: at the end of each interaction we ask customers if
they are satisfied with the received assistance and, if not, to expose the reasons for their dissatisfaction. These comments are analyzed on a daily
basis and represent the engine that drives us to review our processes, so that they can always respond to the evolution of customer needs in order
to simplify services and make them even more accessible.

It is worth noting that less than 4% of the interactions we have with our customers express some kind of dissatisfaction. We learn from this
information to build the future of our Bank.

In 2018 we introduced the Voice Password: customers can now access assistance using directly their voice, in a faster and more secure way,
without having to remember and to digit codes.

In addition in 2017, the consulting firm KPMG named FinecoBank the leading financial brand in Italy for the quality of its customer experience
and sixth overall among major domestic and international players, out of over 140 domestic and international brands, from a sample of over
2,500 customers. The study assigned each company a Customer Experience Excellence Score based on the average of the individual scores
achieved in the “Six Pillars” of customer experience: Personalization, Integrity, Expectations, Resolution, Time and Effort, and Empathy.

3. Employees

In a rapidly changing competitive environment, we are aware that change and continuous evolution are necessary requisites to face market
challenges and that these cannot ignore the development of our people and the development of their skills.

Employees are key to the success of our Bank and one of our main objective is to manage, develop and monitor their continuous professional
growth.

Through the correct and consistent pursuit of selection, training, evaluation and development activities, we aim to increase not only their skills
but also the enhancement of talent and sense of belonging.

Their professional development is fundamental for us and for this reason we assure to each of them appropriate training, on-the-job training, job
rotation programs, performance evaluation, compensation systems on a meritocratic basis and respecting equal opportunities.

We want to support them in all phases of their professional life by listening to their needs and by promoting diversity, inclusion and work-life
balance.

Every day the Bank invests to develop a sustainable working environment based on trust and sense of belonging. For this reason, we measure
the motivation and level of involvement of our collaborators through a biannual Survey — “People Survey” - and, based on their indications, we
define and implement specific action plans on which, in line with our strategy, we focus for the next couple of years.

People Care, Working Environment, Work-life Balance, Best Place To Work and People Development are the areas on which we are focusing
after the analysis run in 2017 that set the Engagement Index at 81%, a very good result and typical of successful companies.

2 Processing of Kantar TNS data — December 2018.
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Work life Balance

Working Environment

People Care

Best Place to Work

People Development

We aim to create a work environment in which our people can create value through a constant commitment and sharing of mission, values and
behaviors.
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a. Who we are

The breakdown of our people 2 as of December 31, 2018:

Our people = Women M Men

Total Employees by Gender (number) Training (hours) B Total

o0
' ' ForeignLanguage |
499 658

Mandatory 8T N

Conduct - Management [ZET

Total Employees by category (number) Total employees by age (number)

Executive_s,h ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Tow26 < yeaf?_ﬂ ............................................ o 3
M 3140 e
g 25 Y Total 359 *HYEAS 212 N Total 391
Professional 392
T a2 v ) 1o 438
Pl m Total 135

Total Employees by Contract (number) Total Employees by Employement type (number)
Permanent 484 " 414
contracis g Tow1,127 P 654 Total 1,068

Temporary 15 L
contracts REERN .. T30 P

The average age of employees at the end of 2018 is 40 years.

We invest in attracting, managing and fostering the development of “Millennials”, making Fineco one of the most desired companies to work at. We
want to be a company where people can make full use of their own skills, abilities and potential. This is why we believe in developing our employees
by investing in them, offering fast growing opportunities to become a specialist in any field.

The main entry point for new employees in FinecoBank is Customer Care (CRM), which acts as a "talent incubator" where young people have the
opportunity to acquire a deep knowledge of the Bank's products, services and processes. At the end of the hands-on-training course (about 2
years), they have the opportunity to further specialize within Customer Care or to undertake a horizontal growth process at Fineco or elsewhere in
the Group thanks to an intense internal job rotation program. By the end of 2018, 16.3% of the total workforce were employed in CRM.

23 The tables included in this paragraph refer to the holding population. In addition in 2017, an Irish Asset Management Company, Fineco Asset Management DAC, fully owned by the Bank, was set up. In 2018, Fineco
Asset Management has obtained the authorization by Luxembourg authority “Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” to replace Amundi Luxembourg S.A. in the management of the mutual funds labelled “Core
Series” and since July 2, 2018 Fineco AM is fully operational. At 31.12.2018 the company's resources are 13 of which 4 women and 9 men with average age of about 35 years. The assumptions coming from the market,
which took place during the year, were aimed at the establishment of the staff of the company, the selected profiles in fact cover both business functions and support and control.
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Furthermore, starting a career in the Customer Care allows young people to absorb our corporate culture based on innovation, spirit of
entrepreneurship and attention to the customer.

We contact talented young people through their favorite communication channels: social media and job fairs. To this end, the Bank has launched a
new social branding initiative called #FinecoPeople - which offers engaging content on Linked-In for specific targets - with the launch of an emotional
video on social media to recruit young people to be included in our CRM.

We also constantly collaborate with the best universities in the Country through the participation in Job Fairs. In 2018 we were present at the
universities of Bologna, Pavia, Ferrara, Milan (Bicocca, Bocconi, Cattolica), Rome (Luiss) and Venice.

Through a Global Policy, adopted at Group level, we regulated the selection process for all roles and levels in our Bank. This guarantees a
transparent and well-defined recruitment process. Moreover, thanks to digitalization we are able to offer a unique candidate experience. In fact, we
started experimenting the Video-Interviews, which allow us to speed up screening times and at the same time reduce travel times and the use of
means of transport.

b. Performance management

As part of UniCredit Group, UniCredit's Competency Model?* and Global Job Model? , based on the Five Fundamentals, describe the behaviors
expected by all employees.

All employees receive an annual performance evaluation by their manager, which takes into account not only performance and results linked to
specific and shared objectives, but also identifies future learning and development opportunities.

In particular, all employees are assessed within the UniCredit Performance Management (UPM), while the Executives and Talents are assessed
respectively within the scope of the Executive Development Plan (EDP) and the Talent Management Review (TMR).

Decisions on professional growth and remuneration choices are based on structured processes aimed at promoting equity, meritocracy and
transparency at all levels.

The annual review allows us to plan, manage and develop a sustainable leadership pipeline that results in career and succession plans and
identifies actions to be taken in support of leadership development. Our leamning and development initiatives are designed to meet colleagues’
professional growth needs.

c. Diversity and inclusion

In order to run a sustainable and successful business, we are investing in a highly diversified workforce and an inclusive working environment. The
aim is that the talents, skills, experiences and diverse perspectives of our people can be fully expressed in this environment, in order to promote
greater innovation, identify and manage risks more effectively, and improve collaboration and workforce flexibility.

We adopted a comprehensive policy on gender equality since 2013. The policy sets out principles and guidelines to ensure a level playing field in
which all employees can realize their full potential, regardless of gender. As of December 31st, 2018, 43% of FinecoBank employees were women.

FinecoBank has always stressed the importance of gender balance at all levels and also in 2018 this KPI was included in the performance
evaluation sheets of the Identified Staff. The analysis carried out in 2018 confirmed no gender pay gap in Fineco.

We are constantly working to promote gender balance to fill generational gaps and to support people with disabilities. Within the company we have
appointed a Diversity Manager who is the reference point for activities and initiatives related to Diversity confirming the commitment to develop the
culture of inclusion and considering diversity a business theme for our Bank.

Within the initiatives dedicated to the inclusion of people with disabilities, in 2018 some events and workshops were organized with the participation
of employees with disabilities and HR employees and their managers. The common goal was to raise awareness and promote inclusion in the
workplace at all levels.

In 2018 we participated to a Diversity Day organized by Bocconi University of Milan - a project that promotes diversity management and the
employment of people with disabilities and in protected categories. This event was attended by more than 400 people and was organized in
partnership with private companies, universities, public institutions, media and communities.

We have also started a collaboration with Jobmetoo, an online recruiting company that helps companies to meet candidates belonging to protected
categories. In addition to the publication of job listings, Jobmeetoo offers us the opportunity to participate to dedicated workshops.

2 UniCredit's Competency Model describes behaviours that must be adopted by all UniCredit's people during their daily activities.
% Global Job Model is a state-of-the-art system that describes and evaluates all roles in UniCredit and supports the management of people and processes in a global, simple and coherent way .
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d. Welfare and work-life balance

In order to support the well-being of our people and their families and to maintain a high level of motivation and engagement in 2018, the corporate
welfare system was further integrated. All employees have access to various services included in 4 thematic areas:

Support Health: supplementary healthcare, insurance coverage, prevention campaigns, etc.

Support Family: agreements with kindergarten, child protection, life protection, family reimbursements, youth camps, support for elderly
and disabled family members, vouchers, etc.

Save Money: pension funds, mortgages, loans and subsidies, clubs, transport season ticket, etc.

Save Time: agile work, flexibility, expectations and sabbatical years, part-time, etc.

With regard to the last point, we further extended flexible work in order to support our employees’ work-life balance and to offer them greater
flexibility in managing their time. In 2018, around 50% of the corporate population joined with a positive impact on their level of involvement and
performance. This is a profound change in the corporate culture that favors a model based on trust and performance. Furthermore, the adoption of a
flexible working model has also led to the simplification of procedures and the re-engineering of processes, contributing to the digitalization and
dematerialization of paper flows.

We are also investing in the renovation of work-spaces in the Milan Headquarter to create a better workplace.

In addition, starting from October 2018, we inaugurated a new initiative - MaggiorTempo - designed to streamline some of the most common
daily tasks of employees, from pick-up, to laundry, shoe repair, tailoring, handling of postal and administrative procedures. One more tool to
reconcile time of working life and private life.

The MaggiorTempo services are managed by a Social Cooperative whose mission is to integrate socially disadvantaged people.

4. Personal financial advisors (PFA)
In terms of size and managed assets, Fineco's PFA network is the third largest in Italy.
It is one of the Bank's key business channels, both in terms of acquiring new customers and of managing and retaining existing ones.
The focus of the network is based on two parallel tracks: growth and asset quality.

Organic growth is the main engine of our growth. In 2018, 93% of total net sales was organically generated

GROWTH and 7% was gathered through new recruits in the year. We believe this growing strategy is sustainable over the
long term, also from a cost perspective, perfectly positioning the Bank to deal with increasing pressure on
margins. An higher network productivity represents one of our answers to this challenge, leveraging on an
outstanding customer satisfaction and a distinctive selling point based on transparency and quality of products
and services: the percentage of net sales from existing clients almost doubled in the last 2 years (+90%).

Always showing the satisfaction and appreciation of our business model, the growth in the Private Banking
segment is significant. Around 2% of our customer base is represented by this clients’ segment, which holds
around 37% of total financial assets of the Bank.

For our Bank, recruitment is focused merely on improving the quality of the existing network. We mainly seek
professionals with experience in the network sector, in traditional banking or in private banking. We aim to
attract professionals for whom customer relations are a central pillar and that seek to compete against the
market and extend their reach. To these professionals we guarantee an accurate professional path, aimed at
allowing an adequate analysis of the managed portfolio and consequent agility and rapidity of transfer, and
flexible and customized economics to respond to their needs.

In 2018, 16 private bankers with an average portfolio of 29.8 million and 28 senior financial advisors with an
average portfolio of €16.5 million joint Fineco's world. Moreover, 26 financial advisors with a more recent
expertise (and an average portfolio of €9.6 million) were added to our network.

Fineco also supports “millennials”, the advisors of the future, including them into its network through a selection
programme through social networks/ partnerships with universities/ traditional channels. To assist them in their
professional path, three types of support are provided by the Bank: training assistance since the preparation
phase for the qualifying exam to up to 2 years after the assignment to the network; ad hoc economics for 24
months and operational assistance, also through a trainer. 51 young advisors joint us in 2018.
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Quality needs to be analyzed from different perspectives.

QUALITY Firstly, the quality of the customer relationship. It is extremely important that our customers trust into their

advisors, which, for this reason, provide them advisory at 360 degrees; starting from the analysis of customer's
needs, requirements and expectations, they focus on concrete solutions, avoiding a purely sales-oriented
approach but rather aiming at responding to the customer's expectations and building a trust relationship over
the long term.

Secondly but not less important, the quality of services. Thanks to state-of-the-art investment solutions, our
financial advisors are able to provide solutions that, taking objectives as well as risk tolerance into account,
meet customers' needs ensuring a constant monitoring of risk over time. We strongly focus on this and on a
continuous innovation of our advisory services, improving the current ones and adding new ones.

Also the quality of the network significantly improved: the average portfolio per financial advisor increased by
4.7% in 12 months (moving from 22.2 million up to 23.2 million) with a strong AuM and advisory component
increase. As of December 2018, Personal Financial Advisors with total financial assets above 20 million
represent 44% of the network and 73% of the total financial assets of the Bank.

Growth and quality are also driven by efficiency. To support our financial advisors in their work, we adopt a cyborg-advisory model: thanks to an
advisory platform extremely advanced from a technological point of view and extremely modern in terms of advisory solution offered, we allow our
financial advisors to manage, also through remote connection, a bigger number of clients, always providing a timely assistance and a constant
innovation in terms of new proposals and rebalancing accordingly with the evolution of the market scenario and customer’ needs.

Moreover, starting from our open architecture, one of the most complete available on the market, the investment solutions (so called Guided
Products and Services) allow personal financial advisors to work with no conflicts of interest, providing the best answers to customers.

Leveraging also on our expertise in innovation, our financial advisors have more time to manage relationship with customers, analysing their needs
and how they evolve over time, constantly improving quality of offered services and strengthen the mutual trust. We internally developed X-Net, the
new Cyborg Advisory Platform for our personal financial advisors, the best Fineco’s technology into digital retail platforms: a cutting-edge platform
easy to use which provide our PFAs an integrated solution characterized by an intuitive and customizable technology.

The personal financial advisor is at the heart of a system characterized by advanced digital services which simplify its job and strengthen the
relationship with the customer.

X-Net platform represents one of the pillar of our advisory model as it leverages on a cyborg advisory concept which, differently from a pure robo-
advisory approach, keeps the importance of a financial advisor up but with the essential support of technology. Moreover, our customers can easily,
quickly and safely manage the investment proposals through the Web and Mobile Collaboration service, available from mobile and PC, even more
simplifying the interactions between PFAs and clients. Thanks to this, the personal financial advisors benefit from a faster and paperless activity and
customers from a more flexible service. This service is fully integrated into X-Net.
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5. Training

a. Employees

The enhancement of professional skills and experience is a prerequisite for our company’s growth over time. The Bank is strongly committed in
supporting this enhancement with a strong focus in a continuous training process to employees.

In 2018, the training offer becomes even more accessible to all employees thanks to our training platform MyCampus. In addition, through this
platform employees are able to obtain a more tailored-made training accordingly with the specific professional needs. The training offer was
enlarged with an higher number of e-learning modules, accessible also through remote connection.

In 2018, 32,944 training hours were provided by the Bank, involving all employees.

Training is constantly evolving, adapting to the challenges our company takes on. In the last years, one of our Bank’s main goals was to strengthen
our risk and compliance culture, in order to enable a sustainable and profitable business over time.

For this reason, also in 2018, we paid significant attention to mandatory training for all the employees, who attended e-learning courses, in particular
through our Group e-Learning Platform (MyLearning), and through classroom training.

The main themes treated were: anti-money laundering, anti-bribery, operational risks, privacy and data security, conflicts of interest. Results were
monitored to ensure that all employees acquired the topics, thereby protecting the Bank against any operational, legal and reputational risk.

In addition to this, in order to improve business evolution and employees specialization level, many training sessions on technical skills were
organized, in cooperation with external providers, strategic partners and universities.

In the Customer Relationship Management department (CRM), where the average age is the lowest of the Bank, a total of 11,566 hours of
technical training were held for newly hired employees, as well as “ongoing” training courses on technical and behavioral subjects (focused on
communication skills), with the aim to maintain high quality service standards and a strong customer focus.

Moreover, in 2018 the Bank enlarged its Leadership Training Program (already tested in 2017): this program includes classroom training,
coaching and training on the job. The aim is to strengthen managerial skills of middle management to manage their role in a coherent and effective
way.

Training on English was carried on in the year through a course accessible by all employees through an e-learning platform which offers more
than 5,000 Business English contents and virtual classrooms. Moreover, the bank offered foreign languages training by phone or classroom
accordingly with professional needs.

Below a breakdown of training hours provided:

TRAINING AREA HOURS OF TRAINING
Mandatory 8,414
Technical 14,183
Foreign Languages 9,918
Behavioral 429
Total 32,944

b. Personal financial advisors (PFA)
The financial advisor's strategic role is reflected in the extensive training program for PFA.

Given our goal to offer to our clients a premium level of service and taking into account the complexity and importance of the advisor’s role, the
bank developed a very broad training catalogue which includes all the aspects related to the advisory activity.

For us, the personal financial advisor is the facilitator able to help people in reaching their financial objectives in the medium/long term
horizon through a rigorous and rationale planning. The goal that our financial advisors pursue every day is to protect and enhance family’s
savings through sustainable, tailor-made investments always accordingly with the specific risk profile of each client.

In this perspective, a full knowledge of financial markets and instruments is certainly essential, but not sufficient.

Social dynamics, technological developments, regulatory developments, micro and macro-economic trends at national and international
level: to fully perform a role characterized by an high social impact, it is essential to be fully aware of a multitude of factors, all of which are
competing to define the scenario in which the financial advisors works.
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In addition, there is the need to develop and consolidate relational skills and emotional intelligence over time: going into a relationship with
clients means to fully understand their needs, fears and wills, even latent ones.

To provide support to PFAs in their training path, our training programs included multidisciplinary courses always held by internal or external
specialists, aimed to strengthen hard and soft skills.

In 2018, we provided 160,000 training hours (around 61 hours per PFA):

100,000 mandatory training hours

47,000 hours of training on business topics

5,000 hours of specialist training on the private segment

8,000 hours of training for new financial advisors

tens of videos, media, web-conferences, webinars and dedicated sessions

a broad dedicated e-learning platform to deep dive with the availability of classroom materials

highly qualified teachers and leading figures in the financial and academic panorama

ad hoc training courses to meet specific needs, designed from time to time together with the managerial structure and differentiated area
by area on the basis of the real needs of the network.

High added value activities were put in place for the Private segment and its specific needs. The dedicated training course has the primary
objective to further expanding the acquired skills in terms of asset protection, private insurance and real estate advisory. In 2018 around 325
financial advisors were involved for a total of 34 training days.

Following the new Intermediaries Regulation in force since February 15th, 2018, a special focus was dedicated to the requirements of suitable
knowledge and skills for financial advisors and their maintenance (articles 78-82). To comply with these obligations, a review of training needs was
carried out through an assessment for all our network. Any skills gap have been filled with a specific online training. Furthermore, in order to
guarantee the maintenance and updating of the appropriate knowledge and skills, a 30-hour training course was identified, valid for Consob, Ivass
and EFPA purposes.

Lastly, the Bank further invested in young financial advisors through a two-year training project to acquire technical and behavioral skills.
Specifically, 43 courses were provided for a total of over 90 training days.

c. Customers

The dedicated training to current and prospect customers aims to improve their financial education and awareness by understanding how
financial markets work and move and how to use financial instruments to better manage their assets.

There is a strong focus on behavioural finance and on initiatives to strengthen the financial culture of our clients, the basic rules for a
professional financial planning: have clear goals and time horizon in mind, diversify and manage emotional reactions in complex market stages,
avoiding irrational choices that can compromise the investments.

Consistently with our role as market leader in the trading arena, we feel strong this responsibility and the training dedicated to customers is also
aimed at giving them more knowledge of financial markets, passing from themes such as technical and fundamental analysis, to risk-return ratio of
the various trading strategies.

The trading courses are divided into basic sessions, where we explain how products and platforms work and more advanced sessions where the
concepts of technical and fundamental analysis are analysed in-depth, even with the support of external professionals. In addition, we recently
added in the learning catalogue a weekly update on market context to increase the awareness of the participants for their own investment choices.

In 2018 we recorded almost 18,000 attendances to Fineco courses through different channels:

e 141 classroom lessons throughout the Country: 26 Italian cities in the year (+13% yly)
e 129 webinars, including direct interaction with experts via chat
e 165 video clips, always available, explaining various topics in few minutes
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6. Shareholders

Fineco constantly promotes an effective and transparent communication towards its shareholders and to the overall financial community in a
proactive way. The dialogue is managed through regular meetings and conference calls with institutional investors and financial analysts.

The Investor Relations team is in charge to provide accurate, effective and timely communications about the Bank’s financial performance, the
strategy and its evolution to support a fair valuation of the Bank and build a long-term shareholders’ base.

In 2018 we dialogued with the financial community through:

e 13 days joining international conferences

e 10 days of roadshows around the world

e one-to-one meetings / group meetings / conference calls
reaching almost 400 institutional investors (+1% yly, +34% compared to 2015, the first full year after the listing in July 2014). In addition we held 4
institutional conference calls to present our quarterly financial results.

The commitment of the Bank in developing an effective and transparent communication with its institutional investors was also confirmed by awards
obtained in 2018. For further detail please see section 12.

A proactive dialogue with SRI - Socially Responsible Investors and Sustainability Rating Agencies continued also in 2018. For the second
time, we joined the Italian Sustainability Day held by Borsa ltaliana, to support dialogue between listed companies and financial stakeholders, deep-
diving themes related to ESG (environmental, social and governance) metrics. One of our goal is to improve the disclosure of non-financial
information to the market, interacting on an ongoing basis with investors to discuss not only our financial performance but also our environmental
and social performance, since results in all these areas are closely linked.

In 2018 Standard Ethics, an independent agency which assigns Solicited Sustainability Ratings, confirmed our Standard Ethics Rating to “EE”,
a “full investment grade" given to sustainable companies with low reputational risk profile and strong prospects for long-term growth. The
Standard Ethics Rating is an assessment of sustainability and governance based on the principles and voluntary directions of the United Nations,
the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) and the European Union. FinecoBank is also included in the Standard Ethics
Italian Banks Index© and in the Standard Ethics Italian Index (the Index components are the 40 major Italian listed companies of the Italian Stock
Exchange FTSE-MIB), among the major environmental, social and governance performance indices and benchmarks.

Finally, during the 2018 the engagement activity continued with regards to the institutional shareholders and proxy advisors, in order to
provide information and support the analyzes regarding the shareholders' proposals and more generally the FinecoBank remuneration policies.

7. Regulators
We consistently engage with Regulators to support a competitive, sustainable financial market.

Relations with the Regulatory Authorities are based on the principles of integrity, transparency, fairness, professionalism and
cooperation, in compliance with the procedures laid down by the applicable legislation, using and submitting complete documents and statements.

Let us remember that, in July 2017, Fineco and UniCredit were the first banks in Italy admitted to the Cooperative Compliance Scheme with the
Revenue Agency. This important achievement has been reached thanks to the match of both the subjective and objective requirements, that
means to have an effective system for identifying, measuring, managing and controlling tax risk in line with the "essential" requirements of the Tax
Control Framework envisaged by law, Revenue Agency ordinances and by the OECD documents published on the subject. This scheme establishes
a closer relationship of trust and cooperation with the Revenue Agency, helping to increase the level of certainty on significant tax issues under
conditions of full transparency, through ongoing and prior discussions on situations likely to generate tax risks.

8. Local communities and environmental impact

a. Dematerialisation

Our greatest effort in minimizing environmental impact has been focused on dematerialisation processes, through innovations such as
"remote digital signature" and "graphometric signature" that significantly reduce paper flows and emissions. By reducing the consumption of
materials, we make the Bank more sustainable. The use of the paper can be limited thanks to the use of the technology.

In particular, we have released new digitally ways of subscribing contracts and orders. These functionalities are aimed both at customers who
directly work on the Bank's website and at customers who work through the network of financial advisors. At December 31st, 2018, more than 70%
of the requests for opening accounts through the financial advisors, were subscribed by customers with the graphometric signature, through a
completely digital process.
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In addition, requests for getting certain services with a remote digital signature (such as, but not limited to, the request for a debit card or the
subscription of personal loans or requests for new openings of lombard loans) reached percentages largely above the traditional mode, freeing the
customer from the need to print and send paper forms to the bank.

More generally, all new services for customers go through a shared approach among all the bank’s structures involved, aimed at the creation of a
highly automated processes (from a perspective of end-to-end) and flows of digital documents with no more need to print by the customer, the
financial advisor and the involved back office structures, so reducing environmental emissions.

Finally, we are working on implementing some projects including digital signature for insurance contracts, the digital registered letter and internal
digital documents instead of print out.

h. Mobility management

We continue to promote innovative solutions that make remote meetings possible using technology. In fact, all our employees have video-
communication tools and have access to videoconferencing systems. In addition, we adopted the Group policy on travel which encourages the use
of public transport and since 2016, journeys not linked to customers’ visits are prohibited for one week a month.

We also remind that Finecobank is committed to sustainable mobility, for example we took part in the set-up of bike sharing service in Milan
(BikeMi), through a station close to our headquarters in Milan, entirely financed by the bank. The aim of this initiative is to reduce traffic and pollution
and to promote physical wellbeing.

c. Office buildings renewals

We are convinced that making working environments more enjoyable, as well as functional, can positively improve the daily activities of our
employees. So we renewed both Reggio Emilia and Milan offices: the offices in Reggio Emilia were been completely requalified in 2017 and
subsequently a reduction of energy consumption of about 20% is estimated. In Milan headquarters the restructuring is underway. New spaces for
offices, meeting rooms and training rooms have been created, with a more modern layout, which will then be extended to all the spaces of the
bank. The interventions allowed a reduction of 15% of energy consumption at the end of December 2018.

d. Energy supply
The use of renewable energies is a key element in the fight against global climate change. We do our part, buying most of the electricity from
renewable sources.

Finecobank's procurement model follows the UniCredit group model and is inspired by sustainability concepts. In addition, suppliers must meet
certain minimum sustainability requirements and are chosen according to the standards of the International Labour Organisation in the field of
fundamental human rights, child labour, freedom of association, conditions of work, equal pay, health, security and business ethics. Suppliers must
also comply with the rules set by the group's environmental policy.

In addition to buying products with environmental certification, we prefer to use suppliers with Environmental Management Systems (EMS) certified
according to EMAS standards and 1SO 14001.

e. Local communities and charity
We have also made available to the municipality and neighbourhood area a big advertising screen located outside our headquarters in Milan, used
not only for marketing but also for public communications and emergencies of the municipality.

Since the first years, Fineco has been committed to support concrete solidarity projects in various areas of intervention, including social and health
care, training, education, promotion of culture and art, scientific research and environmental protection.

In addition to the charity made during the year, the Christmas Charity campaign (promoted every year on our corporate website) is the most
important moment dedicated to solidarity. The campaign provides the possibility of donating for customers and non-customers to selected
associations and projects, in addition to a donation by the bank.

The projects must be promoted by non-profit associations whose activity develops at wide range throughout the national territory. All the projects
supported by Fineco are always developed in Italy.

The process involves a careful selection and evaluation of the associations through the request and the study of the following documentation:

e  presentation of the association/entity

e  presentation of the initiative for which the contribution is requested, highlighting social purposes, areas of intervention, needs (single or
collective) to be met and beneficiary categories in relation to the activities and projects, total amount of the initiative and required
contribution for the bank

e updated social status/social report
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e certification attesting the validity of the signature powers of to the President/legal representative (e.g.: copies of verbal books, updated
certifications, self-certification, etc.)

e copy of the identity document of the President/legal representative
any other useful document

The associations are also subjected to a questionnaire aimed at avoiding initiatives in favour of institutions/associations involved in acts of
corruption.

f. 2018 Christmas with Fineco
In 2018 Fineco focused on three main projects.

a. ARCA PROJECT - Project: The first aid, always
The aim of the project is to bring immediate support to homeless in the main Italian cities, through the distribution of sanitary kits, meals and
essentials by road units of the association assisting homeless in the evening. Every night a team composed by a specialized operator and 3
volunteers reaches the homeless distributing them meals and essentials, with the aim of alleviating their discomfort, creating a trust relationship and
orienting these people towards the centres of reception present on the territory, to activate a path of reintegration https://www.progettoarca.org/

b. LEGAMBIENTE - Clean beaches and seabed
“Clean beaches and seabed” is one of the most important active volunteer campaigns and citizen science organized in Italy. Every year the last
weekend of May a three-day cleaning of beaches, seabed and coasts is organized, combining passion for the environment and environmental
education against waste at sea. The countryside of clean beaches and seabed is also a great opportunity to draw attention to the issues of waste
prevention, differentiated collection and lifestyles https://www.legambiente.it/

c. CAF ONLUS - Welcome children from 3 to 12 years
The welcome service of children between 3 and 12 years is represented by 3 psychoeducational residential communities, site in Milan. In these
structures children from all over ltaly are welcomed away from their families by decree of the juvenile court, because of serious situations that
endanger their well-being, their growth and psychophysical and affective safety. The work of welcome and care is articulated in 3 phases: welcome,
aimed at creating a context of protection and support in which the child learns to trust the new figures of reference, psycho-socio-educational
support, focused on the process of reparation of the suffered trauma, and finally accompanying in the project of resignation, which may consist in the
return to the family, the foster or adoption, or the continuation of the course in a community for teenagers https://www.caf-onlus.org/

9. Corporate Governance

The corporate governance system adopted by Finecobank promotes a clear and responsible development of banking operations, contributing in the
creation of long-term sustainable value. In particular, it is based on the principles recognized by international best practice as fundamental for a good
governance: the central role of the Board of Directors, the correct management of conflict of interests, the efficiency of the internal control system
and the transparency towards the market, with particular reference to the communication of corporate management choices.

More specifically, Finecobank is part of UniCredit Group and is subject to the management and coordination activities of the parent company
UniCredit S.p.A., in accordance with the effects of the articles 2497 and following of the Italian Civil Code. The overall framework of the corporate
governance of the Bank has been defined, therefore, in coherency with the existing provisions of laws and regulations, taking into account, also, the
recommendations included in the Code of Self-regulation for listed companies?.

In this context, Finecobank adopts the so-called traditional governance system, based on the presence of two bodies appointed by the shareholders'
meeting: the Board of Directors, with functions of strategic supervision and management company, and the Statutory Auditors, with control
functions. The statutory auditors is entrusted to an external auditing firm, in accordance with the applicable legislation.

In order to foster an efficient system of information and advisory which allow the Board of Directors a better assessment of certain matters of its
competence, in conformity with the supervisory provisions issued by Banca d'ltalia and the recommendations of the self-regulatory code, there are
three committees with proactive, advisory and coordination functions, and in particular:

e Remuneration Committee
e Appointments and Sustainability Committee
e  Risk and Related Parties Committee

% Since the listing Finecobank has adopted the self-regulatory code of listed companies, which, in line with the experience of the main international markets, indicates the corporate governance standards and best practices
recommended to listed companies by the Committee for Corporate Governance - based on transparency, accountability and a long-term perspective - to be applied in accordance with the principle of ‘comply or explain’
which requires to explain in the corporate governance report the reasons for non-adaptation to one or more recommendations contained in its principles or application criteria.
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In particular, it is noted that during the year the Appointment Committee was assigned the supervision of Sustainability related to the exercise of the
Bank's activity and to the interactions with all stakeholders, modifying its name in Appointments and Sustainability Committee. This committee, in
addition to the tasks already attributed to it, also carries out the following functions in the field of sustainability:

e supervise over time the evolution of the company's sustainable growth strategy accordingly with international guidelines and principles,
as well as those at group level

e  contribute to assess relevant risks in the medium-long term (application criterion 1.C.1. of the self-regulatory code); in particular, to
supervise the activity of identifying ESG risks

e formulate proposals in relation to social and environmental plans, objectives, rules and procedures, monitoring their implementation over
time

e monitor the company's position in relation to the financial markets on sustainability issues and the latter's relations with all stakeholders

e  examine this chapter, the completeness and transparency of the information provided through it, providing in this regard its observations
to the Board of Directors called upon to approve this document.

A Sustainability Management Committee was also established in support of this committee.

The governance structure of the Bank at December 31st, 2018 is graphically represented below.

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Board of Statutory Board of Directors

Auditors

esssessecessnsssans

{  Remuneraton : : an%u;f:;]i?\tgtl;gns : ! Risksand Related :
: Committee : Commitice .._- : Parties Committee ..;

CEO and

it
General Manager Intemal Auckt

(*) In compliance with the Supervisory Regulations, Internal Audit is independent from the other company functions and directly reports every quarter to the Board of Directors (also through the Risks and Related
Parties Committee) and the Board of Statutory Auditors. Furthermore, it always participate to the meetings, which are usually monthly, of the Risks and Related Paties Committee. The Internal Audit of FinecoBank is
outsourced to UniCredit by an ad hoc service agreement including the terms and the level of performances of the service.

a. Composition of the Board

Our Board of Directors consists of 9 members, including the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEO). It was appointed by the Shareholders'
Meeting of April 11, 2017 and its term of office will end at the Shareholders' Meeting called to approve the annual financial statements as at
December 31, 2019.27

The composition of the Board in office is quantitatively and qualitatively consistent with the theoretical profile approved by the Board of Directors?8,
including with regard to the limits on the number of offices held. In addition, the Board of Directors meets the requirements of integrity, experience
and independence (including suitability) set forth in the articles of association and current regulations.

27 The members of the Board of Directors (and of the Board of Statutory Auditors) are appointed by the Shareholders' Meeting according to the list voting mechanism. This voting system, which uses lists of competing
candidates, ensures that representatives of minority shareholders are appointed.

28 In order to reappoint the administrative body, FinecoBank's Board of Directors had to identify the theoretical profile of the candidates for appointment (including in terms of professional competence and independence,
where applicable). To this end, by resolution of February 7, 2017, the Board of Directors approved the document entitled "Ass essment of the qualitative and quantitative composition of the Board of Directors of FinecoBank
S.p.A" (published on the company’s website), which contains the results of the preliminary analysis conducted by the Board of Directors on its optimal qualitative/quantitative composition for the purposes of the proper
performance of its functions, in specific compliance with the Supervisory Regulations on Corporate Governance .
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b. The Board of Directors in figures

The Board of Directors in figures

Executive and non-executive Directors
@

1 - Executive and

non-indipendent CEO and GM

o
1 - Non executive
and indipendent for TUF

6 - Non-executive
and indipendent for TUF and GC

1 - Non executive
and non-indipendent

Breakdown by gender

44%

M 56% men 44% female

Breakdown by age

Areas of competency of the Board of Directors
Each Director satisfies at least 2 of the required areas of competence

89%
Financial regulation
88%
Banking sector
78%
Knowledge of the FinecoBank markets
78%
Financial reports of financial institutions
67%
Economic and financial global trends
67%
Corporate affairs
56%
Business management
56%
International experience
33%
Information technology

Average attendance rate
at BoD meetings - 2018

M 45-50 m 50-55 55-60 60-65
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10.  Internal Control System and Risk management

a. Risk Management
Finecobank promotes a solid risk culture, based on shared values and coherent behaviours, key to ensure long-term sustainable profitability.

The Risk Management of Fineco is responsible for identifying, quantifying and mitigating the risks of the Bank, through rules, methodologies, policies
and strategies in line with the regulatory requirements set by the supervisory authorities and by the parent company within the scope of its
coordination powers. At the same time it supports the Bank's strategic planning.

To allow the maximum alignment between risks and profitability, the Risk Management function adopts the Risk Appetite Framework (RAF), which
establishes the acceptable level of risk for the Bank, in line with the business objectives. The RAF is aimed at achieving sustainable profitability in
conjunction with a solid business growth.

The Risk Management function has therefore the task of assisting the Board of Directors in defining a risk-propensity proposal for the bank. This
proposal is preliminary to the annual and multi-annual budget process and complies with the strategy of the Bank and the Group. The alignment of
Top Management Incentive Systems and the network of financial advisors to the RAF encourages a prudential approach to risk taking and maintains
appropriate levels of risk.

The main risks of the Bank are credit and counterparty risks followed by operational and market risks and this is also evident in the breakdown of
risk-weighted assets (RWAs). In addition to the risks of the first pillar of Basel, Fineco is exposed to risks associated with exposures in sovereign
states, interest rate risk, business risks and liquidity risks. The latter risks defined by the second pillar of Basel are all included in the Risk Appetite
Framework, whose respect makes the Bank's business sustainable.

With regards to credit risks, in the expansion of its lending's business, the bank pays strong attention to build and maintain a low-risk portfolio
that retains high quality over time.

As part of the lending business, the bank shares all the core values included in the Integrity Card and the Code of Conduct, with no participation
in such operations as:

e to finance individuals and corporates which are convicted of criminal offences (where known), including those of economic/financial
nature and against the property, or in the social structure of which they appear to be convicted of the same offences

e tofinance operations not in line with the principles for banking activities defined by the Global Rules on reputational risk

e to take advantage of clients with low cultural level or special situations, to obtain gains thanks to the application of particularly costly
economic conditions/interest rates.

The prevention and management of operational and reputational risks allows, from one side, the limitation of losses by reducing any business
risk and, on the other hand, maintains a correct relationship with customers ensuring the persistence of the relationship with the bank. The presidium
of these risks is ensured not only through policies and procedures for measuring and reducing risks, but also by the evaluation of each product by a
specific products committee which timely ensures the analysis of any current or prospective risk.

Lastly, as far as market risks are concerned, the Bank strategy is aimed at assuming limited risks, physiologically compatible with the Bank's
brokerage activity: the first and second level controls are focused on a close monitoring of risk thresholds defined by the Board of Directors.

Risk Management is also involved in the improvement of the risk culture through training activities at all levels. During 2018, the Internal Control &
Business Committee was the subject of specific communication activities on Risk Appetite and capital adequacy. In 2018 there were deep-dive with
the Risk Committee and Related Parties specific aspects concerning the methodologies of IFRS 9 provisioning.

Lastly, to reinforce the company's risk culture, the Bank participates in the group initiatives concerning the Risk Academy, designed and managed
by the group's risk management function, in collaboration with competence centres for learning and training. This approach develops the
understanding of risk and its knowledge.

b. Compliance

We proactively monitor and manage the associated risks of non-compliance, carrying out our activities in line with current regulations, internal
procedures, best practices and ethical principles. In this way, our compliance function defines, develops and regularly monitors the implementation
and respect of the rules, procedures, methodologies and other compliance standards of our Bank. Senior management, who supervises this
process, is promoting a solid compliance culture. If the business is at the heart of our work, compliance is the way in which these activities are
performed.

Compliance is a prerequisite for the legitimacy and sustainability of our business. Compliance to all applicable laws, regulations and internal rules,
both locally and at the group level, allows us to prevent unlawful conduct and to contribute to the fight against financial crimes. Given our
commitment to promote compliance-based behaviour in every employee, a strong collaboration between compliance and our business units is
crucial.
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We aim to build and implement a common compliance culture that involves all levels in our organization. The group Global Policy - compliance
culture, approved and adopted in November 2016, defines the key principles of the compliance culture at group level and in Fineco, as well as the
roles and responsibilities of the internal functions in charge of this policy (e.g. Compliance, human resources and communications).

In 2018, we implemented a Tone from the TOP program to ensure that our senior managers continue to stay focused on compliance issues, and
periodically remind all employees what their expectations are in relation to conduct and behaviours to be taken in Finecobank. Further deep dive
was promoted through workshops and videos at group level on a number of compliance issues, such as Personal Dealing, MiFID II, Anti-Money
Laundering, Conflicts of Interest, Financial Sanctions, Anti-Bribery & Corruption, General Data Protection, Financial Benchmark Regulation, PRIIPs,
Whistleblowing and Antitrust.

c. Whistleblowing

Whistleblowing helps to protect the company and its reputation as well as all our employees. In 2011, we adopted a system whereby employees and
financial advisors can report any conduct that violates the Bank's law or internal rules. Any employee and financial advisor may use this mechanism
if it has reasonable suspicion that illicit conduct or potentially damaging behaviour has occurred or may occur.

In the event that an employee or financial advisor has reason to suspect that unacceptable conduct has occurred or may occur, they shall report it to
the Compliance Officer of Finecobank (responsible for local anti-corruption) acting as Responsible for the internal signalling systems, which
guarantees the correct execution of the procedure.

In the event that the Compliance officer is hierarchically and functionally subordinate to the person to whom the complaint relates, or if he or she is
held responsible for the breach or has a potential interest in the reporting liable to jeopardize its impartiality and independence of judgement, the
employee or the financial advisor can contact the internal audit directly as "reserve function”, sending the report to the manager of the internal audit
function of Fineco.

The management of this process is designed to ensure the utmost possible confidentiality regarding the identity of the signatory and the accused
subject and to prevent any possible retaliation or discriminatory behaviour as a result of the report.

The channels made available to employees and financial advisors by the bank to carry out the reporting of irregularities, even anonymously, are as
follows (some of these are available 24 hours a day):

e by phone, through the line SpeakUp Fineco, which allows the employee and the financial advisor to leave a voicemail, even anonymously
on the website, through the Fineco speakup Web service, which allows the employee and the financial advisor to leave a written
message, even anonymously
via dedicated e-mail address

e in paper format to the dedicated postal address.

Information on whistleblowing is also made available to employees and financial advisors through a specific section of the company intranet, which
specifies in detail how and when to make a report.

On November, 15th 2017, the Italian draft law for the reporting of irregularities was definitively approved, which contains provisions for the protection
of the authors of reports of offences or irregularities that came out in a public or private working relationship. Regarding the whistleblowing process
of the bank, the analysis carried out during the 2018 confirmed the substantial conformity of the internal practices with the requirements of the new
law.

d. Anti corruption (anti-bribery)

Our approach to preventing corruption and bribery is set out in the Global Compliance Policy on Anti-Corruption and its associated Operational
Instructions, adopted by the Bank. The Policy sets minimum standards for anticorruption compliance and it applies to officers and members of
strategic, control and executive bodies, employees, PFAs.

The Anti-Corruption Policy aims to:

o  define principles and rules for identifying and preventing potential acts of corruption to protect the integrity and reputation of the Bank
e provide general information to employees on measures taken by the Bank to identify, mitigate and manage corruption risks.

The following mechanisms have been put in place to monitor the effectiveness of the Bank’s approach to anticorruption and anti-bribery: escalation
procedures employed for significant and strategic issues, quarterly management information requested, analysis and testing of the results of
activities related to the management of second level controls, Compliance Risk Assessment processes performed for each regulatory area within the
Compliance function’s jurisdiction, and internal audit reviews. The last two mechanisms (the Compliance Risk Assessment and Internal Audit
inspections) result in risk mitigation actions that need to be completed on time to ensure the management of the risks identified..
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Risks of non-compliance are managed through a dedicated risk assessment process and second level controls. In the event of non-compliance,
corrective actions to mitigate actual significant risks are undertaken.

Our Bank has zero tolerance towards acts of corruption, prohibits facilitation payments and does not permit any transfers of value to public officials
without approval; it also forbids political donations.

e. Code of Ethics, Code of Conduct and Charter of Integrity

Our Bank has adopted a Code of Ethics, to mitigate operational and reputational risk, and promote a widespread culture of internal control. The
Code also plays a role in the prevention of crimes covered by Legislative Decree 231/2001, as it contains a series of corporate ethics principles
recommending, promoting or forbidding specific behavior, regardless of regulatory provisions. It contains the rules intended to ensure that the
conduct of all is always guided by criteria of fairness, collaboration, loyalty, transparency and mutual respect.

The Integrity Charter states the ethical and deontological principles that we recognize as our own.

The Code of Conduct defines general principles of conduct, aiming to promote our culture of compliance and our commitment to sustainability. In
order to deepen the themes of the Code in 2018 an educational and interactive path, provided by the 6 episodes "Jane and Kevin: Are you making
the right choices?” was made available.

All these documents reflect the Bank's ethical values and principles, as well as providing a concrete response to its stakeholders: employees,
suppliers, customers, partners, local communities and institutions, indicating specific commitments in their regard in terms of the principles of
conduct and control. Our stakeholders, however, are also requested to respect such values, creating a reciprocal relationship.

The documents focus on the values of freedom, excellence, respect, transparency, integrity and fairness, and identify rules of conduct representing
specific and mandatory commitments for every employee, helping to build a business culture consistent with our underlying values. The approach
is designed to underscore the key values underpinning our business, as well as the rules through which our values are put into practice on a daily
basis.

f. Commitment to Human Rights

During the year, Fineco drafted its commitment to Human Rights, which summarizes the approach, roles and responsibilities as well as the
principles, rules, procedures and systems adopted.

FinecoBank operates in accordance with the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, which states that "every individual and every organ of
society, keeping this Declaration constantly in mind, shall strive by teaching and education to promote respect for these rights and freedoms and by
progressive measures, national and international, to secure their universal and effective recognition and observance, both among the peoples of
Member States themselves and among the peoples of territories under their jurisdiction”.

g. IT and Cyber Risk

Our Bank has a strong internal IT and operations culture, which make efficiency and innovation part of our DNA. As at December 31st, 2018,
around 18% of our employees work in the IT Department and 24% in our Back Office.

From the beginning, we have chosen to manage most of our activities in these areas internally, and this also allows us better control of processes,
reaching high levels of efficiency and at the same time creating extensive internal expertise that translates into a strong competitive advantage.

The strategy of internally develop products and services allows us to offer personalized and distinctive products, reducing both risk and problem
resolution times, and using consolidated technologies able to ensure stability and reduced time-to-market.

Ongoing efforts to offer increasingly complex products and services while maintaining ease of use for customers able to access them through
different channels allows us to offer flexibility in customer mobility and an outstanding customer experience.

Furthermore, the Bank also internally manages all security services. Great attention towards Cyber Security and Fraud Management is placed,
in order to create full security for the customer while maintaining simplicity of use.

h. Cyber risk

Managing Cyber Risk is key for our Bank considering our nature of multichannel Bank.

Given the increasingly complex digital world we live in, information security has never been more important for the banking sector. Cybercrime, e-
fraud, identity theft and hacktivism are definitely a hot topic.
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Our objective is to protect our customers and our business by ensuring the security of data declined in its characteristics of availability,
confidentiality and integrity. The steps we are taking will mitigate our exposure to operational and reputational risks. We therefore devote
considerable resources to keeping our customers' assets and data safe.

Unfortunately, as the world becomes more connected and moves at a faster pace, there are many more opportunities for criminals to misuse the
global financial system. We are taking a number of steps, such as training employees. We have invested in training employees so they
understand the role that they play in combating financial crime (e-crime). In addition, we have put processes in place to deal with such instances
quickly and effectively.

Our security strategy involves a multi-layered approach, based on a deep knowledge of our customers, behavioral analytics and risk
scoring. This empowers and makes our anti-fraud process more effective, maintaining a high level convenience and usability. Knowing our
customers better is key to protecting them from financial crime. We need to make sure all the information we have about our customers is accurate,
up to date and complete. This will help our systems that detect criminal activity work more effectively.

On Cyber Security: we are using a well-established, risk-based internal security process, made up by skilled people and advanced
technology infrastructure. The objective of maintaining a high standard of safety is verified, on an ongoing basis, also through benchmarking with
market fraud levels, both in banking and money market. For several years, the level of fraudulent phenomena in FinecoBank is significantly
lower than the market, an important indicator to assess the effectiveness of the process itself.

Fineco has a strong internal IT culture, making it easier to cope effectively with IT security issues. Moreover, talking about IT, we have a limited
use of external partners, thus allowing us a far better understanding of our applications and systems.

Last but not least, we are working together with Italian Law Enforcement, national and international security associations and well known security
companies. Don't forget that a system approach against cybercrime can be much more effective than fighting it alone.

In terms of customer protection, we have in place clear policies, frameworks and governance which cover all our processes, from the design of
products and services, to training, incentives, and client interaction. Fineco ensures the compliance with data protection rules by adopting the
principles prescribed by Italian legislation, implementing Directive 95/46/EC through a new Global Policy on Privacy. On April 2016, the Regulation
(EU) 2016/679 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data (the
General Data Protection Regulation “GDPR”) was approved by the EU Parliament. The new data protection regime entered into force on May, 25th
2018 and directly applicable in all Member States of the European Union without the need of implementing national legislation. As part of our
commitment to data protection, Compliance Risk Assessment and second level controls aim to identify, monitor and manage compliance risks in this
regulatory area.

The Bank has also adopted a formal and comprehensive Security Incident Response Plan, articulated on several levels: governance,
organization, operation and reporting.

11. Awards

Also in 2018 Fineco obtained several high-profile awards, which confirm the excellent market positioning of the Bank. Recognitions that are added to
others obtained in the past, such as the research "What really shapes the Customer Experience" from the consulting company BCG, which in 2015
defined Fineco as the most recommended banking brand globally through word of mouth.

Among these stands out in particular Institutional Investor, the financial magazine that for the second year in a row awarded Alessandro Foti as
the best CEO in Europe in 2018 in the banking sector, for the Small & Mid-Cap category. The 2018 edition of the "All-Europe Executive Team"
survey involved about 1,500 institutional investors and 940 analysts, who voted over 1,500 companies. In particular, Fineco ranked among the best
companies in the survey, being among the "Most Honored Companies".

In addition to the Best CEO award, the Bank ranked second in the following categories among the Small & Mid Cap institutions: "Best IR
Professional”, "Best Investor Relations Program" and "Best Website". The awards of Institutional Investor confirm once again the positioning of
Fineco among the most important and recognized players in the banking and financial sector at international level.

In 2018 Fineco obtained further awards: the Professional Wealth Management, magazine of the Financial Times Group within the first edition of
the "Wealth Tech Awards", named FinecoBank "highly recommended" among the European Private Banking in the category "Best private bank for
digitally empowering relationship managers". Moreover, as part of the Bluerating Awards, Alessandro Foti received the award for his
career: "The award goes to a manager who in his career has demonstrated the correct balance between the foresight necessary to prevent market
challenges and fundamental pragmatism to deal with them. A combination at the base of the success story of Fineco, started years ago as a start-up
and now one of the main players in our sector ".

Finally, Fineco UK was awarded by the London Forex Show as: Best Forex Provider of the year 2018, Best Forex Trading Platform, Best Forex New
Entrant 2018, Best Forex Trading Tools.
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Other information

Report on corporate governance and proprietary structures

Pursuant to Article 123-bis, paragraph 3 of Legislative Decree no. 58 of February 24, 1998, the Report on Corporate Governance and Proprietary
Structures is available at the “Governance” section of the FinecoBank website (https://www.finecobank.com).

Report on remuneration

Pursuant to Art. 84-quater, paragraph 1, of the Issuers’ Regulations implementing the Legislative Decree no. 58 of February 24, 1998, the “Report
on remuneration” is available on FinecoBank’s website (https://www.finecobank.com).

Research and development

To promote technical solutions in line with the company mission, research and development is focused on developing software that enables the
provision of increasingly innovative financial advice together with exclusive own-account trading.

More specifically, the main software applications that have been developed over the years are:

e Advice, a computer program through which the Bank enables its personal financial advisors to offer a professional advisory service to
customers who want a personalised financial plan;
e Internaliser, a computer program through which the Bank executes customer orders in its own account relating to trading on financial
markets as an alternative counterparty to the market;
e  Powerdesk and Webtrading, software that allows the Bank to, respectively, offer customers sophisticated and efficient tools for online
trading on the main international financial markets and simple solutions to complement the direct banking services.
The activities were split between developing new applications and strengthening/maintaining existing features to meet customer needs increasingly
efficiently.

Lastly, in 2018, activities for the development of the X-Net platform (used by personal financial advisors) have been consolidated through the
implementation of information and reporting services.

Information on the time limits for convening the ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting

Pursuant to Article 2364, paragraph 2, of the Italian Civil Code and Art. 6, paragraph 4, of FinecoBank’s Articles of Association, the draft Annual
Accounts will be submitted to the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting for approval within 120 days from the end of the financial year.

Non-financial declaration pursuant to article 6, paragraph 1, Legislative Decree 254 of
December 30, 2016

The Bank has availed of the right to waive preparation of the Non-financial declaration pursuant to article 6, paragraph 1, Legislative Decree 254 of
December 30, 2016 as both FinecoBank and Fineco Asset Management DAC are included in the Integrated Report prepared by the Parent
Company UniCredit S.p.A.

Certification by the administrative body as to satisfaction of the conditions set out in article 16
of the Markets Regulation adopted by CONSOB resolution no. 20249 of December 28, 2017

In relation to the provisions of art. 2.6.2, paragraph 9, of the Regulation on Markets Organised and Managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., it is hereby
certified that FinecoBank — subject to management and coordination by UniCredit S.p.A. — meets all the requirements of art. 16 of the Markets
Regulation adopted by CONSOB resolution no. 20249 of December 28, 2017, for the listing of shares of the subsidiaries subject to the management
and coordination of other companies. In particular, the Bank has fulfilled the disclosure obligations set forth in Art. 2497-bis of the Italian Civil Code,
has an independent negotiating capacity in its relations with customers and suppliers, has a Board of Directors consisting mainly of independent
directors, and has a Risk and Related Parties Committee composed of independent directors (which is assigned, among other things, the functions
that the Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies assigns to the Internal Control and Risk Management Committee).
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Subsequent events and outlook

Subsequent events

The Board of Directors’ meeting of FinecoBank held on January 10, 2019 - in consideration of the favourable opinion of the Remuneration
Committee which met on January 9, 2019 — approved the following incentive systems that will be submitted to the Shareholders’ Meeting called for
April 10, 2019:

e 2019 Incentive System for Employees categorised as Key Personnel;
e 2019 Incentive System for Personal Financial Advisors identified as “Key Personnel”.

On January 31, 2018, FinecoBank completed the headquarters acquisition from Immobiliare Stampa S.C.p.A. (controlled by Banca Popolare di
Vincenza), the ownership of the building, designated for offices use and related accessories, which establishes the registered office of the Bank
located in Milan, Piazza Durante 11, partially rented until that date. The transaction was completed with a price of the deal of €62 million and it
represents the carrying amount of the property booked in the financial statements, in addition to taxes and initial direct costs.

The difference between the above mentioned carrying amount and the asset determined on the basis of the cash flows associated with the lease of
the building that would be recognized in relation to the application of the new accounting standard IFRS16, starting from 1 January 2019, that, by
introducing a new definition of leasing?, provides the inclusion in the balance sheet of a leased asset based on control of the asset ("right of use"),
generates a greater capital absorption of 34 bps in terms of CET1 ratio and a positive economic impact of about €2.5 million per year®, with a
consequent positive effect in terms of EVA.

Finally, the Board of Directors of FinecoBank on 5 February 2019, taking into account the positive opinion of the Remuneration Committee meeting
on 1 February 2019, approved the implementation of the following incentive / loyalty systems:

e 2014-2017 multi-year plan top management for employees. In particular, the assignment of n. 335,624 free ordinary shares to the
beneficiaries of the second tranche of the Plan, granted in 2016, and consequently a free share capital increase for a total amount of
€110,755.92 with immediate effect;

e Incentive Systems 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 for employees. In particular, it was approved:

o the assignment of n. 173,581 free ordinary shares to beneficiaries of the third tranche of the 2014 Incentive Systems, of the second
tranche of the 2015 Incentive Systems and of the first tranche of the 2016 Incentive Systems, and consequently a free share capital
increase for a total amount of €57,281.73 effective from March 30, 2019;

o the assignment of the first cash tranche related to the 2018 Incentive Systems and of the second cash tranche related to the 2017
Incentive Systems;

e Incentive Systems 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 for Financial Advisors identified as “Key Personnel”. In particular, it was approved:

o the assignment of n. 27,103 phantom shares and the third cash tranche to the beneficiaries of the 2015 Incentive System;

o the assignment of n. 34,644 shares of the first tranche related to the 2016 Incentive Systems;

o the assignment of cash tranches related to the 2017 and 2018 Incentive Systems.

Outlook

The prospective scenario, despite a context of pressure on margins, sees FinecoBank benefiting from two trends that are transforming Italian
society: digitization and demand for advisory services.

In response to the main trends that are redrawing customer behavioural models, FinecoBank confirms its focus on offering advanced financial
advisory services and the digitalisation of its offerings, where technology emphasizes the skills of personal financial advisors thanks to the
simplification of bureaucratic activities, which allows to offer more time to cultivate the relationship with the client. This includes the cyborg advisory
model, aimed at improving the productivity of the Network and at the same time increasing the quality of the service provided to customers.

The Bank will continue to pursue its strategy based on organic growth, thanks to the efficiency of the processes and the quality of the services,
which allow to combine at the same time the interests of all the stakeholders: shareholders who seek an adequate remuneration for the capital
invested; customers who demand services in line with their expectations; the company's employees and personal financial advisors, who aim for
stability.

29 The definition of Leasing required by the standard, which no longer distinguishes between finance leases and operating leases, also includes leases for buildings.

30 The economic impact derives for about €2 million from the difference between the depreciation amount of the purchased building and the depreciation amount of the right-of-use that would have been booked for the same
building in continuity of lease and, for the remaining part, from the income deriving from the lease of a portion of the purchased building net of taxes connected to the property and of the interest expenses that would have
been recognized on the financial liability booked in correspondence with the right of use. Please note that the useful life of the property is 33 years, while the right of use and the corresponding depreciation amount have
been determined considering the maturity of the lease contract (before the purchase), set at 31 December 2026.
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The aim is to further strengthen its competitive positioning in the integrated banking, brokerage and investing services sector through the high quality
and completeness of the financial services offered, summarized in the "one stop solution" concept, thanks also to the asset management activities
carried out by Fineco AM that will allow the Bank to be even closer to the needs of its customers, more efficient in product selection and more
profitable thanks to the vertically integrated business model.
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Proposal for the approval of the accounts and allocation of

profit for the year

The Bank closed the year 2018 with net profit for the year of €227,922,325.69.
It is proposed to allocate the net profit for the year as follows:

e  €33,607.46 to the Legal Reserve, corresponding to 0.015% of the profit for the year, having reached the limit of a fifth of the share
capital;
€ 43,387,897.43 to the Extraordinary Reserve;
€184,500,820.80 to Shareholders, corresponding to a dividend of €0.303 for each of the 608,913,600 ordinary shares with a par value of
€0.33 euro, constituting the share capital including the 509,205 shares relating to the capital increase approved by the Board of Directors
on February 5, 2019.

The dividends not distributed in relation to treasury shares held by the Bank at the record date will be transferred to the Extraordinary reserve.

In conclusion, the Shareholders Meeting is invited to approve:

o the Separate Annual Report and Accounts for the year 2018 in their entirety;
o the allocation of the profit for the year of €227,922,325.69 as follows:
o €33,607.46 to the Legal Reserve, corresponding to 0.015% of the profit for the year, having reached the limit of a fifth of the share
capital;
o  €43,387,897.43 to the Extraordinary Reserve;
o ¥€184,500,820.80 to Shareholders, corresponding to a dividend of €0.303 for each of the 608,913,600 ordinary shares with a par
value of €0.33 euro, constituting the share capital including the 509,205 shares relating to the capital increase approved by the
Board of Directors on February 5, 2019.

Payment of the aforesaid dividend amount, in accordance with legal regulations, will take place with the value date of April 25, 2019.

The Board of Directors
Milan, February 5, 2019

FinecoBank S.p.A. FinecoBank S.p.A.
Chief Executive Officer and General Manager Chairman
Alessandro Foti Enrico Cotta Ramusino
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Consolidated balance sheet

(Amounts in € thousand)

BALANCE SHEET - ASSETS 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
10. Cash and cash balances 6 613
20. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 20,218

a) financial assets held for trading 6,876
c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value 13,342

Financial assets held for trading (ex IAS 39 ltem 20) 10,879
30. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 961,773

Available-for-sale financial assets (ex IAS 39 Item 40) 1,047,689
40. Financial assets at amortised cost 23,270,023

a) loans and receivables with banks 12,440,994
b) loans and receivables with customers 10,829,029

Held-to-maturity investments (ex IAS 39 Iltem 50) 4,826,390

Loans and receivables with banks (ex IAS 39 Item 60) 13,878,117

Loans and receivables with customers (ex IAS 39 Item 70) 2,129,219
50. Hedging derivatives 3,314 458
60. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged financial assets (+/-) 4,873 9,590
90. Property, plant and equipment 16,632 15,205

100. Intangible assets 98,307 97,511
of which:

- goodwill 89,602 89,602

110. Tax assets 6,714 9,249

a) current tax assets 467 1,765

b) deferred tax assets 6,247 7,484

130. Other assets 350,770 315,415

Total assets 24,732,630 22,340,335

(Amounts in € thousand)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2018 12.31.2017
10. Financial liabilities at amortised cost 23,282,962

a) deposits from banks 1,009,774
b) deposits from customers 22,273,188

Deposits from banks (ex IAS 39 ltem 10) 926,001

Deposits from customers (ex IAS 39 Item 20) 20,205,036
20. Financial liabilities held for trading 2,221

Financial liabilities held for trading (ex IAS 39 Item 40) 2,617
40. Hedging derivatives 5,341 12,694
50. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged financial liabilities (+/-) 2,600 (3,772)
60. Tax liabilities 12,390 10,234

a) current tax liabilities 12,390 10,234
80. Other liabilities 337,069 338,286
90. Provisions for employee severance pay 4,561 4,999
100. Provisions for risks and charges: 109,805 112,414
a) commitments and guarantees given 49
c) other provisions for risks and charges 109,756 112,414
120. Revaluation reserves (9,794) (8,340)
140. Equity instruments 200,000 -
150. Reserves 355,509 323,932
160. Share premium reserve 1,934 1,934
170. Share capital 200,773 200,545
180. Treasury shares (-) (13,960) (365)
200. Net Profit (Loss) for the year 241,219 214,120
Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 24,732,630 22,340,335
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Consolidated Income statement

(Amounts in € thousand)

INCOME STATEMENT 2018 2017
10. Interest income and similar revenues 293,128 269,746
of which: interest income misured 290,863
20. Interest expenses and similar charges (14,469) (5,165)
30. Net interest margin 278,659 264,581
40. Fee and commission income 571,514 533,314
50. Fee and commission expense (271,071) (263,231)
60. Net fee and commission income 300,443 270,083
70. Dividend income and similar revenue 95 55
80. Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading 43,833
Gains (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading (ex IAS 39 Item 80) 47,413
90. Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting 171 19
100. Gains and losses on disposal or repurchase of: 1,683
a) financial assets at amortised cost 17
b) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,666
Gains (Losses) on disposal and repurchase of: (ex IAS 39 ltem 100) 4,712
a) loans 3,951
b) available-for-sale financial assets 761
110. Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (1,500) -
b) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value (1,500)
120. Operating income 623,384 586,863
130. Impairment losses/writebacks on: (3,520)
a) financial assets at amortised cost (3,406)
b) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (114)
Net losses/recoveries on impairment: (ex IAS 39 Item 130) (18,043)
a) loans (5,158)
b) available-for-sale financial assets (12,891)
d) other financial assets 6
150. Net profit from financial activities 619,864 568,820
180. Net profit from financial and insurance activities 619,864 568,820
190. Administrative expenses (344,234) (323,524)
a) staff expenses (86,727) (78,886)
b) other administrative expenses (257,507) (244,638)
200. Net provisions for risks and charges (6,672) (8,459)
a) provision for credit risk of commitments and financial guarantees given 402
b) other net provision (7,074) (8,459)
210. Impairment/write-backs on property, plant and equipment (5,464) (5,569)
220. Impairment/write-backs on intangible assets (4,959) (4,800)
230. Other net operating income 96,378 90,304
240. Operating costs (264,951) (252,048)
280. Gains (losses) on disposal of investments (161) (508)
290. Total profit (loss) before tax from continuing operations 354,752 316,264
300. Tax expense (income) related to profit or loss from continuing operations (113,533) (102,144)
310. Total profit (loss) after tax from continuing operations 241,219 214,120
330. Net Profit (Loss) for the year 241,219 214,120
350. Profit (loss) for the year attributable to the Parent Company 241,219 214,120
2018 2017
Earnings per share (euro) 0.40 0.35
Diluted earnings per share (euro) 0.40 0.35

Note:

For further information on "Earnings per share" and "Diluted earnings per share" please see notes to the accounts, Part C - Information on the

Consolidated Income Statement, Section 25.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(Amounts in € thousand)

ITEMS 2018 2017
10. Net Profit (Loss) for the year 241,219 214,120
Other comprehensive income after tax without reclassification through profit or loss
70. Defined benefit plans 3,429 (3,473)
Other comprehensive income after tax with reclassification through profit or loss
140. Financial assets (other equity securities) designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (6,859)

Available-for-sale financial assets:(ex IAS 39 Item N. 100) 1,927
170. Total other comprehensive income net tax (3,430) (1,546)
180. Comprehensive income (voce 10+170) 237,789 212,574
200. Consolidated comprehensive income attributable to the parent 237,789 212,574
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Statement of changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity

Statement of changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity at 31.12.2018

(Amounts in € thousand)

ALLOCATION OF PROFIT CHANGEIDURINGITHEVEAT
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Share capital:
- ordinary shares 200,545 200,545 228 200,773] -
- other shares
Share premium reserve 1,934 1,934 1,934 -
Reserves:
~ from profits 291,841| _ (4,868) 286,973 40,725 (5,933) (228) 321,537 ,
- others 32,091 32,091 1,881 33,972 -
Rev aluation reserves (8,340) 1,976 (6.364) (3.430)] (9.794)] -
Equity instruments 200,000 200,000 -
Treasury_shares (365) (365) 6,548 (20.143) (13,960) -
Profit (loss) for the year 214,120 214,120 (40,725) (173,395) 241,219 241,219 -
Shareholders' Equity Group 731,826 (2,892) 728,934 - (173,395) (5,933) 6,776 (20,143) - 200,000 - 1,653 - 237,789 975,681 -
Shareholders' Equity
Minorities - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

The amount of the dividend approved by the Fineco's Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting in 2018, totalling €173,395,252.58, corresponds to €0.285 per share.

The column "Stock options" includes the incentives plans serviced by FinecoBank shares.

The “Changes in reserves” column includes: dividends not distributed in relation to any treasury shares held by the Bank at the record date, transferred to the Extraordinary reserve; coupons paid on equity instruments net of
related taxes; transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of Equity instruments net of related taxes.

Statement of changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity at 31.12.2017

(Amounts in € thousand,
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Share capital:
-) ordinary shares 200,246 200,246 299 200,545 -
-) other shares
Share premium reserve 1,934 1,934 1,934 -
Reserves:
-) from profits 250,247, 250,247 41,684 209 (299) 291,841 -
-) others 28,160 28,160 3,931 32,091 -
Rev aluation reserves (6,794) (6.794) (1,546)| (8,340)! -
Equity instruments
Treasury shares (4,338) (4,338) 4,145) (172) (365) —
Profit (loss) for the year 211,844 211,844] (41,684) (170,160) 214,120| 214,120| -
Shareholders' Equity Group 681,299 - 681,299 - (170,160) 209 4,444 172) - - - 3,632, - 212,574 731,826 -
Shareholders' Equity
Minorities - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

The amount of the dividend approved by the Fineco's Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting in 2017, totalling €170,159,736.60, corresponds to €0.28 per share.
The column "Stock options" includes the incentives plans serviced by FinecoBank shares.
The column “Changes in reserves” corresponds to the amount of the dividends not distributed in relation to any treasury shares held by the Bank at the record date and transferred to the Extraordinary reserve.
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Indirect method

(Amounts in € thousand)

AMOUNT

A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2018 2017

1. Operations 356,581 361,011
- profit (loss) for the year (+/-) 241,219 214,120
- unrealised gains/losses on financial assets/liabilities held for trading and on other assets/liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (-/+) 2,839

- capital gains/losses on financial assets/liabilities held for trading and on assets/liabilities designated at fair value

through profit and loss (+/-) (ex IAS 39) (1,795)
- gains (losses) on hedge accounting (-/+) (171) (19)
- net losses/recoveries on impairment (+/-) 4,401

- net losses/recoveries on impairment (+/-) (ex IAS 39) 10,053
- net value adjustments/write-backs on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (+/-) 10,424 10,369
- net provisions for risks and charges and other expenses/income (+/-) 22,691

- provisions and other incomes/expenses (+/-) (ex IAS 39) 22,691
- uncollected net premiums (-) - -
- other uncollected insurance income/expenses (-/+) - -
- unpaid duties, taxes and tax credits (+/-) 6,098 2,729
- impairment/write-backs after tax on discontinued operations (+/-) - -
- other adjustments (+/-) 69,080 102,863

2. Cash flows from/used by financial assets (2,425,880) 669,060
- financial assets held for trading 197

- financial assets held for trading (ex IAS 39) (3,192)
- financial assets designed at fair value -

- other financial assets mandatorily at fair value 142,484

- financial assets at fair value (ex IAS 39) -
- financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 56,220

- available-for-sale financial assets (ex IAS 39) 246,012
- financial assets at amortised cost (2,590,419)

- loans and receivables with banks: demand loans (ex IAS 39) -

- loans and receivables with banks: other loans (ex IAS 39) 1,514,464

- loans and receivables with customers (ex IAS 39) (1,108,949)
- other assets (34,362) 20,725

3. Cash flows from/used by financial liabilities 2,125,729 1,295,521
- financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 2,142,185

- deposits from banks: demand deposits (ex IAS 39) -

- deposits from banks: other deposits (ex IAS 39) (175,627)

- deposits from customers (ex IAS 39) 1,404,594

- debt certificates including bonds (ex IAS 39) -
- financial liabilities held for trading (35)

- financial liabilities held for trading (ex IAS 39) 144
- financial liabilities designated at fair value -

- financial liabilities designated at fair value (ex IAS 39) -
- other liabilities (16,421) 66,410
Net cash flows from/used in operating activities 56,430 2,325,592

B. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

1. Cash flows from
- sales of equity investments - -
- collected dividends on equity investments - -
- sales of property, plant and equipment 93 256
- sales of intangible assets - -
- sales of subsidiaries and divisions - -

- sales of financial assets held to maturity (ex IAS 39) -

2. Cash flows used in
- purchases of equity investments - -
- purchases of property, plant and equipment (7,146) (7,084)
- purchases of intangible assets (5,755) (4,978)
- purchases of subsidiaries and divisions - -

- purchases of financial assets held to maturity (ex IAS 39) (2,430,228)
Net cash flows from/used in investing activities (12,808) (2,442,034)

C. FUNDING ACTIVITIES
- issue/purchase of treasury shares (13,367) 4,273
- issue/purchase of equity instruments 200,000 -
- dividends and other distributions (186,104) (174,395)
- sales/purchases of control -

Net cash flows from/used in financing activities 529 (170,122)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM/USED DURING THE YEAR 44,151 (286,564)
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RECONCILIATION
(Amounts € thousand)
AMOUNT

BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 2018 2017
Cash and cash balances at the beginning of the year 1,950,996 2,284,275
Net cash flows generated/used during the year 44,151 (286,564)
Cash and cash balances: effect of changes in exchange rates 24,167 (46,715)
Cash and cash balances at the end of the year 2,019,314 1,950,996

Key

(+) generated

(-) used

The term "Cash and cash balances" means cash recorded under item 10 of assets "Cash and cash balances" and the equivalent liquid assets
recorded under item 40 of assets "Financial assets at amortised cost: a) loans and receivables with banks" (consisting of current accounts and
deposits maturing within 3 months) net of the equivalent liquid liabilities recorded under item 10 of liabilities "Financial liabilities at amortised cost a):
deposits from banks" (represented by current accounts and deposits maturing within 3 months), as well as in the respective items 60 of assets and
10 of liabilities ex IAS 39.

The item “Cash and cash balances” at the end of 2018 consisted of:

e  (Cash recognised under asset item 10 “Cash and cash balances” in the amount of €6 thousand;
Current accounts and demand deposits recognised under asset item 40 “Financial assets at amortised cost: a) loans and receivables with
banks” in the amount of €2,071,871 thousand;

e net of the Current accounts and demand deposits recognised under liability item 10 “Financial liabilities at amortised cost: a) deposits from
banks” in the amount of €52,563 thousand.

The item “Cash and cash balances” at the end of the prior year consisted of:

e  Cash recognised under asset item 10 “Cash and cash balances” in the amount of € 613 thousand;

e  Current accounts and demand deposits recognised under asset item IAS 39 60 “Loans and receivables with banks” in the amount of €
1,993,139 thousand;

e net of the Current accounts and demand deposits recognised under liability item IAS 39 10 “Deposits from banks” in the amount of €
42,756 thousand.
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Part A - Accounting policies

A.1 General

Section 1 - Statement of Compliance with IFRS

In implementation of Legislative Decree no. 38 of February 28, 2005, these Consolidated financial statements of FinecoBank Banca Fineco S.p.A.
(hereinafter, FinecoBank or Fineco or the the Bank) have been prepared in accordance with the IAS/IFRS issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), including the SIC and IFRIC interpretation documents, as endorsed by the European Commission until December 31,
2018, pursuant to EU Regulation 1606/2002 of July 19, 2002 and applicable to financial reports for the periods starting on or after January 1, 2018.

They are an integral part of the Annual Financial Report as required by art. 154-ter, paragraph 1 of the Consolidated Finance Act (TUF, ltalian
Legislative Decree no. 58 of February 24, 1998).

In its circular 262 of December 22, 2005 as amended, the Bank of Italy laid down the formats for the consolidated financial statements and
consolidated notes to the accounts of banks and regulated financial companies that are parents of banking groups, which have been used to
prepare these consolidated Accounts.

Section 2 - Preparation criteria

As mentioned above, these Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS endorsed by the European
Commission and applicable to financial reports for the periods starting on or after January 1, 2018. The following documents have been used to
interpret and support the application of IFRS, even though not all of them have been endorsed by the European Commission:

e  The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting;

e Implementation Guidance, Basis for Conclusions, IFRICs and any other documents prepared by the IASB or International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) supplementing the IFRS;

e Interpretation documents on the application of IFRS in Italy prepared by the Organismo Italiano di Contabilita (Italian Accounting Body);

e  ESMA (European Securities and Markets Authority) and Consob documents on the application of specific IFRS provisions;

o the documents prepared by the Italian Banking Association (ABI).

The Consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Income Statement, the consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement (compiled using
the indirect method), and these Notes to the Consolidated Accounts, together with the Directors’ Report on Operations (“Consolidated Report on
Operations”) and the Annexes.

Pursuant to Art. 123-bis par. 3 of Consolidated Finance Act, as noted in the "Other Information" section of the Consolidated Report on Operations,
the Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership Structures is available in the "Governance" section of the FinecoBank website.

The figures in the Consolidated financial statements and the Notes to the consolidated Accounts are provided in thousands of euros, unless
otherwise indicated. In accordance with the Bank of Italy Circular 262/2005, items in the consolidated Balance Sheet, consolidated Income
Statement and consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for which there is no significant information to be disclosed for the reporting
period and the previous year, are not provided.

In addition, the tables in the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts that do not have any significant information to be disclosed are not shown either for
the reporting period or the previous year.

The Bank has applied the provision provided for in paragraph 7.2.15 of IFRS 9 and paragraphs E1 and E2 of IFRS 1 "First-Time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards", according to which - without prejudice to the retrospective application of the new measurement rules
and representation required by the standard - there is no obligation to restate the values of previous years (comparative values) in the FTA financial
statements. Without prejudice to the disclosure regarding the reconciliation between data in the last approved financial statements and the opening
balances of the first financial statements drawn up applying the new accouniting standard, according to the new provisions provided for in the 5th
update of Circular 262 issued on 22 December 2017, and the related methodology set forth in section 5. Other matters - transition to IFRS 9
Financial Instruments of these Notes to the Consolidated Accounts, the above statements were supplemented, where different, with the accounting
items of the 2017 financial statements — as stated by the 4th update of Circular 262 - in order to show the corresponding values determined
according to IAS 39. The tables included in the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts have also been integrated with the tables provided for in the 4th
update of Circular 262, presenting the relative values determined according to IAS 39, where it was not possible to report comparative data of the
previous year due to the 5th update of Circular above mentioned. Any opening balances shown in the tables of the Notes to the consolidated
Accounts are those deriving from the first application of the accounting standard IFRS9.

Finally, with reference to some tables in Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies, the circumstances mentioned above determined the
choice not to provide the comparison period for some tables whose content was not comparable to those of the previous period.

Any discrepancies between the figures shown in the Consolidated financial statements and the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts is solely due to
roundings.
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With reference to IAS 1, these Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as there are no doubts or
uncertainties as to the ability of the Bank and the subsidiary Fineco Asset Management DAC to continue its business operations and to continue
operating for the foreseeable future (at least for the next 12 months).

The measurement criteria adopted are therefore consistent with this assumption and with the principles of accrual based accounting, the relevance
and materiality of accounting information, and the prevalence of economic substance over legal form.

These criteria have changed in part with respect to the previous year exclusively, relating to the introduction of new standards and interpretations,
for further details please see the modifications described section 5 * Other matters”, and in Part “A.2 — The main items of the accounts”.

Section 3 — Consolidation Procedures and Scope

The following was used in order to prepare the consolidated Accounts at December 31, 2018:

e the draft accounts at December 31, 2018 of FinecoBank S.p.A.;
o the draft accounts at December 31, 2018 of Fineco Asset Management DAC, fully consolidated, prepared in accordance with IAS/IFRS
where the items have been appropriately reclassified and adjusted for consolidation requirements.

The fully consolidation involves combining the balance sheets and income statements of the subsidiary on a “Line-by-Line” basis. The accounting
value of the investment in the fully-consolidated companies is eliminated - as a result of assuming their assets and liabilities - as a contra-entry to
the relevant quota of Shareholders' Equity of the Bank (100%, as the company is fully owned by the Bank). Assets and liabilities, off-balance sheet
transactions, revenues and charges, as well as any profits and losses incurred between companies are fully eliminated, in line with the consolidation
methods adopted. A subsidiary's costs and revenues are consolidated starting from the date on which control over it was acquired, coinciding with
the date on which the company was incorporated. It should be noted that, although the company closed its first financial year at 31/12/2018, the
consolidated financial statements of FinecoBank as at December 31, 2017 already included the costs incurred by the subsidiary at the start-up
stage. Therefore, for the purposes of preparing the 2018 consolidated financial statements, only costs and revenues referring to the period 1st
January 2018 - 31st December 2018 were accounted for.

1. Interests in fully-owned subsidiaries

OWNERSHIP RELATIONSHIP

REGISTERED TYPE OF VOTING RIGHTS %
COMPANY NAMES HEADQUARTERS OFFICE RELATIONSHIP (" HELD BY HOLDING % @
1. Fineco Asset Management DAC Dublin Dublin 1 FinecoBank 100% 100% effective

Key:
(1) Type of relationship:
1= majority of voting rights and the ordinary Shareholders' Meeting
2 = dominant influence at the ordinary Shareholders' Meetings
3 = agreements with other shareholders
4 = other types of control
5 = unified management pursuant to Article 26, paragraph 1, of “Italian legislative decree 87/92"
6 = unified management pursuant to Article 26, paragraph 2, of “Italian legislative decree 87/92"
(2)  Availability of votes in the ordinary Shareholders' Meeting, with a distinction between actual and potential votes.

2. Valuations and key assumptions to define the scope of consolidation
No data to report.

3. Interests in fully-owned subsidiaries with major minority interests

3.1 Minority interests, availability of minority votes and dividends distributed to minority shareholders
No data to report.

3.2 Significant minority interests: accounting data
No data to report.

4. Significant restrictions
No data to report.
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5. Other information
No data to report.

Section 4 - Subsequent events

No significant events have occurred after the balance sheet date that would make it necessary to change any of the information given in the
Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2018.

The Consolidated Financial Statements at December 31, 2018 were approved by the Board of Directors of February 5, 2019, which authorised their
publication also pursuant to IAS10.

Section 5 — Other matters
In 2018, the following accounting standards, amendments and interpretations become effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018:

IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers (EU Regulation 2016/1905);

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (EU Regulation 2016/2067).

Clarifications on IFRS 15: Income from customer contracts (EU Regulation 2017/1987);

Amendments to IFRS 4: Implementation of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (EU Regulation 2017/1988)
Annual Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards, 2014-2016 Cycle (EU Regulation 2018/182);

Amendments to IAS 40: Transfers of investment property (EU Regulation 2018/400);

IFRIC 22 - Interpretation on foreign currency transactions and advance consideration (EU Regulation 2018/519);

Amendments to IFRS 2: Classification and measurement of share-based payments (EU Regulation 2018/289).

Where applicable, these accounting standards, amendments and interpretations had no impact on the consolidated financial position and results of
the Bank as at December 31, 2018, except of the accounting standard IFRS 9 which provides for new requirements for the classification,
recognition, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities, for details of which please see the comments below, and, to the
extent described below, of the new IFRS 15 accounting standard and related clarifications.

In 2018, moreover, the European Commission approved the following amendments to accounting standards and interpretations become effective
and mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019:

e Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (EU Regulation 2018/498);
e IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (EU Regulation 2018/1595).

These standards and amendments have not been applied in advance by the Bank and its subsidiary.

With regard to the IFRS 16 standard — Leasing (EU Regulation 2017/1986) approved by the European Commission in 2017, please refer to the
information below.

Lastly, as at December 31, 2018, the IASB issued the following accounting standards and interpretations or revisions thereof, whose application is
hower still subject to completion of the approval process by the European Union, which is still ongoing:

IFRS 17 - Insurance contracts (May 2017);

IFRS 14 - Rate-regulated activities (January 2014);

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or transfer of assets to a joint venture or associate (September 2014);
Amendments to IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (October 2017);

Annual Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards, 2015-2017 Cycle (December 2017);
Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (issued on February 2018);

Amendments to IFRS 3: Business combinations (October 2018);

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: definition of “material” (October 2018).

Furthermore, in March 2018, the IASB published the revised version of the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting.

The possible effects of the future adoption of these standards, interpretations and amendments, when applicable and relevant for the Bank and its
subsidiary, are reasonably estimated as not significant; the related analyses, also in relation to pending approvals, are still to be completed.
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As mentioned before, on December 22, 2017 the 5th update of Circular no. 262 was enacted: "The bank balance sheet: format and drafting rules”
which implemented IFRS 9" Financial Instruments” and IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and the resulting changes introduced in
other international accounting standards, including IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. In addition, the same update provided that
provisions for off-balance sheet exposures must be shown in liability item 100. "Provisions for risks and charges" instead of the previous liability item
100. "Other liabilities" of the IAS 39 financial statements, and that property, plant and equipment accounted for according to the provisions of IAS 2
must be recorded in balance sheet item 90. “Property, plant and equipment”.

Transition to IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers
IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers (published by the IASB on May 28, 2014), was endorsed by the European Commission on
September 22, 2016 through EU Regulation 2016/1905.

The principle will replace IAS 18 - Revenue and IAS 11 - Construction Contracts, and IFRIC 13 - Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 -
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 - Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC 31 - Revenues-Barter Transactions
Involving Advertising Services, for annual periods starting on or after January 1, 2018.

The standard establishes a new revenue recognition model according to two alternative approaches (“at point in time” or “over time”) to be applied to
all contracts with customers except those that fall within the scope of other IAS/IFRS standards such as finance leases, insurance contracts and
financial instruments. The recognition of revenue under the new model for analysing transactions, based on the transfer of control, has the following
basic steps:

identification of the contract with the customer;

identification of performance obligations under the contract;

determination of the price;

allocation of price to the contract performance obligations;

the revenue recognition criteria when the entity satisfies each performance obligation.

In order to assess the impacts deriving from the IFRS 15 application on the Bank’s consolidated income statement and financial position, also taking
account of the clarifications on the standard published by the IASB in April 2016 and endorsed by the European Union on 6 November, 2017, the
chart of accounts was analysed solely with regard to income items of the Bank and its subsidiary included in the implementation scope of the
standard, identified in Item 40. “Fee and commission income” and Item 230. “Other management charges and income” (for Other income only) of the
consolidated income statement.

The analyses carried out, based on contractual documents and other evidence demonstrating compliance with defined commercial practices when
contracts do not specify payment methods and timing, have shown that the accounting treatment of the main types of revenues from contracts with
customers (including institutional counterparties) was already in line with the provisions of the new standard and, consequently no significant impact
was found on the Bank's consolidated financial position and performance at that date, as of 1 January 2018, considering that Fineco Asset
Management DAC was not operating at the beginning of 2018. On the other hand, the changes concern the greater information detail required by
the standard and by the corresponding provisions envisaged by the 5th update of Bank of Italy’s Circular 262 above mentioned; the standard
prescribes a specific set of disclosures on the nature, amount, timing and degree of uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from contracts
with customers.

More specifically, for the purpose of the first application of the standard, the Bank analysed the available contractual documentation to verify:

o whether the revenue recognition criteria are in line with the provisions of the new standard. The analyses did not reveal any significant
non-compliances with respect to the provisions of the new standard. To this end, it should be noted that the provision of financial services
over a given period of time (for example, the management of current accounts, advisory services) have been considered as satisfied over
time ("over time”), regardless of when the consideration is paid by the customer, while the provision of financial services that require
specific activities to be carried out (for example, purchase, sale or placement of securities, units of UCIs or insurance products, execution
of credit transfers) have been considered as satisfied at a given time ("point in time"), although the contract provides for the service to be
provided indefinitely;

e whether any goods or services contain performance obligations with different pattern of transfer to the customer and, consequently, with
different revenue recognition ("over time" or "point in time"). In this respect, the Bank has identified a service that contains two
performance obligations that follow a different pattern of transfer to the customer, but the same revenue recognition framework; however,
this is a non-material revenue that continues to be entirely attributed to the main performance obligation; the revenue relating to the
shipment is nonetheless a non-material revenue that continues to be attributed entirely to the main performance obligation (annual
management of the credit card) and consequently recognized according to the relative revenues recognition scheme;

o whether the consideration promised in the contract includes a variable fee. In this respect, no mismatches were identified with respect to
the provisions of the new standard, since any variable fees are estimated and recognized if and only to the extent that it is highly
probable that when the uncertainty associated with the consideration is subsequently resolved there will be no significant downward
adjustment to the amount of cumulative revenue recognized, taking into consideration all information reasonably available to the Bank.
Note that the following were not considered as variable consideration:
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o  management, placement and advisory fees for financial products collected by the Bank, the amount of which is calculated as the
ratio of the equivalent value/average balance of the product placed to the applicable rate envisaged in the contract. There are no
performance fees on asset management products in favor of the Bank;

o the amount received as part of a contract that provides for the application of a different commission level (which includes, for
example, the payment of decreasing commissions until they are down to zero) according to quantitative parameters established in
the contract. As the data for calculating the remuneration are available at the time the revenues are recognized and have no impact
on the Bank's future income statement. As regards the placement of insurance policies with return linked to the performance of the
separate account on the annual expiration date of the policy, it should be noted, however, that the return is variable in relation to the
performance of the separate account, which may result in a reduction in the applicable rate;

e whether the consideration promised in the contract includes a significant funding component. In this respect, no contracts were found
containing a significant funding component that was not correctly recognized. There are, however, some contracts, mainly with
institutional counterparties or product companies, that do not explicitly mention the payment date of the fees, which are settled on the
basis of market practices or verbal agreements, or contracts that provide for the advance / deferred payment of the good or service. For
these contracts the practical expedient envisaged by paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 was used; for this reason the Bank did not adjust the
promised consideration amount to take into account the effects of a funding component as the time interval expected between the
transfer of the promised good or service and the related payment is less than one year;

o  whether there is a consideration to be paid to the customer. In this respect, a number of contracts were found providing for a
consideration to be paid, the accounting treatment of which was already in line with the provisions of the new standard.

The costs recognized for the acquisition of contracts with customers, which the Bank would not have incurred had it not obtained the contract, are
recognized as assets and systematically amortized in the income statement in line with the recognition of revenues related to the transfer to
customers of the goods or services to which the asset refers.

The analyses carried out did not reveal any contracts providing for a non-cash consideration.

Transition to IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
From 1 January 2018, FinecoBank and its subsidiary Fineco Asset Mamangement DAC — which however was not operating at that date — adopt the
accounting standard IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

With regard to FinecoBank, the project transition to IFRS 9~ in coordination with a similar project carried out at UniCredit Group level and developed
with the involvement of the Bank's reference functions and, most recently, the Board of Directors — was organised through specific work-streams, in
particular:

e "Classification and Measurement” work-stream, aimed at reviewing the classification of financial instruments in line with the new criteria
of IFRSY;
e "Impairment” work-stream, aimed at developing and implementing models and methodologies for the calculation of impairment losses.

The new accounting standard:

e introduces significant changes compared to IAS 39, regarding the rules on the classification and valuation of financial instruments. With
reference to loans and debt instruments, the classification and subsequent valuation of these instruments is based on the business model
and cash flow profile of the financial instruments (SPPI - Solely Payments of Principal and Interests). With reference to the equity
exposures, they are classified at fair value with a recognition of differences in the income statement or under “Other comprehensive
income”. In this second case, contrary to the provisions of IAS 39 in relation to financial assets available for sale, IFRS 9 has eliminated
the request to recognise long-term value impairments and provides that if the instrument is sold, the profits or losses from the sale must
be reclassified in another net equity reserves and not on the income statement. With regard to financial liabilities at fair value, the
standard IFRS 9 changes the accounting of the so-called "own credit risk", i.e. changes in the value of liabilities measured at fair value
linked to fluctuations of one's own credit rating. The new standard requires these changes to be recognised in a Shareholders' equity
reserve rather than through profit and loss, as provided for by IAS 39, thus eliminating a source of volatility for economic statement
results3t.

e introduced a new model for recognising impairments for credit exposures based on (i) an “expected losses” approach instead of the
existing model, which is based on the recognition of “incurred losses” and (ii) on the concept of the expected lifetime loss;

e has intervened on the hedge accounting rules, by revising them in regard to the designation of a hedging account and the verification of
efficiency, with the aim of improving the alignment between the accounting representation of the hedging operations and the underlying
operational logic. The Bank, like the UniCredit Group, has taken advantage of the option to continue to apply the existing IAS 39 hedge
accounting requirements for all hedging accounts until such time as the IASB has completed its macro-hedging accounting rules project.

As a result of the entry into force of the new accounting standard, the Bank has reclassified the financial liabilities existing on 1.1.2018 into the
categories provided for in the new accounting standard.

31 On the FTA and on 31 December 2018, FinecoBank and its subsidiary Fineco Asset Mamangement DAC did not hold any own financial liabilities valued at fair value.
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This classification is based on the business model and the contractual cash flow profile; for the classification of financial instruments in the new
categories as provided for in the accounting standard, the business model was analysed by mapping the financial assets on the Bank’s balance
sheet and allocating a specific business model to each of them.

The financial assets in the Bank's portfolio were allocated “Held to collect” or “Held to collect and sell” business models according to the purpose for
which they are held, and the expected turnover. The financial assets in the trading portfolio were allocated the business model “Other business
model’, to reflect the trading intentions.

For the purposes of classifying financial instruments into the new IFRS 9 categories, the business model analysis must be accompanied by a cash
flow analysis (the “SPPI Test"). In this regard, in line with the Parent Company UniCredit S.p.A., the Bank has developed systems and processes to
analyse the existing debt securities and loans portfolio, to assess whether the contractual cash flow profiles allow a valuation at the amortised cost
(Held to collect - HTC) or at fair value with an impact on overall profits (Held to collect and sell - HTCS).

This analysis was done on a contract by contract basis, both by defining clusters based on the operations’ profiles, and by using an internally-
developed SPPI Tool to analyse the profiles of the contracts with regard to IFRS 9.

For further clarification on the application of the aforementioned rules, reference should be made to Part A.2 - “The main items of the accounts” of
these Notes to the Consolidated Accounts.

With reference to the reclassification of financial instruments in order to implement the new accounting standard, the following tables show,
separately, for the financial assets and liabilities:

a) the IAS 39 balance sheet item and the related closing balance as at 31 December 2017
b) the reclassification of that balance in the various IFRS 9 balance sheet items;

c) the effects resulting from the application of the valuation criteria required by IFRS 9;

d) the IFRS 9 opening balance on 1 January 2018 (the sum of b. and c.).

Reclassification of financial assets

(Amounts in € thousand)

IAS 39 BALANCE SHET ITEMS IFRS 9 BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
CARRYING FINANCIAL ASSETS
VALUE FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR DESIGNATED AT FAIR OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
12.31.2017 1AS TRADING VALUE MANDATORILY AT FAIR VALUE
39 A B C A B C A B C
Financial assets held for trading 10,879 8,827 - 8,827 - - - 2,052 - 2,052
Av ailable-for-sale financial assets 1,047,689 - - - - - - 5,218 - 5,218
Held-to-maturity investments 4,826,390 - - - - - - - - -
Loans and receivables with banks 13,878,117 - - - - - - 532,584 19,338 551,922
Loans and receivables with customers 2,129,219 - - - - - - - - -
Total 8,827 - 8,827 - - - 539,854 19,338 559,192
Key
A: Reclassification of IAS 39 balance sheet value
B: Change in measurement
C: New balance sheet value ex IFRS 9
(Amounts in € thousand)
IAS 39 BALANCE SHEET ITEMS IFRS 9 BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

VALUE THROUGH OTHER

CARRYNG . o CHENSIVE INCOME  LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH  LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
VALUE BANKS WITH CUSTOMERS
12.31.2017
1AS 39 A B c A B c A B c
Financial assets held for frading 10,879 - - - - - - - - -
Av ailable-for-sale financial assets 1,047,689 1,042,471 - 1,042,471 - - - - - -
Held-to-maturity investments 4,826,390 - - - - - - 4,826,390 (469) 4,825,921
Loans and receivables with banks 13,878,117 - - - 13,345,533 (12,595) 13,332,938 - - -
Loans and receivables with customers 2,129,219 - - - - - - 2,129,219 (691) 2,128,528
Total 1,042,471 - 1,042,471 13,345,533 (12,595) 13,332,938 6,955,609 (1,160) 6,954,449
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The following classifications have been made:

financial assets shown in balance sheet item I1AS 39 20. “Financial assets held for Trading” are classified in the “Other business models”

and shown:

o inthe asset item IFRS 9 20. “Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: a) financial assets held for trading” as to €8.8
million, relating to securities held in connection with customer insourcing and trading activities;

o inthe assetitem IFRS 9 20. “Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value”;
as to €2.05 million, relating to securities withdrawn by customers (splits and/or defaulted securities) to the value of € 30,000, and
units in investment funds held in portfolio for initial seeding, to the value of €2.02 million;

financial assets shown in balance sheet item IAS 39 40. “Financial assets held for sale”, totalling €1.048 million, were classified

o inthe business model “Held to collect and sell - HTCS” and shown in balance sheet item IFRS 9 30. “Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income”, as to the part represented by sovereign state issues, as to € 1,042.5 million;

o inthe “Other business models” and balance sheet item IFRS 9 20. “Financial assets valued at fair value through profit and loss: c)
other financial assets mandatorily at fair value” as to €5.2 million, consisting of the preferred shares of Visa INC class “C” as to €4.5
million and the residual exposure in equity instruments relating to the Voluntary Scheme of the Interbank Deposit Protection Fund
(FITD) totalling €0.7 million;

o finally the “FVTOCI"32 option was exercised for equity instruments relating to shares in UniCredit Business Integrated Solutions
S.C.p.A. and the Patti Chiari consortium (recognised, respectively at €172 and €5,000), shown in the asset item IFRS 9 30.
“Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income”;

the financial assets shown in the balance sheet item IAS 39 50. “Financial assets held to maturity” which consist exclusively of securities

issued by sovereign states totalling € 4,826 million, which were classified in the “Held to collect - HTC” business model and shown in the

asset item IFRS 9 40. “Financial assets valued at amortised cost: b) loans and receivables to customers”;

the financial assets shown in the balance sheet item IAS 39 60. “Bank receivables”, totalling € 13,878 million, were classified in the “Held

to collect — HTC” business model and were shown in the balance sheet item IFRS 9 40. “Financial assets valued at amortised cost: a)

loand and receivables with banks”, with the exception of:

o adebtinstrument issued by UniCredit S.p.A. with coupon in arrears, totalling € 382.5 million subscribed by the Bank in past years,
with the rate risk covered by a derivative with the same Parent Company. Its contractual profile did not pass the SPPI Test and it
was thus included in the asset item IFRS 9 20. “Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: c) other financial assets
mandatorily at fair value”;

o adebtinstrument issued by UniCredit S.p.A. with coupon in arrears, totalling € 150 million subscribed by the Bank in past years. Its
contractual profile did not pass the SPPI Test and it was thus included in the asset item IFRS 9 20. “Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss: c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value”; this exposure expired on 31 December 2017 but was
settled on 2 January 201833;

the financial assets shown in the balance sheet item IAS 39 70. “Customer loans”, totalling € 2,129 million, were classified in the “Held to

collect - HTC” business model and shown in the balance sheet item IFRS 9 40. “Financial assets valued at amortised cost: b) loans and

reveivables with customers”.

Below are the details of the adjustments made to the starting balances on 1 January 2018 as a result of the changes to classification and
measurement following the introduction of IFRS 9:

-€ 10.3 million (<€ 14.3 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to the value reductions based on the Expected Crediti Loss (“ECL")

recorded in the FTA Reserve under the liability item IFRS 9 150. "Reserves”, of which;

a) -€9.1 million (<€12.6 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to the value reductions in securities and loans in the HTC business
model, entered in the asset item IFRS 9 40. “Financial assets valued at amortised cost: a) loans and receivables with banks”,
relating almost exclusively to the adjustment reductions made to exposures to the UniCredit Group, mainly represented by the
liquidity deposited with UniCredit S.p.A. and from the debt securities issued by the Parent Company;

b) -€0.8 million (<€1.2 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to the value reductions in securities and loans in the HTC business
model, entered in the asset item IFRS 9 40. “Financial assets valued at amortised cost: b) loans and receivables with customers”, of
which;

i. -€0.5 million (-€0.7 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to loans with customers;
il -€0.3 million (<€0.5 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to exposures in government bonds;

c) -€0.1 million (<€0.1 million exclusive of fiscal effects) relating to the value reductions in securities in the HTCS business model,
entered in the asset item IFRS 9 30. “Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income”, relating exclusively to
government bonds;

d) -€0.3 million (<€0.45 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to the value reductions in off-balance exposures, entered with
counterparty the asset item IFRS 9 100. “Provisions for risks and charges: a) commitments and guarantees given’, mainly relating
to the reductions in bank guarantees issued by the Bank in favour of the the Italian Revenue Agency request by and in favor of
UniCredit S.p.A;;

32 With regard to non-trading equity instruments, IFRS 9 provides for the possibility of measuring them at the fair value recognised in the other overall income statement items ( “FVTOCI" - Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income).
33 As this exposure expired on 31 December 2017 and was reimbursed at par value on 2 January 2018, no fair value adjustments were made on first-time adoption.
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o +€7.3 million (€9.4 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to classification and valuation of financial assets, recorded in the FTA Reserve
under the liability item IFRS 9 150. "Reserves", of which;

a) +€14 million (€19.3 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to positive fair value valuation on the above mentioned debt instrument
issued by UniCredit S.p.A. with coupon in arrears, subscribed by the Bank in past years, with the rate risk covered by a derivative
with the same Parent Company. lts contractual profile did not pass the SPPI Test and it was thus reclassified in the asset item IFRS
9 20. “Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value™;

b) -€6.6 million (-€9.9 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to an adjustment made to the opening balance of the asset item IFRS 9
60. “Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged financial assets (+/-)",as a result of the closure of the positive adjustment to the value
of the bond UniCredit S.p.A. mentioned above;

e  +€0.1 million (€0.1 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to the value reductions in securities in the HTCS business model, as
previuosly mentioned, that, as according to the rules of the accounting standard, leads to the recognition of a positive reserve at the time

of first application, in the liability item IFRS 9 120. “Revaluation reserves” as counterparty of the FTA Reserve in the liability item IFRS 9

150. “Reserves”;

e €1.9 million (€3.3 million excluding fiscal effects) entered as reduction of the FTA Reserve in the liability item IFRS 9 150. “Reserves”
and, for the same amount, entered as increase in the liability item IFRS 9 120. “Revaluation reserves”, of which:

a) +€1.1 million (€1.2 million excluding fiscal effects) in the item IFRS 9 150. “‘Reserves” and -€1.1 million in the item IFRS 9 120.
“Revaluation reserves” relating to the closing of the positive “AFS revaluation reserve” relating to preferred shares di Visa INC class
“C’, following their reclassification in the asset item IFRS 9 20. “Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss c) other
financial assets mandatorily at fair value”;

b) -€3.0 million (-€4.6 million excluding fiscal effects) in the item IFRS 9 150. “Reserves” and +€3.0 million in the item IFRS 9 120.
“Revaluation reserves” relating to the closing of the negative “AFS revaluation reserve” relating to government bonds which were
reclassified on 15 November 2016 from the portfolio IAS 39 “Financial assets available for sale” to the portfolio IAS 39 “Financial
assets held to maturity”, following their reclassification in the asset item IFRS 9 40. “Financial assets valued at amortised cost b)
loans and receivables with customers”.

34 The UniCredit's bond valued at fair value in the IFRS 9 transition were restructured on January 2, 2018, incorporating the contractual profile of the derivative used up to that date to hedge the interest rate risk. The Bank
therefore derecognised the old financial instrument recognised at December 31, 2017 and recognised the new one, whose characteristics support compliance with the SPPI Test, with consequent classification of the
instrument to assets measured at amortised cost.
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Reclassification of financial liabilities

(Amounts in € thousand)

IAS 39 BALANCE SHEET ITEMS IFRS 9 BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
CARRYING FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST
VALUE
12.31.2017 IAS DEPOSITS FROM BANKS DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE
39 A B C A B C A B C
Deposits from banks 926,001 926,001 - 926,001 - - - - - -
Deposits from customers 20,205,036 - - - 20,205,036 - 20,205,036 - - -
Financial liabilities held for trading 2,617 - - - - - - - -
Hedging derivatives 12,694 - - - - - - - - -
Total 926,001 - 926,001 20,205,036 - 20,205,036 - - -

(Amounts in € thousand)

IAS 39 BALANCE SHEET ITEMS IFRS 9 BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
CARRYING
NAlue  MANCALLABLIESHED AL UASLTES e WeDoG oERvATuES

39 A B C A B C A B C
Deposits from banks 926,001 - - -
Deposits from customers 20,205,036 - - -
Financial liabilities held for trading 2,617 2,617 - 2,617 - - - -
Hedging deriv atives 12,694 9,320 - 9,320 - 3,374 - 3,374
Total 11,937 11,937 - 3,374 - 3,374
Key

A: Reclassification of IAS 39 balance sheet value
B: Change in measurement
C: New balance sheet value ex IFRS 9

The reclassification of Financial liabilities shows that the classifications applied on the basis of IFRS 9 are essentially the same as those applied on
the basis of IAS 39, despite taking into account the differences in the denomination of the various categories set out by the 5th Update to Circular

262.

However, there was a reclassification, in liability item IFRS 9 20. “Financial liabilities held for trading” of the fair value of the derivative used to hedge
the rate risk of the UniCredit share, with coupon in arrears mentioned above, to the value of € 9.3 million.

The following tables show:

e the IAS 39 balance sheet as at 31 December 2017 based on the balance sheet scheme that incorporates the changes introduced by
IFRS 9 (5th update of 22 December 2017 of Circular 262 Bank of Italy "Banking financial statements: schedules and rules compilation")
to be applied to the financial statements for the year 2018;
o the adjustments to these balances made on 1 January 2018 following the introduction of IFRS 9, divided into adjustments resulting from
the new provisions for impairment and fair value adjustments deriving from the new classification and measurement, and the related tax

effects;

o the opening balance sheet IFRS 9 at January 1, 2018.
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(Amounts in € thousand)

ADJUSTMENTS
IFRS 9

ADJUSTMENTS IFRS 9
CLASSIFICATION AND

01.01.2018 POST

BALANCE SHEET ASSETS 12.31.2017 IMPAIRMENT MEASUREMENT _APPLICATION IFRS 9
10. Cash and cash balances 613 - - 613
20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 548,682 - 19,338 568,020

a) financial assets held for trading 8,827 - - 8,827

¢) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value 539,855 - 19,338 559,193

30. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensiv e income 1,042,471 - - 1,042,471

40. Financial assets at amortised cost 20,301,141 (13,756) - 20,287,385

a) loans and receivables with banks 13,345,531 (12,595) - 13,332,936

b) loans and receivables with customers 6,955,610 (1,161) - 6,954,449

50. Hedging derivatives 458 - - 458

60. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged financial assets (+/-) 9,590 - (9,929) (339)

70. Equity investments - - - -

90. Property, plant and equipment 15,205 - - 15,205

100. Intangible assets 97,511 - - 97,511
of which

- goodwill 89,602 - - 89,602

110. Tax assets 9,249 909 (1,519) 8,639

a) current tax_assets 1,765 - - 1,765

b) deferred tax assets 7,484 909 (1,519) 6,874

130. Other assets 315,415 - - 315,415

Total assets 22,340,335 (12,847) 7,890 22,335,378

(Amounts in € thousand)

ADJUSTMENTS ADJUSTMENTS IFRS 9

IFRS9 CLASSIFICATION AND 01.01.2018 POST

BALANCE SHEET LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 12.31.2017 IMPAIRMENT MEASUREMENT APPLICATION IFRS 9

10. Financial liabiliies at amortised cost 21,131,037 - - 21,131,037
a) deposits from banks 926,001 - - 926,001

b) deposits from customers 20,205,036 - - 20,205,036

20. Financial liabilities held for frading 11,936 - - 11,936
40. Hedging deriv atives 3,375 - - 3,375
50. Changes in fair value of portfolio hedged financial liabiliies (+/-) (3,772) - - (3,772)
60. Tax liabiliies 10,234 (3,032 516 7,718
a) current tax liabiliies 10,234 (3,032) 516 7,718

80. Other liabiliies 338,286 - - 338,286
90. Provisions for employ ee severance pay 4,999 - - 4,999
100. Provisions for risks and charges: 112,414 451 - 112,865
a) commitments and guarantees given - 451 - 451

c) other provisions for risks and charges 112,414 - - 112,414

120. Revaluation reserves (8,340) 62 1,914 (6,364)

150. Reserves 323,932 (10,328) 5,460 319,064

160. Share premium reserve 1,934 - - 1,934

170. Share capital 200,545 - - 200,545

180. Treasury shares (-) (365) - - (365)

200. Net Profit (Loss) for the year 214,120 - - 214,120

Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity 22,340,335 (12,847) 7,890 22,335,378

With reference to the impairment, the table below illustrates the gross exposure and value adjustments as at 1 January 2018, divided by item and
classification stage. The gross exposure of the financial asset designated at fair value with an impact on overall profitability corresponds to the
balance sheet amount, as these financial assets are valued at fair value and the related value adjustments are recognised as an increase to the
liability item IFRS 9 120. “Revaluation reserves”.

The off-balance sheet exposures refer to the commitments and guarantees issued, which are subject to the IFRS 9 write-down rules.
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Breakdown by Stages of the exposures and of the impairment provision

(Amounts in € thousand)

GROSS AMOUNT

IMPAIRMENT PROVISION

STAGE 1 STAGE 2 STAGE 3 STAGE 1 STAGE 2 STAGE 3

30. Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 1,042,471 - - (93) - -
- Debt securities 1,042,466 - - (93) - -
- Equity instruments 5 - - - - -
40. Financial ts at amortised cost 20,297,910 11,454 23,723 (18,692) (5,964) (21,043)
- Debt securities 15,132,717 - - (10,193) - -
- Loans and receivables with banks 3,039,207 - - (2,872) - -
- Loans and receivables with customers 2,125,986 11,454 23,723 (5,627) (5,964) (21,043)
Off-balance sheet exposures 2,581,092 404 - (450) - -

Reconciliation from the IFRS 9 opening balance to the IAS 39 closing balance of the cumulated write-downs

(Amounts in € thousand)

IFRS 9 BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

IAS 39 BALANCE
SHEET ITEMS

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH BANKS

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH CUSTOMERS

CUMULATED
WRITEDOWNS
(EX IAS 39)

CUMULATED
CHANGE IN WRITEDOWNS
MEASUREMENT __ (EX IFRS 39)

CUMULATED
WRITEDOWNS
(EX 1AS 39)

CUMULATED
CHANGE IN WRITEDOWNS
MEASUREMENT __ (EX IFRS 39)

CUMULATED
WRITEDOWNS
(EX IAS 39)

CUMULATED
CHANGE IN WRITEDOWNS
MEASUREMENT __ (EX IFRS 39)

Financial assets
held for trading -

- debt secuties -

- loans and
receivables -

Available-for-sale
financial assets -

(93) (93)

- debt secuties -

(93) (93)

- loans and
receivables -

Held-to-maturity
investments -

- (470) (470)

- debt secuties -

- (470) (470)

- loans and
receivables -

Loans and
receivables with
banks -

- (12,595) (12,595)

- debt secuties -

- (9.723) (9,723)

- loans and
receivables -

- (2,872) (2,872)

Loans and
receivables with
customers -

(32,534) (100) (32,634)

- debt secuties -

- loans and
receivables -

(32,534) (100) (32,634)

Total -

(93) (93)

- (12,595) (12,595)

(32,534) (570) (33,104)

(Amounts in € thousand)

PERFORMING

NON PERFORMING

CUMULATED
WRITEDOWNS
(EX IAS 39)

30. Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

MEASUREMENT

CUMULATED
WRITEDOWNS
(EX IFRS 39)

CHANGE IN

CUMULATED
WRITEDOWNS
(EX IAS 39)

CUMULATED
WRITEDOWNS
(EX IFRS 39)

CHANGE IN
MEASUREMENT

(93) (93)

- Debt securities

(93) (93)

- Equity instruments

40. Financial assets at amortised cost

(11,074)

(13,582) (24,656)

(21,460)

(21,043)

- Debt securities

(10,193) (10,193)

- Loans and receivables with banks

(2,872) (2,872)

- Loans and receivables with customers

(11,074)

(517)

(11,591)

(21,460)

(21,043)

Off-balance sheet exposures

(450)

(450)
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The "Change in measurement" column also includes the reduction in the bad debt provision related to default interest, amounting to approximately
€0.6 million and mainly attributable to non-performing loans. Starting from January 1, 2018, default interest is recognized in gross value only if no
value adjustments have been recorded on the original exposures and if deemed recoverable by the bank. Previously, default interest was accounted
for in both gross exposures and the related bad debt provision.

As detailed above, the adoption of IFRS 9 has, overall, had a negative impact on consolidated net equity, in the amount of -€2.9 million (-€4.8
million excluding fiscal effects), of which -€4.9 million was recorded in the balance sheet item IFRS 9 150. “Reserves” as a liability, and +€2 million
was recorded as a liability in balance sheet item IFRS 9 120. “Revaluation reserves’, in particular:

e -€10.3 million (-€ 14.3 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to the application of a value reduction based on the Expected Crediti Loss
(“ECL") recorded in the FTA Reserve under the liability item IFRS 9 150. "Reserves";

e +€7.3 million (€9.4 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to classification and valuation of financial assets, recorded in the FTA Reserve
under the liability item IFRS 9 150. "Reserves";

e +€0.1 million (€0.1 million excluding fiscal effects) relating to the value reductions in securities in the HTCS business model, as
previuosly mentioned, that, as according to the rules of the accounting standard, leads to the recognition of a positive reserve at the time
of first application, in the liability item IFRS 9 120. “Revaluation reserves”;

e -€1.9 million (+€3.3 million excluding fiscal effects) entered recordered in the FTA Reserve in the liability item IFRS 9 150. “Reserves”
and +€1.9 million (+€3.3 million excluding fiscal effects) entered in the liability item IFRS 9 120. “Revaluation reserves” referred, as
described above, to the closure of the AFS revaluation reserve following the reclassification of the related financial assets.

Below is the consolidated net equity on the closing date of 31 December 2017 and the consolidated net equity for the start date of 1 January 2018.

(Amounts in € thousand )

12.31.2017 IFRS 9 CHANGES 01.01.2018

1. Share capital 200,545 - 200,545
2. Share premium reserve 1,934 - 1,934
3. Reserves 323,932 (4,868) 319,064
- from earnings 291,841 (4,868) 286,973
a) legal reserve 40,109 - 40,109

b) treasury shares reserve 365 - 365

c) others 251,367 (4,868) 246,499

- others 32,091 - 32,091

4. Equity instruments - - -
5. (Treasury shares) (365) - (365)
6. Revaluation reserves (8,340) 1,976 (6,364)
7. Net Profit (Loss) for the year 214,120 - 214,120
Total 731,826 (2,892) 728,934

The reduction in the consolidated net equity for an amount of -€2.9 million, as shown in the table above, coincides with the reduction in the net
equity of FinecoBank, given the non-operational nature of the subsidiary Fineco Asset Management DAC as at January 1, 2018.

Impacts on regulatory capital resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9
FinecoBank is not obliged to report on own funds and consolidated regulatory ratios because it is part of the UniCredit Group. Therefore, please
refer to the Explanatory Notes of the separate financial statements of FinecoBank S.p.A..

IFRS 16 - Leasing

On November 9, 2017, the Commission Regulation (EU) 2017/1986 of 31 October 2017 was published, which modifies Regulation (EC) no.
1126/2008 which adopts certain international accounting standards in accordance with Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament
and of the Council regarding International Financial Reporting Standards 16.

IFRS16, applicable from January 1, 2019 (with the faculty of early application in 2018 - together with the mandatory application of IFRS 15 - of which
the Bank has not availed) replaces the current set of international accounting principles and interpretations on leasing and, in particular, IAS17. The
standard provides a new definition of leasing and introduces a criterion based on the control ("right of use") of an asset to distinguish leasing
agreements from service agreements, identifying which discriminant: the identification of the asset, the right to replace it, the right to obtain
substantially all the economic benefits deriving from the use of the asset and the right to direct (i.e. control) the use of the asset.

The standard confirms the distinction between operating leases and finance leases with reference to the accounting model to be applied by the
lessor: a lease is classified as financial if it transfers, substantially, all the risks and benefits connected to the ownership of an underlying asset; a
lease is classified as operating if, substantially, it does not transfer all the risks and benefits deriving from the ownership of an underlying asset.

With regard to the accounting model to be applied by the lessee, the new principle provides that, for all type of leases including operating leasing, an
asset representing the right to use the leased asset shall be recognised, together with - at the same time - the financial liability for the fees set out in
the agreement.
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Upon initial recognition, the aforementioned asset is valued based on the cash flows associated with the leasing contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, this asset will be valued on the basis of the provisions for tangible and intangible assets from IAS 38, IAS 16 or IAS 40 and, therefore, at
the cost net of amortization and any reduction in value, at "recalculated value" or at fair value as applicable.

For this reason during the 2018 the Bank and its subsidiary Fineco AM are carrying out the activities of analysis and recognition of the impacts
consequent to the adoption of the standard, aspects that represent the main discontinuity with respect to the accounting model envisaged by 1AS17,
completing the preliminary assessment of potential impacts at the transition date (January 1, 2019).

The activities relating to the development of rules, principles and IT systems to ensure the correct calculation of new assets and liabilities, their
subsequent measurement and the determination of the related effects on the income statement, are currently being finalized.

The Bank and its subsidiary, in line with the choices made by the Parent Company UniCredit S.p.A., decided not to recalculate the accounting data
relating to previous years (comparative values) and to apply the standard retroactively, accounting for the cumulative effect deriving from the initial
application on 1 January 2019 in net equity, as envisaged by the same principle (transition with modified retrospective method). For the First Time
Adoption purposes, the amount of the financial liability will be equal to the present value of the future payments remaining at the transition date and
the activity consisting of the "right of use" is recognized on the date of the initial application by evaluating it to equal to the amount of the financial
liability above mentioned adjusted for the amount of any accruals/prepayments related to the lease, booked in the statement of the situation
statement of financial position immediately prior to the date of initial application (i.e these financial statements as at December 31, 2018).

For the purposes of calculating the leasing debt and the associated "right of use”, the Bank and its subsidiary proceed to discount future installments
at an appropriate interest rate. In this context the future lease payments to be discounted are determined in light of the provisions of the lease and
calculated net of the VAT component, despite being the same non-deductible for the Bank, by virtue of the fact that the obligation to pay such tax
arises at the time of issuance of the invoice by the lessor and not at the effective date of the leasing contract.

Identification of the scope of application

The Bank and its subsidiary have identified the leasing contracts that fall within the scope of application of the standard, represented by the lease
contracts of the buildings used by the company and the financial shops used by the personal financial advisors and directly managed by the Bank,
as well as leases of machinery and cars.

As envisaged by the standards, which grants exemptions in this regard, and in line with the choices made by the Parent Company UniCredit S.p.A.,
(i) low-value assets” contracts (whose threshold has been identified as €5 thousand) and (ii) leases with a contractual duration equal to or less than
12 months (“Short term lease”) have been excluded from the scope of application; it was decided not to apply the standard to the (iii) leases of
intangible assets (mainly represented by software lease payments).

Note that the lease of the building located in Milan, Piazza Durante 11, where the Bank's registered office is located, will be classified at First Time
Adoption of the standard as "Short term lease" and, therefore, excluded from the scope of application of IFRS 16, as on January 31, 2019, the Bank
completed the purchase transaction of the building, with the simultaneous termination of the lease.

Duration of leasing

The Bank and its subsidiary have determinated the duration of leasing for each contract within the scope of application, considering the “non-
cancellable” period during which the Bank or its subsidiary have the right to use the underlying asset and taking into consideration all the contractual
aspects that could modify such duration, for instance:

e  periods covered by a right of resolution (together with any related penalties) or an option to extend the lease in favor of the sole lesse, the
sole lessor or in favor of both, even in different periods over the duration of the contract;

. periods covered by an option to purchase the underlying asset.
In particular, with reference to contracts that allow the lessee to tacitly renew the lease at the end of a first contractual period, the duration of the
lease is determined, based on historical experience, considering the period not to be canceled as well as the period object of extension option (first
contract renewal period), except for the existence of any business plans for the disposal of the leased asset, as well as clear and documented
assessments by the competent Bank departments which lead us to believe that the failure to exercise the option to renew or exercise the resolution
option, also taking into account, with particular regard to the financial shops in use to the personal financial advisors, the commercial strategies for
the recruitment and territorial organization of the network.

Discount rate

The standard IFRS 16 provides that at the staritng date of the contract the lessee has to assess the liability of the lease to the present value of the
payments due for the lease not paid on that date. Payments due for the lease must be discounted using the implied lease interest rate, if it can be
easily determined. If this is not possible, the lessee has to use its marginal refinancing rate.

The nature of the contracts stipulated by the Bank and its subsidiary, which fall within the scope of application of the standard, mainly represented
by rental contracts of properties, do not allow to derive the implied rate in each contract, for this reason the discounting is carried out using the
marginal refinancing rate. The latter is determined on the basis of the cost of funding for liabilities of similar duration and similar security of those
implicit in the lease contracts.
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Since FinecoBank has not issued its own debt instruments, the rate applied is UniCredit S.p.A.'s senior secured funding rate, considering that the
Parent Company applies this rate to finance companies in the Italian perimeter.

Conclusions

Due to the new accounting rules set by the standard IFRS 16 from the point of view of the lessor, at the first time adoption a consolidated balance
sheet effect is expected, deriving from the recognition, with counterparty the net quity, of assets representing the right of use of the leased assets
and, at the same time, from the inclusion in the liabilities side of financial debts relating to the lease payments, specified in the outstanding contracts,
to be paid; no impact has been recorded in consolidated net equity.

In particular, the application of IFRS 16 will lead an increase in consolidated balance sheet assets of approximately €64.5 million (of which
approximately €0.9 million referred to Fineco AM) and an increase in the Bank’ RWAs whose effect can be estimated, as a preliminary figure, equal
to 55 basis points on the individual CET1 of the Bank as of 31 December 2018. It is note noting that the Bank is not required to prepare the report on
the own funds and on the regulatory ratios on a consolidated basis, but exclusively individual, as consequence of belonging to the UniCredit Banking
Group.

Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund - Voluntary Scheme

FinecoBank has joined to the "Voluntary Scheme" (the "Schema Volontario"), introduced by Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund (IDGF), with
appropriate modification of its statute, in November 2015. The “Schema Volontario” is an instrument for the resolution of bank crises through support
measures in favour of its member banks, if specific conditions laid down by the legislation occurring. The “Schema Volontario” has an independent
funding and the participating banks are committed to supply the relevant resources upon demand, when resources are needed to fund interventions.

The “Schema Volontario”, as a private entity, has provided in April 2016 the restructuring of the support of the action that FITD had operated in July
2014 in favour of Bank Tercas, operation that generated no further charges for participating banks. Subsequently, the financial participating size of
the “Schema Volontario” was increased up to €700 million (with a total commitment for FinecoBank of €16.8 million).

In this context, on June 2016 the “Schema Volontario” approved an action in support of Cassa di Risparmio di Cesena (CariCesena), in relation to a
capital increase approved by the same bank on 8 June 2016 for €280 million. On 30 September 2016 the commitment pro-quota relating to
FinecoBank had been converted into a monetary payment which has led, as indicated in this regard by the Bank of Italy, to the recognition in the
financial statements of capital instruments classified — according to the pre-existing accounting standard IAS 39 - as “Financial assets available for
sale" for an amount of €6.7 million (consistent with the monetary payment). The evaluation of the instruments as at December 2016, according to an
internal evaluation model based on multiples of a banking basket integrated with estimates on Cassa di Risparmio di Cesena’s credit portfolio and
related equity/capital needs, had brought to full impairment of the position.

In September 2017, to face Credit Agricole CariParma intervention in favour of CariCesena, Cassa di Risparmio di Rimini (Carim) and Cassa di
Risparmio di San Miniato (Carismi) (approved by the Management Board of the Voluntary Scheme and based on a capital increase for €464 million
and subscription of bonds from NPL securitisation of these banks for €170 million), the fund had increased its capital endowment till to €795 million
and, as a consequence, the share of total investments attributable to FinecoBank amounted to €13.3 million net of contributions already paid above
mentioned). Further in the same month, FinecoBank had paid €1.4 million, as required by the Fund, in respect of the part of the intervention related
to the capital increase of Carim and Carismi. During December 2017, FinecoBank had paid further €12.2 million (€7.5 million referred to capital
increase of the banks and €4.7 million referred to the subscription of securitisation’s notes). Following these payments, FinecoBank’s residual
commitment towards Voluntary Scheme was substantially nil (€0.1 million as at December 31, 2018).

All payments done in 2017 referred to capital increase of the banks have brought, as the previous ones, to the recognition in the financial statements
of capital instruments classified — according to the pre-existing accounting standard IAS 39 - as “Financial assets available for sale” for the same
amount of €8.9 million, entirely cancelled in 2017 as deemed unrecoverable due to the sale of the banks to Credit Agricole CariParma at a symbolic
price.

Regarding the payment relating to the portion of investment referred to Voluntary Scheme’s subscription of Junior and Mezzanine quotes of the
securitization (€4.7 million for FinecoBank), initial value of the corresponding equity instruments has been rectified in the financial statements to
reflect fair value valuation declared by the Voluntary Scheme (€0.7 million for FinecoBank), as resulting from analysis conducted by the advisors in
charge appointed by IDGF for the underlying credits evaluation of the Junior and Mezzanine securities above mentioned, conducted according to a
Discounted Cash Flow model based on recovery plans elaborated by SPV'’s special servicer.

With regard to these capital instruments, classified under item 20. “Financial assets measured at fair value with impact on the income statement: c)
other financial assets mandatorily at fair value", following the update of the assessment received from the Voluntary Scheme (resulting from the
analysis of the appointed advisor), at the date of 31 December 2018 a further adjustment of € 0.2 million was recorded.

On November 30, 2018, the Shareholders' Meeting of the banks participating to the Voluntary Scheme decided to intervene in favour of Banca
Carige S.p.A. by subscribing a Tier 2 subordinated loan (for a maximum amount of €320 million) to be issued by Banca Carige S.p.A. and intended
for conversion into capital to the extent necessary to allow an expected capital increase of €400 million.

On the same date, within the framework of the agreement specifically stipulated with the Voluntary Scheme, Banca Carige S.p.A. has issued bonds
for €320 million, of which €318.2 million have been subscribed directly by the Voluntary Scheme. The bonds were issued at par (100% of the
nominal value), with a fixed rate coupon of 13% and a maturity of 10 years (maturity November 30, 2028). However, as required by the related Term
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Sheet, as the Extraordinary Shareholders' Meeting of Banca Carige S.p.A. did not appointed a proxy to the Board of Directors by December 22,
2018, also pursuant to art. 2443 of the Civil Code, to increase the share capital for a maximum total amount, including possible premium, of €400
million, with retroactive effect, starting from the date of issue, the interest on The principal amount of the outstanding bonds from time to time
matures at a nominal fixed rate of 16%.

With regard to the intervention above mentioned, FinecoBank's contribution request by the Voluntary Scheme has been equal to approximately €9.5
million and it has been booked in December at the moment of payment, as a financial instrument classified — according to the current accounting
standard IFRS 9 and in continuity with what was done during the transition to the standard at January 1, 2018 for the instruments recognized for
previous payments to the Voluntary Scheme - under the item 20. “Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: c) other financial assets
mandatorily at fair value".

Since no market valuations or prices of comparable securities are available, at December 31, 2018 the fair value of the instrument was determined
by the Bank using internal models (based on Discounted Cash Flow and Market Multiples methods applied in a multi-scenario analisys) also
referring to the valuation carried out by the advisor appointed by IDGF in the context of the formalities related to training from the 2018 Report of the
Voluntary Scheme and sent by the IDGF to the participating banks and taking into consideration the significant current and future uncertainties
regarding the issuing credit institution. A further adjustment of €2.8 million was recorded on the consolidated financial statements 2018.

Contributions to guarantee and resolution funds

With reference to the contributory obligations under Directive 2014/49/EU (Deposit Guarantee Schemes - DGS), with the communication dated
December 6, 2018, the Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund (IDGF) announced that in application of a uniform standard of distribution of ordinary
contributions in the years of accumulation, the total amount due by the consortium member banks for the financial year 2018 would be equal to
€538.7 million. The European and national legislation, however, defines a final objective level, allowing deposit guarantee schemes to take into
account, for the calculation of contributions, the economic cycle and the possible procyclical impact of the same (Article 96.2, paragraph 2 of the
TUB). Under this provision, in order to meet the financial needs related to the Solidarity Fund's, established by the 2016 Stability Law, using IDGF
resources, without request further payments to the consortium members, even in each of the years 2016 and 2017 the DGS ordinary contributions
have been reduced by € 100 million, to be recovered over the years of the financial allocation (with consequent increase in future contributions). The
Board of the Fund, in its meeting held on 28 November 2018, resolved to proceed on this line also for 2018, earmarking € 80 million of the total
amount owed by the member banks to the Solidarity Fund, in order to face the financial needs arising from the release of provisions and
compensation relating to ongoing, arbitration and lump sum procedures.

As a consequence, the total ordinary contribution referred to the Directive 2014/49/EU (Deposit Guarantee Schemes - DGS), intended for the
establishment of the IDGF financial resources for the financial year 2018, has been established in the amount of €458.7 million.

To the ordinary contribution so quantified they are added, according to the art. 25, paragraph 2 of the Bylaws, the additional contributions amounting
to € 1.2 million, aimed at the gradual recovery in the years 2018-2024 of the part of the financial resources used up to now for interventions.

The FITD Board, in the above mentioned meeting, also resolved to request an additional contribution of € 16.5 million from the consortium banks, to
be recognized, as an arrangement fee, to the pool of arranger banks, as part of the granting a line of credit as an alternative source of funding to
meet its obligations, instead of the request for extraordinary contributions, whose call would immediately affect the liquidity and profit and loss
account of the consortium members, with possible procyclical effects.

In total, therefore, the contribution due by the consortium member banks for 2018, including the resources to be allocated to the Solidarity Fund and
the additional contribution above mentioned, amounts to a total of €556.4 million. The portion pertaining to each consortium member is calculated
based on the amount of the protected deposits as at 30 September 2018 and risk-adjusted based on each of their management indicators of the
risk-based model of the Fund for calculating contributions, pursuant to art. 28, paragraph 2 of the Articles of Association.

The contribution for the year 2018 was paid and accounted for by the Bank under the item 160. Administrative Expenses, amounting to €14.3 million
as follows:

e  €13.8 million relating to the DGS ordinary contribution;
e  €0.03 million relating to the DGS additional contribution;
e €0.4 million relating to the contribution to the Solidarity Fund.

No contribution was requested from the Bank by the Single Resolution Board, for 2018, with regard to contribution obligations pursuant to Directive
2014/59/EU (Single Resolution Fund).

Risks and uncertainties related to the use of estimates

In the application of the accounting policies, the management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of certain assets and liabilities as well as the information regarding potential assets and liabilities. Estimates and related assumptions are
based on previous experience and other factors considered reasonable under the circumstances and have been used to estimate the carrying
values of assets and liabilities not readily available from other sources.
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Estimated figures have been used for the recognition of some of the largest value-based items in the Consolidated financial statements as at
December 31, 2018, as required by the accounting standards and regulations. These estimates are largely based, as regards assets, on
calculations of future recoverability of the values recognised in the accounts and, as regards liabilities, on estimates of the probability of using
resources to meet its obligations and the amount of resources necessary to that end, according to the rules laid down in current legislation and
standards and have been made on the assumption of a going concern, on which basis these Consolidated financial statements have been prepared,
i.e. without contemplating the possibility of the forced sale of the estimated items.

The processes adopted support the carrying values at December 31, 2018. For some of the above items the valuation is particularly complex given
the uncertainty of the macroeconomic and market situation, characterised by the significant volatility of financial indicators used in the valuation
process and still high levels of credit quality impairment, as well as, more generally, the uncertainty and instability in the banking sector.

For other items, however, the complexity and subjectivity of estimates is influenced by the structure of the underlying assumptions and assumptions,
the number and variability of available information and the uncertainties connected with possible future outcomes of proceedings, disputes and
litigation.

The parameters and information used to determine the above-mentioned values are therefore significantly affected by multiple factors, which could
change rapidly in ways that are currently unforeseeable, which means that consequent future effects on the book values cannot be ruled out.

At the date of preparing these Consolidated financial statements we believe that there are no uncertainties such as to give rise to significant
adjustments to the carrying amounts within one year.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are regularly reviewed. Any changes resulting from these reviews are recognised in the period in which the
review was carried out, provided the change only concerns that period. If the revision concerns both current and future periods it is recognised
accordingly in both current and future periods.

Uncertainty affecting estimates is inherent, among other factors, in the determination of:

fair value of financial instruments not listed in active markets;
receivables and relating write-offs, and in general, all other financial assets/liabilities;
employee severance pay provision (ltaly) and other employee and financial advisor benefits;
provisions for risks and charges;
goodwill;
deferred tax assets;

e tax liabilities;
this quantification can vary over time, also to a significant extent, according to the evolution of the national and international social and economic
environment and the consequent impacts on the Bank’s earnings (and to the extent applicable, of the subsidiary) and customer solvency and the
credit quality of the counterparties, the performance of the financial markets, which influence the fluctuation in rates, prices and actuarial
assumptions used to determine the estimates, the reference legislative and regulatory changes, as well as the evolution and developments in
existing or potential disputes.

With specific reference to future cash flow projections used in the valuation of the recoverability of goodwill recorded in the balance sheet, it should
be noted that the parameters and information used are significantly influenced by the macro-economic market situation, which may change
unpredictably. For further information please refer to Part B — Consolidated Balance Sheet — Section 10 — Intangible assets.

With specific reference to valuation techniques, unobservable inputs and parameteres used in the fair value measurement and sensitivities to
changes in those inputs, please refer to Section A.4. Information on fair value of this Part A.

With particular regard to provisions for risks and charges for risks arising from legal disputes and claims, see “Part E — Information on risks and
hedging policies - Section 5 - Operating risk” of the notes to the accounts.

For further details on the models and parameters used in the measurement of IFRS 9 adjustments, please refer to the information in the specific
section “18. Other information - Impairment" of Part A “Accounting policies — A.2. The main items of the accounts”.

Other information

The Consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2018 have been reviewed, pursuant to ltalian Legislative Decree no. 39 of January 27,
2010 and Regulation (UE) 2014/537, by Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. appointed as auditor of the Bank’'s accounts in implementation of the
Shareholders' Meeting resolution of April 16, 2013.

The entire document is lodged with the competent offices and entities as required by law.
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A.2 The main items of the accounts

1 - Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

a) Financial assets held for trading (HFT)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

e acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;

e part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking;

e  a derivative contract not designated within hedge accounting operations, with a positive fair value incorporated into financial liabilities
other than those valued at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial assets held for trading financial are initially recognised, at settlement date with regard to debt and equity securities and disbursement data
with regard to loans, at its fair value, which is usually equal to the amount paid, excluding transaction costs and income, which are recognised
through prafit or loss even when directly attributable to the financial assets. Trading book derivatives are recognised at trade date.

After initial recognition these financial assets are measured at their fair value through consolidated profit or loss.

An exception is represented by derivatives settled by delivery of an unlisted equity instrument whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, and
which are therefore measured at cost.

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:

e its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange
rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable (usually called the ‘underlying’) provided that in case of non-
financial variable, this is not specific of one of the parties;

e it requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts that
would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors;

e tis settled at a future date.

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract, with the effect that
some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.

An embedded derivative is separated from financial liabilities other than those measured at fair value through profit or loss and from non-financial
instruments, and is recognized as a derivative, if:

o the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to those of the host contract;
e  aseparate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
e the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured entirely at fair value through profit or loss.

When an embedded derivative is separated, the host contract is accounted for according to its accounting classification.

A gain or loss arising from sale or redemption or a change in the fair value of a HFT financial asset is recognised in consolidated income statement
in item 80 "Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading", including financial derivatives relating to a fair value option.

If the fair value of an instrument falls below zero, which may happen with derivative contracts, it is recognised in item 20. “Financial liabilities held for
trading”.

b) Financial assets designated at fair value

A non-derivative financial asset may be designated at fair value if such designation avoids accounting mismatches deriving from the valuation of
assets and associated liabilities according to different valuation criteria.

These assets are accounted for alike “Financial assets held for trading” (see point a) Financial Assets held for trading) with the exception of gains
and losses, both realised and unrealised, that are recognised in item 110. "Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss: a) financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value".

At the balance sheet date, no financial assets classified as "Financial assets designated at fair value" were held.
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c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value

A financial asset, that is not held for trading, is classified as financial asset mandatorily at fair value if it does not meet the conditions, in terms of
business model or cash flow characteristics, for being measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Specifically, the following assets have been classified in this portfolio:

debt instruments, securities and loans for which the business model is neither held to collect nor held to collect

and sell but which are not part of the trading book;

debt instruments, securities and loans with cash flows that are not solely payment of principal and interest;

units in investment funds;

equity instruments for which the Bank does not apply the option granted by the standard of valuing these instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

These assets are accounted for alike “Financial assets held for trading” (see point a) Financial Assets held for trading) with the exception of gains
and losses, both realised and unrealised, that are recognised in the consolidated income statement item 110. "Gains (losses) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss: b) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value”.

2 - Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income

A financial asset is classified among financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income if:

e its business model is held to collect and sell;
o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

This item also includes equity instrument, not held for trading purposes, for which at the date of initial recognition, or in the first time adoption of the
principle, the Bank exercised the option, granted by the standard, to designate this instruments at fair value with an impact on Statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial assets measured at fair value through comprehensive income are initially recognised, at settlement date with regard to debt and equity
securities and disbursement data with regard to loans, at its fair value, which is usually equal to the consideration of the transaction, plus transaction
costs and income directly attributable to the instrument.

The interest accruing on interest-bearing instruments is recognised on the income statement, in net interest margin, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest rate method. This shall be calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for:

a) purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the entity shall apply the credit-adjusted effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.

b) financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial
assets. For those financial assets, the entity shall apply the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset in subsequent reporting
periods.

Delay interest is taken to the consolidated income statement on collection or receipt.

After initial recognition, for debt instruments, gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
comprehensive income and shown in item 120. “Revaluation reserves” in consolidated shareholders' equity.

These instruments are the subject to reductions / write backs in accordance with the illustration given in the next relevant section “Impairment”.
Gain/losses are recorded in the consolidated income statement item 130. "Impairment losses/write backs on: b) financial assets at fair value through
comprehensive income” with contra-entry in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and are also shown in item 120. “Revaluation
reserves” in consolidated shareholders' equity.

The time value interest are recognised in the interest margin.

In the event of disposal, the accumulated profits and losses are recognised in the consolidated income statement in item 100. "Gains (losses) on
disposal or repurchase of: b) financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income".

With regard to equity instrument, the profits and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income and shown in item 120. “Revaluation reserves” in consolidated shareholders' equity.

In accordance with the provisions of IFRS9, no impairment losses on equity instruments are recognized in the income statement.

In the event of disposal, the accumulated profits and losses are recorded in item 150. “Other Reserves”.
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3 - Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is classified within the financial assets measured at at amortized cost if:

e jts business model is held to collect;
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

More specifically, this item includes:

e |oans to banks and customers in the various technical forms that meet the requirements of the previous paragraph;
e  debt securities that meet the requirements of the previous paragraph.

This item also includes current receivables associated with the provision of financial assets and services as defined by the T.U.B. and from the
T.U.F. (e.g. current receivables associated with the distribution of financial products).

Financial assets at amortized cost are initially recognised, at settlement date with regard to debt securities and disbursement data with regard to
loans, at its fair value, which is usually equal to the consideration paid, plus transaction costs and income directly attributable to the instrument; the
interest is recognised on the income statement, in net interest margin, on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method. This shall be
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for:

(a) purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the entity shall apply the credit-adjusted effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.

(b) financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial
assets. For those financial assets, the entity shall apply the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset in subsequent reporting
periods.

Delay interest is taken to the income statement on collection or receipt.

After initial recognition at fair value, these assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, which can be adjusted to take
account of any write-downs/write-backs resulting from the valuation process in accordance with the illustration given in the next relevant section
“Impairment”. Gain/losses are recorded in the consolidated income statement item 130. "Impairment losses/write backs on: a) financial assets at
amortised cost”.

The time value interest are recognised in the interest margin.

In the event of derecognition, the profits and losses are recognised in the consolidated income statement in item 100. "Gains (losses) on disposal or
repurchase of: a) financial assets at amortised cost".

4 - Hedge Accounting

The Bank, like the UniCredit Group, has taken advantage of the option to continue to apply the existing IAS 39 hedge accounting requirements for
all hedging accounts until such time as the IASB has completed its macro-hedging accounting rules project.

Hedging derivatives are those created to hedge market risks (interest-rate, currency and price) to which the hedged positions are exposed. They
may be described as follows:

e fair value hedge: a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset or liability, or an identifiable portion of such an
asset or liability;

e cash flow hedge: a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction which could affect profit or loss in future periods;

e hedge of a net investment in a foreign entity, whose operations are presented in a currency other than euro.

Hedging derivatives are initially recognised on trade date and are valued at their fair value.

A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if there is formal designation and documentation of the hedging relationship including the risk
management objective, the strategy for undertaking the hedge, and how the hedging instrument's prospective and retrospective effectiveness will be
assessed. It is necessary to assess the hedge's effectiveness, at inception and in subsequent periods, in offsetting the exposure to changes in the
hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.

A hedge is regarded as highly effective if, at the inception of the hedge and in subsequent periods, it is determined prospectively to remain highly
effective, and the retrospectively verified that the hedge ratio (i.e. the changes in fair value of hedged items and hedging instruments) is within a
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range of 80-125 per cent. The hedge is assessed on an ongoing basis and thus must prospectively remain highly effective throughout the financial
reporting periods for which the hedge has been designated.

The assessment of effectiveness is made at each balance-sheet date or other reporting date. If the assessment does not confirm the effectiveness
of the hedge, from that time on hedge accounting is discontinued in respect of the hedge and the hedging derivative is reclassified as a held-for-
trading instrument.

In addition, the hedging relationship ceases when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised; the hedged item is sold,
expires or is repaid; or it is no longer highly probable that the forecast transaction will occur.

Hedging derivatives are measured at fair value. In particular:

Fair Value Hedging - an effective fair value hedge is accounted for as follows: the gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instrument
at fair value is recognised in the consolidated income statement in item 90. "Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting”. The gain or
loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item and is recognised through profit or
loss in the same item. Hedging ineffectiveness is represented by the difference between the change in the fair value of hedging
instruments and the change in the fair value of hedged item. If the hedging relationship is terminated for reasons other than the sale of
the hedged item, this is measured according to the original criterion dictated by the accounting standard applied to the relevant portfolio.
In the case of interest-bearing instruments, the difference between the carrying amount of the hedged item on termination of the hedging
and the carrying amount it would have had if the hedge had never existed, is recognised through profit or loss in interest receivable or
payable over the residual life of the original hedge. If the hedged item is sold or repaid, the portion of fair value which is still unamortised
is recognised immediately in item 100. "Gains (losses) on disposal or repurchase” in the consolidated income statement. The difference
in fair value of the hedging derivative since the latest effectiveness testing date is recognised in consolidated profit or [oss under item 90.
"Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting”;

Cash Flow Hedging - hedges are valued at fair value. Change in the fair value of a hedging instrument that is considered effective is
recognised in consolidated equity item 120. "Revaluation reserves". The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is recognised through
consolidated profit or loss in item 90."Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting”. If a cash flow hedge is determined to be no longer
effective or the hedging relationship is terminated, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that remains recognised in
"Revaluation reserves" from the period when the hedge was effective remains separately recognised in "Revaluation reserves" until the
forecast hedged transaction occurs or is determined to be no longer possible; in the latter case, the gains or losses are transferred from
consolidated shareholders' equity to item 80. "Gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading” in the consolidated
income statement. The overall fair value changes recorded in item 120. "Revaluation reserves" are reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income;

Hedging a Net Investment in a Foreign entity - hedges of a net investment in a foreign entity, whose operations are presented in a
currency other than euro, are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. The gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the
effective portion of the hedge that has been recognised directly in consolidated equity is recognised through consolidated profit or loss on
disposal of the foreign entity. The fair value changes recorded in item 120. "Revaluation reserves" are also reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is recognised through consolidated profit or loss in item
90. "Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting";

Macro-hedged financial assets (liabilities) - IAS 39 allows a fair-value item hedged against interest rate fluctuations to be not only a
single asset or liability but also a monetary position contained in a number of financial assets or liabilities (or parts of them); accordingly,
a group of derivatives can be used to offset fair-value fluctuations in hedged items due to changes in market rates. Macro hedging may
not be used for net positions resulting from the offsetting of assets and liabilities. As for fair value micro hedging, macro hedging is
considered highly effective if, at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life, changes in the fair value attributable to the hedged
position are offset by changes in fair value of the hedging instrument and if the hedge ratio is retrospectively assessed falling within the
range of 80-125 per cent. Net changes — gains or losses — in the value of the macro-hedged assets and liabilities attributable to the
hedged risk are recognised in asset item 60. and liability item 50. respectively and offset the profit and loss item 90. "Fair value
adjustments in hedge accounting” in the consolidated income statement. The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instrument at fair
value is recognised in the same consolidated profit and loss item. The ineffectiveness of the hedging arises to the extent that the change
in the fair value of the hedging item differs from the change in the fair value of the hedged monetary position. The extent of hedge
ineffectiveness is in any case recognised in profit and loss item 90. "Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting” in the consolidated
income statement.

If the hedging relationship is terminated, for reasons other than the sale of the hedged items, cumulative gain or loss in items 60 (Assets)
and 50 (Liabilities) is recognised through profit or loss in interest income or expenses, along the residual life of the hedged financial
assets or liabilities.

If the latter are sold or repaid, unamortised fair value is at once recognised through profit and loss in item 100. "Gains (Losses) on
disposals/repurchase” in the consolidated income statement.

The Bank had in place at the reporting date only macro-hedges against the interest rate risk of mortgages loans to retail customers and fixed-rate
direct deposits.
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5 - Equity Investments

The initial recognition and subsequent valuation criteria for interests governed by IFRS10 Consolidated Financial Statements, 1AS27 Separate
Financial Statements, IAS28 Investments in associates and joint ventures and IFRS11 Joint Arrangements, are detailed to the applicable extent in
Section 3. Consolidation scope and methods of Section A.1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Accounts, that includes information on valuation and
key assumptions made to establish the presence of control, joint control or significant influence in compliance with the provisions of IFRS12
(paragraphs 7-9).

The remaining interests other than subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, and interests recognised in items 120. “Non-current assets and
disposal groups classified as held for sale” (see Section 8 - Non-Current assets and disposal groups classified as Held for Sale) are classified as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income or financial assets s mandatorily at fair value and treated accordingly (see Section
1 - “Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss: c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value” and Section 2 - “Financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income”).

6 — Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible Assets)

The item includes:

lands

buildings

furniture and fixtures

electronic machinery and equipments
plant and other machinery and equipments
motor vehicles

and is divided between:

e  assets used in the business;

e  assets held as investments.
Tangible assets used in the business are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes and are
expected to be used during more than one period.

Property, plant and equipment also include leasehold improvements relating to assets which can be separately identified. They are classified
according to the specific sub-items relating to the asset type (e.g. plants). Leasehold improvements are usually borne in order to make leased
premises fit for the expected use. Improvements and additional expenses relating to property, plant and equipment identifiable but not separable are
recognised in item 130. "Other assets’.

Tangible assets held for investment purposes are properties covered by IAS 40, i.e. properties held in order to derive rentals and/or a capital gain.

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost including all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into use (transaction costs,
professional fees, direct transport costs incurred in bringing the asset to the desired location, installation costs and dismantling costs).

Subsequent costs are added to the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset only when it is probable that there will be future economic
benefits in excess of those initially foreseen and the cost can be reliably measured. Other expenses borne at a later time (e.g. normal maintenance
costs) are recognised in the year they are incurred in consolidated profit and loss items:

¢ 190. “Administrative expenses: b) Other administrative expenses", if they refer to assets used in the business;
or:

e 230. "Other net operating income", if they refer to property held for investment.
After being recognised as an asset, an item of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
cumulative impairment losses.
An item with a finite useful life is subject to straight-line depreciation.

Residual useful life is usually assessed as follows:

e  Buildings up to 33 years
o  Office furniture and fittings up to 9 years
e  Electronic machinery and equipments up to 5 years
e  Plants, other machinery and equipments up to 14 years
e  Motor vehicles up to 4 years
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Buildings, if separately quantifiable, are recognised separately, even if acquired together. Land is not depreciated since it usually has an indefinite
useful life. Buildings, conversely, have a finite useful life and are therefore subject to depreciation.

The estimate of the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each accounting period-end on the basis inter alia of the conditions of use of the
asset, of maintenance conditions and expected obsolescence, and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the depreciation amount for the
current and subsequent financial years is adjusted accordingly.

If there is objective evidence that an asset has been impaired, the carrying amount of the asset is compared with its recoverable value, equal to the
greater of its fair value less selling cost and its value in use, i.e. the present value of future cash flows expected to originate from the asset. Any
impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss item 210. “Net impairment/Write-backs on property, plant and equipment” in the consolidated income
statement.

If the value of a previously impaired asset is restored, its increased carrying amount cannot exceed the net carrying amount it would have had if
there had been no losses recognised on the prior-year impairment.

An intangible asset is de-recognised from the consolidated balance sheet (i) on disposal or (i) when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or sale; and any difference between sale proceeds or recoverable value and carrying value is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
item 280. "Gains (losses) on disposal of investments" or 210. “Net impairment/write-backs on property, plant and equipment".

7 - Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary without physical substance, controlled by the Company , which is expected to be used during
more than one period and from which future economic benefits are probable.

Intangible assets mainly consist of goodwill, software and costs incurred for the creation of the new Fineco website.

Intangible assets other than goodwill are recognised at purchase cost, i.e. including any cost incurred to bring the asset into use, less accumulated
amortisation and any recognised impairment losses.

An intangible asset with a finite life is subject to straight-line amortisation over its estimated useful life.
Residual useful life is usually assessed as follows:

e  Software up to 3 years;

e otherintangible assets up to 5 years.
There are no intangible assets with an indefinite life, except for goodwill.

If there is objective evidence that an asset has been impaired, the carrying amount of the asset is compared with its recoverable value, equal to the
greater of its fair value less selling cost and its value in use, i.e. the present value of future cash flows expected to originate from the asset. Any
impairment loss is recognised in consolidated profit and loss item 220. “Net impairment/write-backs on intangible assets” in the consolidated income
statement.

If the value of a previously impaired intangible asset, other than goodwill is restored, its increased carrying amount cannot exceed the net carrying
amount it would have had if there were no losses recognised on the prior-year impairment.

An intangible asset is de-recognised from the consolidated balance sheet (i) on disposal or (ii) when no additional future economic benefits are
expected from its use or sale; and any difference between sale proceeds or recoverable value and carrying value is recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss item 280. "Gains (losses) on disposal of investments" or 220. “Net impairment/write-backs on intangible assets".

Goodwill

In accordance with IFRS3, goodwill is the excess of the cost of a business combination over the interest acquired in the net fair value, at the
acquisition date, of the assets and liabilities acquired.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures (consolidated proportionately) is recognised as an intangible asset; whereas
goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included in the acquisition cost and, then, shown as an increase in the value of the investments.

Specifically, the goodwill recorded under intangible assets in these consolidated financial statements — corresponding to the goodwill recorded in the
Bank's annual financial statements — derives from the acquisitions of merged or acquired companies.

At a subsequent financial reporting date, goodwill is recognised net of any cumulative impairment losses and is not amortised.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. Impairment losses on goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit and loss item 270. "Impairment of
goodwill". In respect of goodwill, no write-backs are allowed.
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Goodwill relates to buy-outs of divisions or companies engaged in trading activities or the distribution of financial, banking and insurance products
through personal financial advisors. These activities have been fully integrated with the Bank's ordinary operations; as a result, it is not possible to
isolate the contribution of each company/business division from the Bank's overall business. This means that to establish the reasonableness of the
value of goodwill recognised in the financial statements it is necessary to take account of FinecoBank's comprehensive income. The cash
generating unit (CGU) is the Bank as a whole including the contribution from the subsidiary Fineco Asset Management DAC, an asset management
company incorporated under Irish law, thanks a vertically integrated business model.

In view of the specific business model adopted by the Bank, which involves a high level of integration between personal financial advisors and the
trading and banking platform, so that the personal financial advisors network is an integral part of the overall offer, which includes banking,
brokerage and investing services, an allocation of costs/revenues to the macro areas of activity is not considered relevant or meaningful.

Please see Section 10.3 “Intangible assets - Other information” in Part B of these notes to the consolidated accounts for further information on
goodwill and related impairment tests.

8 - Non-current assets classified as held for sale

These categories include individual assets held for disposal (tangible, intangible and financial assets) or groups of assets held for sale, with the
associated liabilities, as required by IFRS 5.

Individual assets (or groups of assets held for sale) and relating liabilities are recognised in item 120. "Non-current assets and disposal groups held
for sale" and 70. "Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale", respectively, at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell.

The revaluation reserves relating to Non-current assets held for sale, which are recorded as a contra item to changes in value relevant for this
purpose), are reported separately in the statement of consolidated comprehensive income (see Part D — Consolidated Comprehensive Income).

The net balance of profits (dividends, interest income, etc.) and losses (interest expense, etc.) attributable to groups of assets or liabilities held for
sale are recognised in the income statement under item 320. "Profit (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations” in the consolidated income
statement. Profits and losses attributable to individual assets held for disposal are recognised in the consolidated income statement under the most
appropriate item.

At the balance sheet date, the Bank held no “non-current assets classified as held for sale”.

9 - Current and Deferred Tax

Tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet respectively in item 110. "Tax assets" and in liability item 60. "Tax
liabilities".

In compliance with the "Balance sheet liability method", current and deferred tax items are:

e current tax assets, i.e. amount of tax paid in excess of income tax due under the current national tax regulations;
e  current tax liabilities, i.e. tax payables due under the current Italian tax regulations;
o  deferred tax assets, i.e. amounts of income tax recoverable in future fiscal years and relating to:
o deductible temporary differences;
o the carry-forward of unused tax losses;
o the carry-forward of unused tax credits;
o deferred tax liabilities, i.e. the payables for income tax due in future fiscal years in respect of taxable temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax assets and tax liabilities are calculated in accordance with local tax regulations (with reference to each company
consolidated on line-by-line basis) and are recognised in profit or loss on an accrual basis.

More specifically, with regard to FinecoBank, for current IRES income tax, a rate of 27.50% has been calculated; for IRAP corporate tax, the rate
applied was 5.57%. In this regard, it should be noted that the effects of the reduction in the IRES income tax rate from 27.50% to 24% introduced,
with effect from January 1, 2017 effective for tax periods after the period to December 31, 2016, introduced by the Stability Law for 2016 were
"neutralised" for the Bank as a result of the introduction, by the same Law, of an additional 3.5 percentage points for credit institutions effective for
the same tax periods.

With regard to the Irish subsidiary Fineco AM, taxes were calculated using a rate of 12.5% (as per tax legislation).

In general, deferred tax assets and liabilities arise when there is a difference between the accounting treatment and the tax treatment of the carrying
amount of an asset or liability.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised applying tax rates that at the balance sheet date are expected to apply in the period when the
carrying amount of the asset will be recovered or the liability will be settled on the basis of tax regulations in force, and are periodically reviewed in
order to reflect any changes in regulations.

Furthermore, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be generated. In
accordance with the provisions of IAS12, the probability that sufficient future taxable profit will be available, against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised, is reviewed periodically. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets should be reduced to the extent that it is not probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Deferred tax liabilities are always recognised.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in consolidated profit and loss item 300. "Tax expense (income) related to profit or loss from continuing
operations", except for tax referred to items that in the same or in another fiscal year are credited or charged directly to equity, such as those relating
to valuation gains or losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, whose changes in value are recognised, after tax,
under the revaluation reserves directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Current tax assets are shown in the consolidated balance sheet net of related current tax liabilities, where the following requirements are met:

o thereis a right to offset the recognised amounts; and
e thereis an intention to settle the asset and liability positions with a single payment on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are shown in the consolidated balance sheet net of related deferred tax liabilities, where the following requirements are met:

o thereis a right to offset the underlying current tax assets with the current tax liabilities; and
o deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis (usually under a tax consolidation agreement).

10 - Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges for commitments and guarantees given

The sub-item of the provisions for risks and charges in question includes the funds for credit risk recognized for commitments to disburse funds and
guarantees given which fall within the scope of application of the rules on impairment in accordance with IFRS 9, according to illustrated in the next
specific section “Impairment”.

The effects of valuation are recognised in item 200. “Net provisions for risks and charges: a) commitments and guarantees given" in the
consolidated income statement.

Provisions for retirement payments and similar obligations

Retirement provisions — i.e. provisions for employee benefits paid after leaving employment — are defined as defined contribution plans or defined
benefit plans according to the economic nature of the plan.

In particular:

o  Defined-benefit plans provide a series of benefits depending on factors such as age, years of service and compensation policies. Under
this type of plan actuarial and investment risks are borne by the company.

o  Defined-contribution plans are plans under which the company makes fixed contributions. Benefits are the result of the amount of
contributions paid and return on contributions invested. The employer bears no actuarial and/or investment risks connected with this type
of plan as it has no legal or implicit obligation to make further contributions, should the plan not be sufficient to provide benefit to all
employees.

Defined-benefit plans are present-valued by an external actuary using the unit credit projection method.

This method distributes the cost of the benefit evenly over the employee's working life. The liability is determined as the present value of average
future payments adjusted according to the ratio of years of service to theoretical total years of service at the time of payment of the benefit.

More specifically, the amount recognised according to IAS 19 Revised, as a net liability/asset in item 100. “Provisions for risks and charges: b) Post-
retirement benefit obligations” is the present value of the obligation at the balance sheet date, less any pension charges relating to benefits already
provided but not yet recognised, less the fair value at the balance sheet date of plan assets other than those due to directly settle the obligations
adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. Actuarial gains or losses from the defined-benefit liabilities are
recognised as a contra-entry to consolidated equity under item 120. “Revaluation reserves” are reported in the Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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The discount rate used to discount obligations (whether financed or not) relating to benefits to be provided after retirement varies according to the
currency of denomination and country where the liabilities are allocated and is determined on the basis of market yield at the balance sheet date of
prime issuers' bonds with an average life in keeping with that of the relevant liability.

At the balance sheet date, there were no provisions for retirement payments and similar obligations.

Other provisions
Provisions for risks and charges consist of liabilities recognised when:

o the entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
e tis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seftle the obligation; and
e areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amounts recognised as provisions are the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation. The risks and uncertainties
that inevitably surround the relevant events and circumstances are taken into account in reaching the best estimate of a provision.

As regards provisions for legal disputes, the estimate includes the costs of proceedings borne by the Bank in the event of an adverse conclusion of
the dispute plus the expenses to be paid to lawyers, technical advisors and/or experts who assist the Bank, to the extent that it is believed that they
will not be reimbursed by the counterparties.

This estimate was determined by the Bank, in relation to the current dispute, mainly based on the analysis of the historical trend of legal expenses
incurred, by type of litigation and degree of judgment.

In addition, where the effect of the time value of money is significant (usually when the expense is expected to materialise more than 18 months
after its recognition), the amount of the provision should be the present value of the best estimate of the cost required to settle the obligation. The
discount rate used reflects the current market assessments.

Provisions are reviewed periodically and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it becomes clear that it is no longer probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Provisions are used only for expenses for which they were originally recognised. Provisions for the year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement in item 200. “Net provisions for risks and charges: b) other net provisions" include increases due to the passage of time; they are also net
of any re-attributions.

"Other provisions" also include obligations relating to benefits due to personal financial advisors, specifically supplementary customer portfolio
payments and contractual payments, which can be considered defined benefit plans; accordingly, these obligations are calculated by an actuary
using the unit credit projection method (see paragraph "Retirement Payments and Similar Obligations"), and payments under non-competition
agreements.

In certain cases, provisions for risks and charges (for example related to staff expenses and administrative costs) have been recognised under their
own item in the consolidated income statement to better reflect their nature.

11 - Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities valued at an amortised cost include financial instruments (other than trading liabilities and those valued at fair value),
representing various forms of third-party funding.

On initial recognition, at settlement date, financial liabilities at amortized cost are measured at fair value, which is normally the consideration
received less transaction costs directly attributable to the financial liability; the interest is recognised on the income statement, in net interest margin,
on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method.

After initial recognition, these instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Hybrid debt instruments relating to equity instruments, foreign exchange, credit instruments or indexes, are treated as structured instruments. The
embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and recognised as a derivative, provided that separation requirements are met, and
recognised at fair value. The embedded derivative is entered at fair value, classified under financial assets or liabilities held for trading, and is then
valued at fair value, with the relative profits or losses recognised in the consolidated income statement in item 80 "Gains (losses) on financial assets
and liabilities held for trading". The difference between the total amount received and the initial fair value of the embedded derivative is attributed to
the host contract.

Instruments convertible into treasury shares imply recognition, at the issuing date, of a financial liability and of the equity part, recognized in item
140. “Equity instruments”, whenever the contractual terms provide for physical delivery. The equity component is initially measured at residual value,
i.e., the overall value of the instrument less the separately determined value of a financial liability with no conversion clause and the same cash flow.
The financial liability is recognised at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Securities in issue are recognised net of the repurchased amounts; the difference between the book value of the liability and the amount paid to buy
it, is recorded in the consolidated income statement in item 100."Gains (losses) on disposal or repurchase of: c) financial liabilities". Subsequent
disposal by the issuer is considered as a new issue which doesn’t produce gains or losses.

The Bank's consolidated debts do not include covenants (see glossary in the attachments) that would cause default or restructuring events. There
are no debt instruments involving convertibility to equity instruments (under IASB IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments).

At the consolidated balance sheet date, there were no debt securities in issue, hybrid debt instruments or instruments convertible into treasury
shares.

12 - Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities held for trading include:

derivatives that are not designated as hedging instruments;

obligations to deliver financial assets borrowed by a short seller (i.e., an entity that sells financial assets it does not yet own);

financial liabilities issued with an intention to repurchase them in the near term;

financial liabilities that are part of a portfolio of financial instruments considered as a unit and for which there is evidence of a recent
pattern of trading.

Financial liabilities held for trading, including derivatives, are measured at fair value initially and for the life of the transaction.

A gain or loss arising from sale or redemption or a change in the fair value of a HFT financial asset is recognised in consolidated income statement
in item 80. "Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading", including financial derivatives relating to a fair value option.

13 - Financial liabilities designated at fair value

Financial liabilities, like financial assets may also be designated or in the first time adoption of the principle, according to IFRS 9, on initial
recognition as measured at fair value, provided that:

e this designation eliminates or considerably reduces the discrepancy that could arise from the application of different methods of
measurement of assets and liabilities and related gains or losses;
or

e a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both are managed and measured at fair value under risk management or investment
strategy which is internally documented with the entity’s Board of Directors or equivalent body.
This category may also include financial liabilities represented by hybrid (combined) instruments containing embedded derivatives that otherwise
should have been separated from the host contract.
Financial liabilities in this category, including derivatives, are valued at fair value initially, and during the life of the operation.

Changes in fair value are recognised in consolidated income statement in item 110. "Gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss: a) financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value", except for any changes in fair value that derive from changes in
the credit rating, which are shown in item 120. “Revaluation reserves” in consolidated shareholders' equity unless that recognition causes a
discrepancy that would result from a different valuation of assets and liabilities and related gains and losses, in which case the changes in fair value
deriving from changes in credit rating are also recognised on the consolidated income statement.

At the balance sheet date, no financial liabilities classified as " Financial liabilities designated at fair value " were held.

14 - Foreign currency transactions

A foreign currency transaction is recognised at the spot exchange rate of the transaction date.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate of the period.
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Exchange differences arising from settlement of monetary items at rates different from those of the transaction date and unrealised exchange rate
differences on foreign currency assets and liabilities not yet settled, other than assets and liabilities designated as measured at fair value and
hedging instruments, are recognised in profit and loss item 80. "Gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading” in the
consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities recognised at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated at the closing rate. When a gain or loss on a
non-monetary item is recognised directly in equity, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised directly in equity. Conversely, when a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised through profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised through profit or
loss.

All exchange differences recognised on revaluation reserves in consolidated shareholders' equity are also reported in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

15 - Insurance assets and liabilities

IFRS4 defines insurance contracts as those agreements based on which a party (the insurer) accepts a significant insurance risk from a third party
(the insured), agreeing to pay the latter in the event of damages arising from a specific future uncertain event.

These policies are recognised briefly as follows:

e item 170. “Other income (net) from insurance activities” from the consolidated income statement, of gross premiums, inclusive of any
amounts accrued during the financial year as a result of the underwriting of insurance contracts, net of any cancellations. Premium
transferred to reinsurers during the year is also recognised in this item;

o item 110. “Technical provisions” of Liabilities, any commitments to insured parties, calculated for each contract with the projection method
based on standard market demographic/financial assumptions;

e item 80. “Technical provisions for re-insurers” of Assets, commitments for re-insurers.

At the Accounts date, no insurance assets and liabilities were held.

18- Other information

Business Combinations

A business combination is a transaction through which an entity obtains control of a company or of a business segment, thus bringing together
different businesses into one reporting entity.

A business combination may result in a Parent-subsidiary relationship in which the acquirer is the Parent and the acquiree a subsidiary of the
acquirer. A business combination may involve the purchase of the net assets of another entity, in which case goodwill can arise, or the purchase of
the equity of the other entity (mergers).

IFRS 3 requires that all business combinations shall be accounted for by applying the purchase method, that involves the following steps:

e identifying an acquirer;
e measuring the cost of the business combination;
and

e allocating, at the acquisition date, the cost of the business combination to the assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed.

The cost of a business combination is the aggregate of the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control of the acquiree.

The acquisition date is the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the acquiree. When this is achieved through a single exchange
transaction, the date of exchange coincides with the acquisition date.

A business combination may involve more than one exchange transaction; nevertheless, the cost of the business combination remains equal to the
fair value of the total shareholding acquired. This involves the revaluation at fair value - and the recognition of the effects in the Income Statement -
of the equity investments previously held in the acquired entity.
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The cost of a business combination is allocated by recognising the assets, the liabilities and the identifiable contingent liabilities of the acquired
company at their acquisition-date fair value. Exceptions to this principle are deferred income tax assets and liabilities, employee benefits,
indemnification assets, reacquired rights, non-current assets held for sale, and share-based payment transactions that are subject to review in
accordance with the principle applicable to them.

The positive difference between the cost of the business combination and the acquirer’s interest at fair value, net of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities, must be accounted for as goodwill.

After initial recognition, goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually.

If the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the acquirer shall reassess the fair values and immediately recognise any excess remaining after that reassessment in profit or loss. If
the acquisition concerns a percentage less than 100% of the assets of the acquired company, minorities are recognised.

At the acquisition date, minorities are valued:

e  atfairvalue, or
e as a share of minority interests in the assets, liabilities and potential liabilities that can be identified for the company acquired.

Purchased or originated Credit Impaired - POCI

When on initial recognition an exposure, presented in item 30. “Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income” or 40. “Financial
assets at amortised cost”, is non-performing, it is qualified as “Purchased Originated Credit Impaired - POCI".

The amortised cost and the interest income generated by these assets are calculated by considering, in the estimate of future cash flows, the
expected credit losses over the entire residual duration of the asset. This expected credit loss is subject to periodic review thus determining the
recognition of impairment or write - backs.

Purchased Originated Credit Impaired assets are conventionally classified on initial recognition in Stage 3. If, as a result of an improvement in the
creditworthiness of the counterparty, the assets become "performing” they are classified under Stage 2. These assets are never classified under
Stage 1 because the expected credit loss is always calculated considering a time horizon equal to their residual duration.

At the Accounts date, no “Purchased or Originated Credit Impaired — POCI” were held.

Other Long-term Employee Benefits
Long-term Employee Benefits are recognised in item 80. "Other liabilities" on the basis of the measurement of the liability at the balance sheet date.

Treasury Shares

Changes in treasury shares are reported as a direct contra item to consolidated shareholders' equity, i.e. as a reduction to the latter in the amount of
any purchases, and as an increase in the amount of any sales proceeds. This entails that, if treasury shares are subsequently sold, the difference
between the sale price and the related post-tax repurchase cost is recognised entirely as a contra item to consolidated shareholders' equity.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The accounting offsetting of assets and liabilities items has been performed according to IAS 32, assessing the fulfiment of the following
requirements:

e current legal enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts;
e intention either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In accordance with IFRS 7, further information has been included in the table of the Notes to the consolidated accounts, in Part B - Other
information.

Those tables show the following in particular:

o the carrying amounts, before and after the accounting offsetting effects, related to the financial assets and liabilities that meet the criteria
for applying those effects;

o the amount of the exposures that do not meet the above mentioned criteria, but are included in master netting agreements, or similar
agreements, that create the right to set-off only under specific circumstances (e.g., default events);

o the amount of the related collateral.
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Amortised cost

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment.

The effective interest method is a method of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the life of a financial asset or liability. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation includes all fees and basis points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Commissions forming an integral part of the effective interest rate include loan drawdown fees or underwriting fees relating to a financial asset not
designated at fair value, e.g., fees received as compensation for the assessment of the issuer's or borrower's financial situation, for valuation and
registration of security, and generally for the completion of the transaction (management fees).

Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees acting as selling agents), advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums or discounts,
financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs.

Classification of financial assets

The new standard for the classification and measurement of financial assets provided for by IFRS 9 is based on the “business model” and the
financial instrument's contractual cash flows (SPPI criterion - Solely Payments of Principal and Interests).

Based on the entity’s business model for managing financial instruments, the assets may be classified as:

e  ‘“held to collect’ contractual cash flows (*HTC"), measured at amortised cost and subject to impairment based on expected losses;

o "held to collect cash flows and for sale" (‘HTCS"), measured at fair value through comprehensive income, in an equity reserve, and
subject to impairment on the basis of expected losses;

e ‘held as part of other business models”, e.g. held for trading, measured at fair value through profit and loss.

It is also possible upon initial recognition to:

e irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured at fair value through profit or loss if this eliminates or significantly reduces a
mismatch (“accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from a different measurement of assets or liabilities or from the recognition
of gains and losses on different bases;

e irrevocably designate particular investments in equity instruments, which would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss,
as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income items. Upon disposal, the fair value changes recognised in a specific
shareholders' equity reserve are not transferred to profit or loss, but to another shareholders' equity reserve.

Business model

With regard to the business model, IFRS 9 identifies three types of cases in relation to the manner in which cash flows are managed and sales of
financial assets:

e Held to Collect (HTC): whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows are managed to realize cash flows by
collecting contractual payments over the life of the instrument. The inclusion of a portfolio of financial assets in this business model does
not necessarily mean that it is impossible to sell the instruments even if it is necessary to consider the frequency, the value and the timing
of sales, the reasons for sales and expectations regarding to future sales;

e  Held to Collect and Sell (HTCS): whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Both
activities (collection of contractual flows and sales) are essential for achieving the business model objective. Therefore, sales are more
frequent and significant than an HTC business model and are an integral part of the strategies pursued;

e Other business models: which include both financial assets held for trading purposes and financial assets managed with a business
model not attributable to previous business models.

The Bank's Business Model is determined by Key management personnel at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective.

The entity’s business model does not depend on management's intentions for an individual instrument. Accordingly, this condition is not an
instrument-by-instrument approach to classification and should be determined on a higher level of aggregation with the corporate objective of
pursuing, time in time, specific performance of maximizing net interest income and accessory commissions, in order to limit credit risk, always
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compatible with the RAF (risk appetite framework) established annually by the Bank. However, a single entity may have more than one business
model for managing its financial instruments.

For the Held to Collect business model, the Bank has defined the eligibility thresholds for sales that do not affect the classification (frequent but not
significant, individually and in aggregate, or infrequent even if of a significant amount) and, at the same time, the parameters were established to
identify sales consistent with this business model as they are attributable to an increase in credit risk.

The Bank included the following financial assets in the “HTC” business model, according to the purposes for which they are held and their expected
turnover:

e customer loans (mortgages, personal loans, unsecured loans, revolving credit cards, current account credit lines and, usually, overdraft
facilities);

cash-secured securities loans to “multi-day leverage” retail customers;

credit cards full payment of balance;

deposits, loans and repurchase agreements;

other trade receivables;

proprietary securities for which the Objective pursued by the bank as part of its investment policy is the ownership of financial assets
aimed at the collection of contractual cash flows with the aim of achieving medium/long-term profitability.

The "HTCS” business model includes own securities for which the Bank pursues - as part of its investment policy - the management of the its current
liquidity, the maintenance of a set interest margin or the alignment of the terms of financial assets and liabilities. Sales are an integral part of this
business model and, therefore, there is no turnover threshold for portfolio sales, both in terms of frequency and amount. Nevertheless, trading
activity is not allowed in order to pursue the business model and any purchases must be effected taking into account a medium to long-term time
horizon.

The “Other Business Models” include any assets that do not fall into the aforementioned macro-classes: these are financial assets that are not held
as part of a business model whose objective is the holding of assets aimed at the collection of contractual cash flows or whose objective is pursued
through both the collection of financial cash flows and the sale of financial activities.

In particular, it involves are the following activities identified by the Bank:

e financial assets connected to internalization

o financial assets held for trading

e securities withdrawn from customers

e other securities (not included in the above points).
SPPI Test

In order to assess whether the features of contractual cash flows support either an amortised cost valuation (HTC) or at fair value through
comprehensive income (HTCS) - in addition to the analysis relating to the business model - it is necessary that the contractual terms of financial
assets provide for, at given dates, financial flows consisted solely of principal and interest payments on the outstanding capital share (SPPI criterion
- Solely Payments of Principal and Interests).

The tests were carried out on each individual financial instrument at initial recognition in the financial statements.

Subsequent to initial recognition, and as long as it is recognized in the financial statements, the asset is no longer subject to new assessments for
the purpose of the SPPI test. If a financial instrument is cancelled (derecognition) and a new financial asset is recognised, the SPPI test must be
carried out on the new asset.

For the application of the SPPI test, IFRS 9 provides the following definitions:

e  Principal: is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the financial asset,
for example if there are repayments of principal;

e Interest: consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during
a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin.

For the assess of the SPPI test in the context of credit granting processes and for transactions in debt securities, a tool was developed based on an
internally developed methodology (decision trees), in compliance and in line with the parent company UniCredit S.p.A..
For transactions in debt securities, the test is carried out using the previously mentioned tool at the time of purchase of the financial instrument.

For standard credit products, the SPPI test is carried out during the proposal to market a new product or to change the standard conditions of an
existing product and the test result is extended to all the individual relationships referable to the same product catalog.

For credit products with contractual conditions other than those stated in standard term sheet, the SPPI test is performed at the time of disbursement
of each loan/concession of a new credit line through the use of the same tool.
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It should be noted that the Bank did not set minimum or false thresholds considering any clause contractual cash flow characteristics that does not
comply with the SPPI requirement as a trigger that result in the test's failure, taking into account the nature of its loans and securities portfolio,
consisting of plain vanilla financial assets.

Derecognition of financial assets
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset from an entity’s consolidated balance sheet.

Before evaluating whether, and to what extent, derecognition is appropriate, under IFRS 9 an entity should determine whether the relevant
conditions apply to a financial asset in its entirety or to a part of a financial asset. The standard is applied to a part of financial assets being
transferred if, and only if, the part being considered for de-recognition meets one of the following conditions:

o the part comprises only specifically identified cash flows from a financial asset (or a group of similar financial assets);

o the part comprises only a fully proportionate (pro rata) share of the cash flows from a financial asset (or a group of similar financial
assets);

e the part comprises only a fully proportionate (pro rata) share of specifically identified cash flows from a financial asset (or a group of
similar financial assets).

In all other cases, the standard is applied to the financial asset in its entirety (or to the group of similar financial assets in their entirety).

An entity shall derecognise a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset to a third party.

Rights to cash flow are considered to be transferred even if contractual rights to receive the asset's cash flow are retained but there is an obligation
to pay this cash flow to one or more entities and all the following conditions are fulfilled (pass-through agreement):

o there is no obligation on the company to pay uncollected amounts associated with the original asset;

e  sale or pledge of the original asset is not allowed, unless it secures the obligation to pay cash flow;

o there is an obligation to transfer forthwith all cash flows received and may not invest them, except for liquidity invested for the short period
between the date of receipt and that of payment, provided that the interest accrued in that period is paid on.

Recognition is also subject to verification of substantially transfer of all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. If the entity
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the entity shall de-recognise the asset (or group of assets) and
recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

Conversely, if the entity substantially retains all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset (or group of assets), the entity shall continue to
recognise the transferred assef(s). In this case it is necessary to recognise a liability corresponding to the amount received under the transfer and
subsequently recognise all income accruing on the asset or expense accruing on the liability.

The main transactions that do not allow, under the above rules, total derecognition of a financial asset are securitisations, repurchase (sell and buy-
backs) and securities lending transactions.

In the case of securitisations, the company does not de-recognise the financial asset on purchase of the equity tranche or provision of other forms of
support of the structure which result in retention by the company of the credit risk of the securitised portfolio.

In the case of repurchase transactions and stock lending, the assets transacted are not derecognised since the terms of the transaction entail the
retention of all their risks and rewards.

Lastly, it should be noted that securities lending transactions collateralised by other securities or not collateralised were recorded as off-balance
sheet items.

At the reporting date, no loan securitisation transactions were present.

Impairment
General matters

Loans and debt instruments classified in the items: financial assets at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income
and the relevant off-balance sheet exposures (commitments and guarantees given), are subjected to an impairment calculation in accordance with
IFRS 9, taking into account the integrated reference regulations of the internal regulations and policies of the UniCredit Group which regulate the
credit classification rules and their transfer to the various categories.

The exposures are classified in Stage 1, Stage 2 or Stage 3 depending on their absolute or relative credit rating, compared to the initial
disbursement. In particular:
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e  Stage 1: this includes newly originated or acquired credit exposures and exposures that have not suffered a significant deterioration in
credit risk compared to the date of first recognition;

e  Stage 2: this includes credit exposures that are performing but which have suffered a significant deterioration in credit risk compared to
the date of first recognition;

e Stage 3: this includes impaired credit exposures.

For Stage 1 exposures, the impairment is equal to the expected loss calculated on a time frame of up to one year. For Stage 2 and Stage 3
exposures, the impairment is equal to the expected loss calculated on a timeframe equivalent to the residual duration of the related exposure.

In order to meet the accounting standard, the Bank refers specific models (developed by the UniCredit Group) to calculate the expected loss. These
models draw on the PD, LGD and EAD criteria used for regulatory purposes, to which specific directions are made to ensure full cohesion with the
accounting requirements®®. In this regard, forward-looking information has also been included®® with the elaboration of specific scenarios.

Expected loss is calculated, for the institutional counterparties common to the Group, using the methods and credit parameters developed at the
centralized level.

As the retail counterparties do not have internal rating systems at their disposal, they use proxies. Segmentation by product type is carried out and
the PD is replaced by the average decay rate observed by the transition matrixes defining the change to classify. This approach is based on the
assumption that when there are no changes in the criteria adopted to assess the creditworthiness of the individual counterparties, the quality of the
future credit will be consistent with the quality of the credit found in the time series available. To implement the requirements of the IFRS9 rule, the
proxies of the parameters are corrected using forward looking information, entirely in line with the Group's approach as described below.

A key aspect of the new accounting model required to calculate the expected loss is the Stage Allocation model, the aim of which is to transfer
exposures between Stage 1 and Stage 2 (as Stage 3 is equivalent to that of impaired exposures), where Stage 1 mainly includes (i) newly disbursed
exposures, (i) exposures that have no significant impairment of credit risk compared to initial recognition, and (iii) exposures with a low credit risk
(low credit risk exemption) on the reporting date.

The Stage Allocation valuation model is based on a combination of relative and absolute elements. The main elements were:

e the comparison at transaction level between the PD value at the time of disbursement and the value on the reporting date, both qualified
according to internal models at fixed thresholds to take into account all the key variables of each transaction that may influence the
Bank's expectations about ongoing changes in PD (e.g. age, maturity, level of PD at the time of disbursement);
absolute elements such as the backstops provided for by the regulation (e.g. 30 day Expired);
other internal findings (forborne classification).

With reference to debt instruments, the Bank has opted to apply the low credit risk exemption on investment grade securities, in full accordance with
the provisions of the accounting standard.

The criteria for determining the write-downs of receivables are based on the discounting of expected cash flows of principal and interest. In line with
the business model, these can also refer to market operations; for determining the present value of cash flows, the basic requirement is the
identification of estimated collections, the timing of payments and the discounting rate used.

The amount of the loss on impaired exposures classified as non-performing, unlikely to pay and past due according to the categories specified
below, is the difference between the carrying value and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the original interest rate of the
financial asset.

For all fixed-rate positions, the interest rate determined in this manner is also held constant in future years, while for floating rate positions the
interest rate is updated according to contractual terms. If the original interest rate is not directly available, or if finding it would be excessively
onerous, the interest rate that best approximates the original one is applied, including through practical expedients that do not affect the substance
and ensure consistency with international accounting standards.

Recovery times are estimated on the basis of business plans or forecasts based on historical recovery experience observed for similar classes of
loans, taking into account the customer segment, type of loan, type of security and any other factors considered relevant.

Parameters and definitions of risk level used in the calculation of value adjustments

As mentioned above the Group UniCredit has developed specific models to calculate the expected loss, which draw on the PD, LGD and EAD
criteria, as well as the effective interest rate.

35 See paragraph “Parameters and definitions of risk level used in the calculation of value adjustments” for a more detailed explanation of the risk measures used within the Group to calculate the expected credit loss in
accordance with IFRS 9.

See paragraph “Forward-looking information used in calculating value adjustments” for a more detailed explanation of the forward-looking information and scenarios used to calculate the expected credit loss in
accordance with IFRS 9.
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These models are used for calculating value adjustments of all the institutional counterparties common to the Group, for the most part made up of
FIBS (Financial Institutions, Banks and Sovereigns) counterparties.

Specifically:

e  PD (Probability of Default) expresses the percentage of estimated loss, and hence the expected recovery rate whenever a credit position
default event occurs;

e LGD (Loss Given Default) expresses the percentage of estimated loss, and hence the expected recovery rate is the complement to the
unit (of the LGD) whenever a credit position default event occurs;

e  EAD (Exposure at Default) expresses the measurement of the exposure at the time of the credit position default event;

e  Effective Interest Rate is the discount rate expressing the time value of the money.

These parameters are calculated on the basis of identical parameters used for regulatory purposes, with specific adjustments made to ensure full
cohesion, net of the various regulatory requirements, between the accounting treatment and the regulatory treatment.

The main adjustments are made in order to:

e introduce “point-in-time” adjustments to replace the “through-the-cycle” adjustments required for regulatory purposes;
e include forward-looking information;
e  extend the credit risk parameters to a multi-year perspective.

With regard to the lifetime PD, the through-the-cycle PD curves obtained by adapting the cumulative non-compliance rates are adjusted to reflect
point-in-time provisions and forward-looking provisions with regard to the portfolio non-compliance rates.

The rate of recovery incorporated in the through-the-cycle LGD was adapted in order to remove the conservatism margin and to reflect the latest
trends in recovery rates, and expectations about future trends discounted to the actual interest rate or its best approximation.

For Stage 3, this includes the corresponding impaired exposures which, in accordance with the Bank of Italy rules defined in Circular 272 of 30 July
2008 as updated, correspond to the aggregate Non-Performing Exposures referred to in ITS EBA (EBA/ITS /2013/03/rev1 24/7/2014).

Specifically, the EBA has identified Non-Performing exposures as those that satisfy either or both of the following criteria:

e  material exposures which are more than 90 days past due;

e  exposures for which the Bank has assessed that the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations, without the enforcement and
realisation of collateral, regardless of the existence of any past due and/or overdrawn impaired exposures or of the number of days past
due.

The aforementioned Circular 272 establishes that the impaired assets aggregate is divided into the following categories:

e  Bad exposures, i.e., the on-balance-sheet and off-balance-sheet exposures to insolvent borrowers, even if the insolvency has not been
recognised in a court of law. They are generally measured individually (including by verifying statistically defined coverage levels for
some loan portfolios below a predefined threshold) or, for individually insignificant amounts, on a flat basis by type of homogeneous
exposure.

e  Unlikely to pay — on - and off-balance sheet exposures which do not meet the borrower’s condition for classification as non-performing
loans and for which, in the absence of actions such as the enforcement of collateral, the debtor’s ability to fully meet its credit obligations
(principal and/or interest) is assessed as unlikely. This assessment is made independently of any past due and unpaid amount (or
instalment). The classification of an exposure as unlikely to pay is not necessarily tied to evident issues (non-repayment), but is rather
linked to indicators of a potential default of the borrower. The "unlikely to pay" exposures are measured in the accounts individually
(including by verifying statistically defined coverage levels for some loan portfolios below a predefined threshold) or by applying a
percentage on a flat basis by type of homogeneous exposures. Exposures classified as unlikely to pay and identified as forborne, may
only be reclassified to unimpaired loans after at least one year has passed from the time of the forbearance and the conditions
established in paragraph 157 of the EBA Implementing and Technical Standards have been met. With regard to their measurement, they
are generally measured on an individual basis or by applying a percentage on a flat basis by type of homogeneous exposures and the
resulting allowance may include the discounted cost due to renegotiation of the interest rate at a rate lower than the original contractual
rate.

e  Past due and/or overdrawn impaired exposures - on-balance sheet exposures, other than those classified as non-performing or unlikely
to pay that are past due or overdrawn at the reporting date. The past due and/or overdrawn impaired exposures are determined with
respect to the individual debtor. Specifically, they represent the total exposure to any borrower not included in the unlikely to pay and
non-performing loans categories, who at the reporting date has expired facilities or unauthorised overdrafts that are more than 90 days
past due and meet the requirements set out by local supervisory regulations for their classification under the "past due exposures". Past-
due and/or overdrawn impaired exposures are valued at a flat rate on a historical/stochastic basis by applying where available the risk
rating referred to Loss Given Default (LGD) under Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 (CRR) on prudential requirements for credit institutions
and investment firms.
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Forward-looking information used in calculating value adjustments

The credit loss expected from the parameters described in the forgoing paragraph considers macroeconomic forecasts by applying multiple
scenarios to the forward looking components.

The process defined to include macroeconomic scenarios is also fully consistent with the macroeconomic forecasting processes used by the Group
UniCredit for further risk management purposes (such as the processes used to translate macroeconomic forecasts into expected credit losses
based on the EBA Stress Test and the ICAAP Framework) and was also drawn from the independent work of UniCredit Research.

The forecasts in terms of change in Default rate and change in Recovery Rate provided by the Stress Test function are incorporated within the PD
and LGD parameters during calibration. The credit parameters are usually calibrated over a through-the-cycle (TTC) horizon, so their point-in time
(PIT) and forward-looking (FL calibration become necessary in so far as it reflects the current situation and the expectations on the future evolution
of the economic cycle in these credit parameters.

Governance

The process of determining loan loss provisions for accounting purposes includes the adjustments described for the credit parameters, calculation of
the expected multi-period loss, inclusion of the macroeconomic and forward-looking components and inclusion of the sales scenarios, where
applicable.

A specific process for production and sharing multi-scenario and forward looking adjustments pertaining to the Group Wide loans perimeter (i.e.
loans pertaining to Customers common to the Group) between FinecoBank and the Group has also been defined.

Repos and securities lending

Securities received in a transaction that entails a contractual obligation to sell them at a later date or delivered under a contractual obligation to
repurchase are neither recognised nor derecognised. In respect of securities purchased under an agreement to resell, the consideration is
recognised as financial assets at amortised cost, or as an asset held for trading; in respect of securities held in a repurchase agreement, the liability
is recognised as financial liabilities at amortised cost, or as financial liabilities held for trading. Revenue from these loans, being the coupons accrued
on the securities and the difference between the sale/purchase and resale/repurchase prices, is recognised in consolidated profit or loss through
interest income and expenses on an accruals basis.

These transactions can only be offset if, and only if, they are carried out with the same counterparty and provided that such offset is provided for in
the underlying contracts.

The same rules apply to securities lending transactions collateralised by cash fully available to the lender.
The profit or loss items connected with these transactions are booked respectively:

o in the item Interest, for the positive component (borrower) and the negative component (lender) related to the return on cash paid to the
lender;

e in the item Fees and commissions, for the negative component (borrower) and the positive component (lender) related to the service
received (provided) through the provision of the security by the lender.

With reference to securities lending transactions collateralised by other securities, or not collateralised, the security lent or the security put up as
collateral are still recognised as assets in the balance sheet, depending on the role - lender or borrower, respectively - played in the transaction.

Share-Based Payment

Equity-settled payments made to employees or other staff (in particular, personal financial advisors) in consideration of work services rendered or
other goods received or services rendered, using shares of FinecoBank or the Group parent, which consist of:

o  stock options;
e  rights to receive shares upon attainment of certain objectives (“performance shares”), which are settled with equity instruments;
e  Performance shares (i.e. awarded on attainment of certain objectives) settled in cash.

Considering the difficulty of reliably measuring the fair value of the services acquired against equity-settled payments, reference is made to the fair
value of the instruments, measured at the date of their allocation.

The fair value of equity-settled payments or the purchase on the market of shares in FinecoBank in exchange of work or services is recognised as
cost in consolidated income statement in item 190. “Administrative expenses” or 50. “Fee and commission expense” as a contra-entry to item 150.
"Reserves” in consolidated shareholders' equity, on an accruals basis over the period in which the services are acquired.
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As for share-based payments settled in cash in favour of personal financial advisors, the services acquired and the liabilities assumed are measured
at the latter’s fair value, recognised in consolidated profit or loss in Item 50. “Fee and commission expense” as counterparty of the Item 80. "Other
Liabilities". Until the liability is settled, the fair value is recalculated at each balance sheet date until the settlement date, and all changes in fair value
are recognised in item 50. “Fee and commission expense”.

Share based payments consisting in the payment of shares of the Parent Company UniCredit S.p.A. directly allocated to employees of the Group
Companies that involve settlement with shares of the Parent Company, under arrangements between the Company and the Parent Company for
their cash settlement, are measured at fair value, calculated when the related rights are assigned, recognised as a cost in consolidated income
statement in item 190 "Administrative expenses", as a contra entry to item 80. "Other Liabilities", on an accruals basis over the period in which the
services are acquired.

Renegotiations

When, during the life of an instrument, the contractual clauses are subject to modification by the parties to the contract, it is necessary to verify
whether following the renegotiation the original asset must continue to be recognized in the financial statements and accounted for using the
"modification accounting” or if, on the contrary, the original instrument must be cancelled from the financial statements (derecognition) and a new
financial instrument must be recognized.

To this end, the renegotiations of financial instruments that lead to a change in the contractual terms are recognised on the basis of the
"substantiality" of those contractual changes.

The assessment of the substantial nature of the change must be carried out considering both qualitative and quantitative elements. In some cases it
is possible to establish whether the modification introduced substantially change the characteristics and/or contractual cash flows of a given activity
through a qualitative analysis, whereas in other cases, further analyses, including quantitative ones, must be carried out to appreciate the effects of
the same and verify the need to proceed or not with the derecognition of the asset and the recognition of a new financial instrument.

If the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, after the modification, are not substantially transferred, the accounting representation
that offers the most relevant information for the reader of the financial statements is that performed through the "modification accounting”, which
implies that the gross value is redetermined by calculating the present value of cash flows resulting from the renegotiation, at the original rate of the
exposure. The difference between the gross value of the financial instrument prior to and after the renegotiation of the contractual terms, adjusted to
consider the associated changes to the cumulative value adjustments, is recognised as a profit or loss in item 140. “Profitlloss from contractual
modification without derecognition” on the consolidated income statement.

Otherwise, when the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, after the modification, are substantially transferred, it is necessary to
proceed with the derecognition.

Renegotiations formalised by means of changes to the existing contract or by the signing of a new contract, which lead to the exclusion of the right
to receive cash flows according to the provisions of the original contract, are considered to be significant. The rights to receive cash flows are
considered to be excluded in the case of renegotiations that lead to the introduction of clauses resulting in a change of classification of the
instrument, which result in a change in the currency and which are made at market conditions, thus not constituting a credit exposure.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments represent a residual interest in assets of the Company, net of liabilities. An instrument is classified as equity instrument if there
are no contractual obligations to make payments in the form of principal, interest or other types of returns.

Specifically, instruments that meet the following requirements are classified as equity instruments:

e unlimited term or at least equal to the term of the company;
o full discretion of the issuer in coupon payments and redemptions, also advanced, of the principal outstanding.

Equity instruments include Additional Tier 1 instruments under Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 (CRR) on prudential requirements for credit institutions
and investment firms, which in addition to the above characteristics:

e maintain the issuer’s full discretion as to the reinstatement of the nominal value (write-up) following a capital event that resulted in a write-
down;

e do not include provisions that require the issuer to make payments (must pay clauses) as a result of actual events under the control of
the parties.

Equity instruments other than ordinary or savings shares, are classified in item 140. "Equity instruments" for the amount received. Any coupons and
transaction costs attributable to the transaction paid are deducted from ltem 150. "Reserves" net of related taxes.
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Provisions for employee severance pay

The "TFR" provision for Italy-based employee benefits is to be construed as a "post-retirement defined benefit". It is therefore recognised on the
basis of an actuarial estimate of the amount of benefit accrued by employees discounted to present value. This benefit is calculated by an external
actuary using the unit credit projection method (see Section 10 - under “Provisions for Risks and Charges - Retirement Payments and Similar
Obligations”). This method distributes the cost of the benefit evenly over the employee's working life. The liability is determined as the present value
of average future payments adjusted according to the ratio of years of service to total years of service at the time of payment of the benefit.

Following pension reform by Law 252 of December 5, 2005, TFR instalments accrued to December 31, 2006 (or to the date between January 1,
2007 and June 30, 2007 on which the employee opted to devolve their TFR to a supplementary pension fund) stay in the employer and are
considered a post-employment defined benefit plan therefore incurring actuarial valuation, though with simplified actuarial assumptions, i.e., forecast
future pay rises are not considered.

TFR instalments accrued since January 1, 2007 (date of Law 252 coming into effect) (or since the date between January 1, 2007 and June 30,
2007) are, at the employee's discretion, either paid into a pension fund or left in the company and (where the company has in excess of 50
employees) paid into an INPS Treasury fund by the employer, and are assimilated to a defined-contribution plan.

Costs relating to TFR are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement in item 190. "Administrative expenses: a) staff expenses” and include,
for the part of the defined benefit plan: (i) interest cost accrued in the year, for the part of plan considered defined contribution plan (i) the accrued
instalments for the year paid into the complementary pension scheme or to the Treasury fund of INPS.

Actuarial gains and losses, defined as the difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the present value of obligations at period end,
are recognised in consolidated Shareholders' equity under the Revaluation reserves in accordance with IAS 19 Revised and are also shown in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Write - offs

The Bank will enter a write-off by reducing the gross exposure of a financial asset if there are no reasonable expectations of recovering all or part of
that asset.

The Bank will recognise a write-off in the following cases:

o there is no longer any reasonable expectation of recovering all or part of the asset despite the presence of the legal rights to recover the
accrued capital and interest;

o waiver of the legal right to recover the accrued capital and interest;

e cessation of the legal right to recover capital and interest due to completion of the attempts at recovery.
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RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENSES

The main revenues and costs are recorded in the income statement as follows:

e interest is recognized pro rata temporis based on the contractual interest rate or the effective interest rate if the amortized cost method is
applied. Interest income (or interest expense) also includes the spreads or margins, positive (or negative), accrued up to the reporting
date, relating to
o derivative financial contracts hedging interest-bearing assets and liabilities;

o financial derivative contracts classified in the balance sheet as held for trading, but operationally linked to financial assets and / or
liabilities designated at fair value (fair value option);

o financial derivative contracts operationally linked to assets and liabilities classified in the balance sheet as held for trading or
operationally linked to "other financial assets required to be measured at fair value" and which provide for the settlement of spreads
or margins with several maturities ("multi-flow contracts") ");

e  default interest is taken to the income statement on actual collection;

e  dividends are recognised in profit or loss in the financial year in which their distribution has been approved;

o fees and commissions from services are recognized, based on the underlying contractual agreements, in relation to the provision of the
services from which they originated. The fees included in amortised cost to calculate the effective interest rate are recognized as interest;

e gains and losses on financial instrument disposal, determined as the difference between the amount paid or collected in the transaction
and the fair value of the instrument, are recognized in the income statement upon recognition of the transaction if the fair value can be
determined with reference to official prices available on active markets, or for assets and liabilities measured on the basis of valuation
techniques using observable market parameters other than the quoted prices of the financial instrument (level 1 and level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy). If the reference parameters used for valuation are not observable on the market (level 3) or the instruments are illiquid,
the financial instrument is recorded for an amount equal to the transaction price; the difference with respect to fair value is recognized in
the income statement over the term of the transaction;

e gains and losses from securities trading are recognized in the income statement at the time the sale is finalized, based on the difference
between the amount paid or collected and the carrying amount of the instruments;

e gains and losses from the sale of non-financial assets are recognized at the time the sale is finalized, or when the performance obligation
to the customer is fulfilled;

e the costs are recognized in the income statement according to the accrual principle; the costs recognized for the acquisition of contracts
with customers, which the Bank would not have incurred had it not obtained the contract, are recognized as assets and systematically
amortized in the income statement in line with the recognition of revenues related to the transfer to customers of the goods or services to
which the asset refers.

Fees and commissions income and other operating income are accounted for in P&L as the entity satisfies the performance obligation embedded in
the contract, according to “IFRS15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers” rules. In particular, revenues from commissions from services and
other income are recognized in the income statement:

e  ata specific moment, when the entity fulfills the obligation to transfer the promised good or service ("point in time") to the customer,
or

e overtime, as the entity fulfils its obligation to transfer the promised good or service ("over time") to the customer.

The promised good or service, i.e. the asset, is transferred when the customer has control.

If the timing of cash-in of the contractual amount in is not aligned to the way the performance obligation is satisfied, the Bank accounts for a contract
asset or a contract liability for the portion of revenue accrued in the period or to defer in the following periods.

The amount of revenues linked to fees and commissions income and other operating income is measured based on contractual provisions.

If the amount contractually foreseen is subject, totally or partially, to variability, a revenue has to be booked based on the most probable amount that
the Bank expects to receive. Such amount is determined on the basis of all facts and circumstances considered relevant for the evaluation, that
depend on the type of service provided and, in particular, on the presumption that it is not highly probable that the revenue recognized will not be
significantly reversed.

If a contract regards different goods/services whose performance obligations are not satisfied at the same time, the revenue is allocated among the
different obligation proportionally to the stand-alone price of the single item delivered. These amounts will therefore accounted for in P&L through
different methods ("over time" or "point in time") on the basis of the timing of satisfaction of each obligation. If the allocation is particularly
burdensome and where revenues are not material, revenue is entirely allocated to the main performance obligation.

Where envisaged, the fees to be paid to customers are recorded as a reduction in revenues from the supply of goods or services and consistently
with the recognition of said goods or services.

Any revenues that include a significant funding component are adjusted to take into account the effects of the time value of money, to reflect the
price that the customer would have paid if the payment had occurred upon (or gradually with) the transfer of the promised goods or services. The
Bank uses the practical expedient envisaged by paragraph 63 of IFRS 15; for this reason the Bank does not adjust the promised amount to take into
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account the effects of a funding component when the time interval expected between the transfer of the promised good or service and the related
payment is less than one year.

To this end, it is worth noting that the performance of financial services provided over a given period of time (for example, the keeping and
management of current accounts, advisory services, etc.) have been considered satisfied over time, regardless of the moment the consideration is
paid by the customer, while performances of financial services that require the execution of specific activities (for example, purchase, sale or
placement of securities, UCITS or insurance products, execution of money transfers) have been considered fulfilled at a given time ("point in time"),
even if the contract requires the service is provided for an indefinite period.

With reference to the main revenue recognized by the Bank in application of the IFRS 15 accounting standard, it should be noted that:

o the commissions for trading, order collection and placement of financial instruments are accounted for "point in time", as the service is
intended provided when the service is rendered. The consideration is quantified as a fixed or percentage amount, based on the
contractual conditions, on the value of the instrument traded/placed;

e advisory, portfolio management and insurance product management commissions are recorded "over time", as the service is intended
provided during the term of the contract (input method). For this kind of fees, in fact, it is deemed that the input which are necessary to
provide the service incorporated in the performance obligation are evenly distributed during the term of the contract. There are no
performance fees on asset management instruments. With regard to placement of insurance policies, whose return is determined on the
basis of the performance of the separate management on the annual recurrence of the policy, it should be noted that there is a variability
determined by the performance of the separate management, which may result in a reduction in applicable rate;

e commissions related to payment systems are mainly recognized "point in time", except for some services that are recorded "over time"
during the term of the contract (SEPA Electronic Database Alignment). The considerations are quantified as a fixed amount, mainly with
reference to transactions carried out on behalf of customers (for example ATM withdrawals of less than €100, Visa debit extra Group
withdrawals, foreign money transfers or in other currencies other than euro, postal bills, efc... ), or as percentage of the value of the
transaction, mainly with reference to revenues received from the circuits and generated by transactions carried out on behalf of
customers (credit cards / Visa debit, Pos, etc.);

e  recoveries of the stamp duty on financial assets are recorded "over time", according to the provisions in force, as the service is
considered provided during the term of the contract.

A.3 Disclosure on transfers between portfolios of financial assets

IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 allow, after initial recognition, the modification of their business model for managing financial assets and, consequently, impose
the reclassification of reclassify all affected financial assets.

Such changes are expected to be very infrequent. Such changes are determined by the entity’s senior management as a result of external or
internal changes and must be significant to the entity’'s operations and demonstrable to external parties. Accordingly, a change in an entity’s
business model will occur only when an entity either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations; for example, when
the entity has acquired, disposed of or terminated a business line.

Specifically, the following may be reclassified:

o the financial assets out of the amortised cost measurement category and into the fair value through profit or loss measurement category
and vice versa;

o the financial assets out of the amortised cost measurement category and into the fair value through other comprehensive income
measurement category and vice versa;

o the financial assets out of the fair value through profit or loss measurement category and into the fair value through other comprehensive
income measurement category and vice versa.

The following changes in circumstances are not considered reclassifications:

a) an item that was previously a designated and effective hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge or net investment hedge no longer qualifies as
such;

b) anitem becomes a designated and effective hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge or net investment hedge;

c) changes in measurement.

The following are not changes in business model:

a) achange in intention related to particular financial assets (even in circumstances of significant changes in market conditions);
b) the temporary disappearance of a particular market for financial assets;
c) atransfer of financial assets between parts of the entity with different business models.
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During the exercise closed at 31 December 2018 the Bank has not made changes to its business models and, consequently, did not make any
changes.

A.3.1 Reclassified financial assets: change of business model, book value and interest income
No data to report.

A.3.2 Reclassified financial assets: change of business model, fair value and impact on

comprehensive income
No data to report.

A.3.3 Reclassified financial assets: change of business model and effective interest rate
No data to report.

A.4 Information on fair value

Qualitative information
This section presents a disclosure on fair value hierarchy as required by IFRS 13.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the
principal market at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted from
the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.

For financial instruments listed in active markets, fair value is determined on the basis of official prices in the principal market (most advantageous)
to which the Bank has access (Mark to Market).

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from a pricing service, dealer,
broker, agency that determines prices or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm's length basis. If a published price quotation in an active market does not exist for a financial instrument in its entirety, but active markets exist
for its component parts, fair value is determined on the basis of the relevant market prices for the component parts.

If market quotations or other observable inputs, such as the quoted price of a similar instrument in an inactive market, are not available, the Bank
should use other valuation techniques, such as:

e amarket approach (e.g. using quoted prices for similar liabilities or equity instruments held by other parties as assets);

e  cost approach (e.g. it reflects the amount that would be required currently to replace the service capacity of an asset, that is the current
replacement cost);

e Anincome approach (e.g. a present value technique that takes into account the future cash flows that a market participant would expect
to receive from holding the liability or equity instrument as an asset).

The Bank uses valuation models (Mark to Model) in keeping with the methods generally accepted and used by the market. Valuation models include
techniques based on the discounting of future cash flows and on volatility estimates, and they are subject to revision both during their development
and periodically in order to ensure their consistency with the objectives of the valuation.

These methods use inputs based on prices set in recent transactions for the instrument being valued and/or prices/quotations for instruments having
similar characteristics in terms of risk profile.

Indeed, these prices/quotations are relevant for determining significant parameters in terms of the credit risk, liquidity risk and price risk of the
instrument being valued. Reference to these "market" parameters makes it possible to limit the discretionary nature of the valuation, and ensures
that the resulting fair value can be verified.

If, for one or more risk factors it is not possible to refer to market data, the valuation models employed use estimates based on historical data as
inputs.

FinecoBank - Reports and Accounts 2018 155



Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

As a further guarantee of the objectivity of valuations derived from valuation models, the Bank employs:

e independent price verifications (IPVs);
o fair Value Adjustment or FVAs.

Independent price verification requires that the prices are verified monthly by Risk Management units that are independent from the units that
assume the risk exposure. This verification calls for comparing and adjusting the daily price in line with valuations obtained from independent market
participants. For instruments not listed in active markets, the above verification process uses prices contributed by infoproviders as a reference, and
assigns a greater weighting to those prices that are considered representative of the instrument being valued. This valuation includes: the
"executability" of the transaction at the price observed, the number of contributors, the degree of similarity of the financial instruments, the
consistency of prices from different sources, and the process followed by the infoprovider to obtain the information.

A.4.1 Fair value levels 2 and 3: valuation techniques and input used

To determine the fair value of Level 2 and Level 3 financial instruments that are not listed and actively traded on the market, the Bank, with the
coordination of the competent Parent Company structures responsible for these activities for the benefit of all UniCredit Group entities, utilises the
valuation techniques widely-used in the market that are described below.

Description of evaluation techniques

Discounted cash flow

Discounted cash flow valuation techniques generally consist of developing an estimate of future cash flows that are expected to occur over the life of
an instrument. The model requires the estimation of the cash flow and the adoption of market's parameters for the discounting: discount rate or
discount margin reflects the credit and / or funding spreads required by the market for instruments with similar risk and liquidity profiles to produce a
"present value". The fair value of the contract is given by the sum of the present values of future cash flow.

Market Approach
Valuation technique that uses prices generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets, liabilities or groups of assets and
liabilities.

Fair Value Adjustments (FVAs)

Fair value adjustment is defined as the amount to be added either to the market observed mid-price or to the theoretical price generated by a
valuation model with the aim of obtaining a fair value of the position. The FVA thus ensure that fair value reflects the realisation amount from an
actual possible market transaction.

A.4.2 - Valuation processes and sensitivity of fair value measurements

The Bank verifies that the value attributed to each trading position reflects the current fair value in an appropriate way. The fair value measurement
of assets and liabilities is calculated using various techniques, including discounted cash flow models and internal measurement models. On the
basis of the observability of the input used, all instruments are classified as Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. When a position is
characterised by one or more significant inputs that are not directly observable, a further price verification procedure is implemented. These
procedures include the revision of relevant historical data, the analysis of profits and losses, the individual valuation of each component for structural
products and benchmarking. According to the Parent Group Market Risk Governance guidelines, in order to ensure the appropriate level of
separation between the functions in charge of development activities and those in charge of validation processes, all valuation models developed by
the front offices of Group companies are independently and centrally tested and validated by the Group Internal Validation functions. The aim of this
independent control structure is to evaluate the model risk deriving from theoretical robustness, calibration techniques where applicable and
appropriateness of the model for a specific product in a defined market point of views.

In addition to the daily mark to market or mark to model valuation, the Independent Price Verification (IPV) is applied monthly by the Bank's Market
Risk with the aim of guaranteeing an independent fair value.
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A.4.3 Fair value hierarchy
The IFRS 13 principle establishes a fair value hierarchy according to the observability of the input used in the valuation techniques adopted.

The fair value hierarchy level associated with assets and liabilities is defined as the minimum level among all significant inputs used. Generally, an
input of valuation is not considered significant for the fair value of an instrument if the remaining inputs explain the majority of the variance of the fair
value over a period of three months. In some specific cases, the significance of the limit is verified in relation to the fair value of the instrument at the
measurement date.

In particular, three levels are considered:

e  Level 1: the fair value of instruments classified in this level is determined based on quotation prices observed in active markets;

e Level 2: fair value for instruments classified within this level is determined according to the valuation models which use observable
market inputs;

e Level 3: fair value for instruments classified within this level is determined according to valuation models which prevalently use significant
inputs not observable on active markets.

A.4.4 Other information

Hereby we provide IFRS 13 disclosure requirements.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis

Fixed Income Securities
Fixed Income Securities are priced in a two-tier process depending on the liquidity in the respective market. Liquid instruments in active markets are
marked to market and consequently positions in these instruments are disclosed in reference to Fair Value Hierarchy under Level 1.

Instruments not traded in active markets are marked to model based on implied credit spread curves derived from the former Level 1 instruments.
The model maximises the use of observable input and minimises the use of unobservable inputs. With this respect, depending on the proximity of
the credit spread curve applied, the bonds are disclosed as Level 2 or Level 3 respectively; Level 3 is applied in case a significant unobservable
credit spread is used.

In the global bond Independent Price Verification (IPV) process market prices of Level 1 bonds and pricing models for illiquid bonds are regularly
verified for accuracy.

Structured Financial Products
The Bank determines the fair value of structured financial products using the appropriate valuation methodology given the nature of the embedded
structure. Such instruments are classified as Level 2 or Level 3 depending on the observability of significant inputs to the model.

OTC derivatives

The fair value of derivatives not traded in an active market derives from the application of mark-to-model valuation techniques. When there is an
active market for the input parameters to the valuation model of the different components of the derivative, the fair value is determined on the basis
of the market prices of these components. Valuation techniques based on observable inputs are classified as Level 2, while those based on
significant unobservable inputs are classified as Level 3.

Equity Instruments

Equity Instruments are assigned to Level 1 when a quoted price is available on an active market and to Level 3 when no quotations are available or
quotations have been suspended indefinitely. These instruments are classifies as Level 2 only when trading volume on the market where the
instrument is quoted has decreased significantly.

For the measurement of the Visa INC class "C" preferred shares, the Bank has adopted the model developed by the Parent Company to determine
the fair value that converts the market price in dollars of the Visa INC class "A" shares into euro and applies a discount factor of 6.25%, determined
by estimating the litigation risk (0.25%) and the illiquidity risk (6%). The litigation risk component was extracted from historical series of data provided
by Visa INC, whereas the illiquidity risk component was derived from the illiquidity of the shares, which have limitations on their transferability for a
particular period. The Visa INC class "C" preferred shares were assigned a fair value hierarchy of 3.

The fair value of the equity instruments recognized with regard to the intervention in favour of CariCesena, Cassa di Risparmio di Rimini (Carim) and
Cassa di Risparmio di San Miniato (Carismi) and in relation to the result of the contribution made to the Voluntary Scheme set up by the Interbank
Deposit Guarantee Fund, was determined equal to the estimate of fair value of Berenice securitisation’s notes (mezzanine and junior notes issued
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for the securitization of the NPLs of the three banks purchased by the Voluntary Scheme) performed by the appointed advisor from the Interbank
Deposit Guarantee Fund for the Voluntary Scheme Report as at December 31, 2018. The model used by the advisor is based on the Discounted
Cash Flow model according to the recovery forecasts made by the special servicers.

On the other hand, the fair value of the equity instruments recognized with regard to the intervention in favour of Banca Carige S.p.A. was
determined using internal models (Discounted Cash Flow and Market Multiples applied in a multi-scenario analisys) also referring to the valuation of
the financial assets of the Voluntary Scheme (supported by the appointed advisor) included in the 2018 Report of the Voluntary Scheme.

Both the equities were classed as fair value 3.

Investment Funds
The Bank holds investments in investment funds that publish Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit and may include investments in funds managed by the
Group.

Funds are generally classified as Level 1 when a quote on an active market is available.

The funds are classified as Level 2 and Level 3 depending on the availability of the NAV, the transparency of the portfolio and possible
constraints/limitations.

Assets and liabilities not measured fair value or measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis

Financial instruments not measured at fair value, credits and debits at amortised cost, are not managed on the basis of fair value. For these financial
instruments fair value is calculated for disclosure purposes only and does not impact the balance sheet or the profit or loss. Additionally, since these
assets and liabilities are not generally traded, there is significant management judgment required to determine their fair values as defined by IFRS
13.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Fair value for Financial assets at amortised cost, is determined using the discounted cash flow model adjusted for credit risk. Some portfolios are
valued using simplified approaches, which however take into account their financial characteristics. Financial assets at amortised cost with a
duration of less than 12 months for which the fair value was estimated to be equal to the book value have been assigned the level 3 fair value
hierarchy.

For the UniCredit S.p.A. securities recorded in “Financial assets at amortised cost” portfolio, fair value level 2 has been calculated using the Group's
methodology based on discounted cash flow, which consists of producing an estimate of the estimated cash flows over the life of the instrument and
discounting at a rate that incorporates the credit spread. The credit spread is calculated based on the credit spread curve of the issuer, constructed
by selecting issues, also from the second market, with the same specific characteristics.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Fair value for financial liabilities at amortised cost, is determined using the discounted cash flow model adjusted for UniCredit S.p.A. credit risk. The
Credit Spread is determined using UCG's subordinated and non-subordinated risk curves. Financial liabilities at amortised cost with a duration of
less than 12 months for which the fair value was estimated to be equal to the book value have been assigned the level 3 fair value hierarchy.

Cash and cash balances
Cash and cash balances are not carried at fair value on the Balance Sheets, but they are carried at amounts that approximate fair value, due to their
short term nature and generally negligible credit risk.
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Quantitative information

A.4.5 Fair value hierarchy

A.4.5.1 Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis: breakdown by level of fair value

(Amounts in € thousand)

12.31.2018 12.31.2017

ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE L1 L2 L3 L1 L2 L3
1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3,390 3,557 13,271

a) financial assets held for trading 3,354 3,523 -

b) financial assets designed at fair value - - -

c) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value 36 34 13,271
2. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 961,767 5
Financial asset